
 
 

 

Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service Headquarters, Bridle Road, Bootle, Merseyside L30 4YD Fax: 0151 296 4144 
Legal Services 0151 296 4122, Democratic Services: 0151 296 4112 

 

 

To: All Members of the Community Safety and 
Protection Committee 
(and any other Members who may wish to attend) 
 

J. Henshaw 
LLB (Hons) 
Clerk to the Authority 
 
 
Tel: 0151 296 4000 

Extn: 4112 Helen Peek 

  
  
 
Your ref:  Our ref   HP/NP Date: 30 July 2014 
 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 

 
Further to my invitation to attend a meeting of the COMMUNITY SAFETY AND 

PROTECTION COMMITTEE to be held at 1.00 pm on TUESDAY, 29TH JULY, 

2014 in the Temporary Meeting Room, Headquarters. 

 

Please find attached: 

AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT 

1.   Preliminary matters  

 Members are requested to consider the identification of: 
 

a) declarations of interest by individual Members in relation to any 
item of business on the Agenda 

 
b) any additional items of business which the Chair has determined 

should be considered as matters of urgency; and 
 

c) items of business which may require the exclusion of the press 
and public during consideration thereof because of the 
possibility of the disclosure of exempt information. 

 

Public Document Pack



2 

2.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 8) 

 The Minutes of the Previous Meeting, held on 5555555., are 
submitted for approval as a correct record and for signature by the 
committee chair.  

3.   Wirral Youth Zone (Pages 9 - 166) 

 (CFO/048/14) 

 To consider Report CFO/048/14 of the Deputy Chief Fire Officer, 
concerning the transfer of land freed up at Birkenhead Fire Station site, 
to support the creation of a Youth Zone.  

4.   CFOA Road Safety Week (Pages 167 - 200) 

 (CFO/083/14) 

 To consider Report CFO/083/14 of the Chief Fire Officer, concerning 
background to and activity carried out by MFRA staff during the Chief 
Fire Officers Association (CFOA) Road Safety Week 9th June to 15th 
June 2014. 

 
 

Yours faithfully, 

 
 
 
 

Clerk to the Authority 
 
Encl. 



MERSEYSIDE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY 
 

COMMUNITY SAFETY AND PROTECTION COMMITTEE 
 

27 MARCH 2014 
 

MINUTES 
 
Present: Cllr Linda Maloney (Chair) Councillors Vi Bebb, John Kelly, 

Jimmy Mahon, Barbara Murray, Tony Newman, 
Jean Stapleton and Lesley Rennie 

  
Also Present: Councillors Roy Gladden, Ted Grannell, and Dave Hanratty; 

and Independent Person Anthony Boyle 
  
  
 

1. Preliminary matters  
 
Members considered the identification of declarations of interest, any urgent 
additional items, and any business that may require the exclusion of the press 
and public.  
 
Resolved that: 
 

a) The following declarations of interest were made by Members in respect 
of Items on the Agenda: 
 

• As elected representatives on District Councils within the 
Merseyside region, all Elected Members present declared a 
personal interest in the following item: 
 
Agenda Item 4 – Renewal of Membership of the Local 
Enterprise Partnership (Formerly the Mersey Partnership) 

 

• Cllr Lesley Rennie declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 12 
– External Funding For Prevention And Road Safety due to 
being a Trustee of the Fire Support Network. 

 
 

b) no additional items of business to be considered as matters of urgency 
were determined by the Chair; and 

 
c) no items of business required the exclusion of the press and public during 
consideration thereof because of the possibility of the disclosure of exempt 
information. 

 
It was proposed by the Chair and resolved by the Committee that Agenda Item 
5 be taken after Agenda Item 9. 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2. Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 
The Minutes of the previous meeting of the Community Safety & Protection 
Committee, held on 19th December 2013, were approved as a correct record 
and signed accordingly by the Chair.  
 
 

3. EXTENSION OF THE PRIMARY AUTHORITY SCHEME TO FIRE SAFETY  
 
Members considered Report CFO/026/14 of the Deputy Chief Fire Officer, 
concerning the statutory duty that will be placed on Merseyside Fire & Rescue 
Authority (MFRA) in relation to the enforcement of fire safety legislation, as a 
result of the extension of the Primary Authority Scheme (PAS) to the Regulatory 
Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 (“The Order”). 
 
It was noted that the extension of the Primary Authority Scheme, was the 
subject of a Learning Lunch prior to the meeting; at which a number of 
questions were raised by Members, including questions relating to: 
 

• the process for deciding which Authority will be the Lead Authority for a 
particular business. 

• ensuring that our standards are adhered to by other authorities when we 
are the Lead Authority.  

• capacity to facilitate these partnerships. 

• potential to establish a social enterprise to undertake this work. 

• risks associated with differing standards between authorities. 

• the process for communication of information between authorities. 

• reporting back to Members regarding the progress of this scheme.  
 
It was reported that during the Learning Lunch a suggestion had been made 
that regular update reports be submitted to the Community Safety & Protection 
Committee regarding progress with this scheme; with any specific developments 
being reported to Members as required.  
 
Members Resolved that: 
 

a) The extension of the Primary Authority Scheme to the Regulatory Reform 
(Fire Safety) Order 2005 and the requirement to abide by the terms and 
conditions of the Scheme when undertaking its regulatory activities, be 
noted. 

b) The active participation of Merseyside Fire & Rescue Authority in 
delivering the Scheme, be endorsed.  

c) Regular update reports be submitted to the Community Safety & 
Protection Committee regarding progress with this scheme; with any 
specific developments being reported to Members as required 

  
 
 
 

Page 2



4. Renewal of Membership of Local Enterprise Partnership (Formerly the 
Mersey Partnership)  
 
Members welcomed Mr Mike Palin - representing the Local Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP). 
 
Mr Palin provided Members with a presentation outlining work undertaken by 
the LEP, to enable Members to consider the benefits to the Authority in 
continuing Membership of the Partnership for 2014/15.  
 
The presentation provided Members with an overview of the strategic plans for 
the City Region and the areas identified for development, for which funding will 
be bid for.  
 
Members raised several questions in relation to the presentation; around 
timescales of the bidding process, proposed work to improve access to the Port 
of Liverpool and potential issues for the Sefton area, the position of the LEP 
with regards to fracking; and how the Authority could ensure that it is consulted 
during the design stage of any proposed building works.  
 
Members then considered Report CFO/022/14 of the Deputy Chief Executive, 
concerning the proposal that the Authority continues its membership of the 
Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP).  
 
Members Resolved that: 
 

a)  the Authority continue its membership of the LEP for 2014/15. 
 

b) a copy of the presentation slides be provided to all Members. 
 
 

6. Budget Resolution Transitional Response Arrangements - Order Of 
Appliance Unavailability  
 
Members considered Report CFO/038/14 of the Chief Fire Officer, concerning 
the sequence in which appliance and therefore stations will become unavailable 
due to insufficient staffing, as firefighter numbers are reduced to meet the 
savings target required as a result of Government cuts to the Authority budget; 
and prior to structural changes in relation to station mergers/ closures are made.  
 
Members were informed that the issues in relation to appliance availability are 
not as a result of the Authority employing too few staff, but are due to having 
insufficient numbers of staff available for full operational duties at any given 
time.  
 
It was noted that a Task & Finish Group of the Authority are currently reviewing 
sickness absence and associated HR Policies and Procedures; and a report 
containing their feedback and recommendations will be brought back to the 
Authority for consideration in due course.  
 

Page 3



The Chief Fire Officer advised Members that he had spoken with each of the 
District Leaders to make them aware of the situation with regards to appliance 
unavailability. 
 
Members were also advised that negotiations continue with the FBU over 
additional voluntary hours, with both parties working together to try to reach a 
resolution.  
 
The Chair of the Committee informed Members of a letter received from the 
FBU affirming their commitment to work with the Authority during these 
challenging times.  
 
Members Resolved that: 
 

a) The content of the report be noted. 
 

b) The letter received from the FBU, be circulated to all Members for their 
information.  

 
 

7. Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service National Deployments During The 
Recent Wide Area Flooding  
 
Members considered Report CFO/023/14 of the Chief Fire Officer, concerning 
the recent out of area deployments of Merseyside Fire & Rescue Authority 
(MFRA) personnel and national assets, in response to wide area flooding in 
Lincolnshire, Essex, Somerset and Thames Valley. 
 
Members raised a number of questions concerning the use of MFRA assets 
during the floods and cost recovery.  
 
Members commented that the report was very useful in assisting the public 
understanding of the Authority’s involvement in the floods and as a means of 
highlighting the importance of Authority’s such as Merseyside remaining whole 
time, to enable them to provide such assistance.  
 
It was moved by Cllr Maloney and seconded by Cllr Murray that The Chair of the 
Authority write to relevant Ministers and MP’s, to highlight the involvement of 
MFRA in the response to the recent floods; and highlighting the potential impact 
that continuing cuts to the Authority’s budget may have on its ability to respond 
to such incidents in the future. This was approved unanimously 
 
It was further moved by Cllr Mahon and seconded by Cllr Maloney that the Chief 
Fire Officer attend any Ward meetings, as requested, to provide the public with 
information concerning the response of MFRA during the recent floods. This 
was also approved unanimously. 
 
Members Resolved that: 
 

a) The contents of the report be noted.  
 

Page 4



b) The Chief Fire Officer attend any Ward meetings, as requested, to 
provide the public with information concerning the response of MFRA 
during the recent floods. 

 
c) The Chair of the Authority write to relevant Ministers and MP’s, to 

highlight the involvement of MFRA in the response to the recent floods; 
and highlighting the potential impact that continuing cuts to the 
Authority’s budget may have on its ability to respond to such incidents in 
the future.  

 
 

8. Joint Emergency Services Interoperability Programme (JESIP) 
Consolidation Exercise  
 
Members considered Report CFO/024/14 of the Chief Fire Officer, concerning 
the hosting of the Joint Emergency Services Interoperability Programme 
(JESIP) consolidation exercise, by Merseyside Fire & Rescue Authority.  
 
Members were informed that the date of the exercise has now been moved to 
18th September 2014.  
 
Members were also provided with a brief update on the progress of the Joint 
Control Centre.  
 
Members resolved that the contents of the report be noted.  
 
 

9. Appointment Of The Uniformed Principal Officers Into CFOA Lead Roles  
 
Members considered Report CFO/028/14 of the Chief Fire Officer, concerning 
the appointment of the Chief Fire Officer (CFO) as the Chief Fire Officers 
Association (CFOA) strategic lead for National Resilience; and the Deputy Chief 
Fire Officer (DCFO) as the strategic lead for Children and Young People (CYP).  
 
Members were informed of the extensive work undertaken within MFRA working 
with Children and Young People and that the Authority continue to lead the way 
in this area.  
 
It was moved by Cllr Maloney and seconded by Cllr Mahon that the CFO and 
DCFO should be congratulated for these high profile positions.  
 
Members Resolved that: 
 

a) The appointments be noted. 
 

b) The officers be congratulated on these high profile appointments.  
  
 
 
 
 

Page 5



5. National Sprinkler Week 2014  
 
Members were provided with a presentation by Station Manager Andy Groom, 
concerning the Sprinkler Symposium held at the Training & Development 
Academy, for private local landlords within Merseyside, in support of the Chief 
Fire Officers Association (CFOA) National Sprinkler Week. 
 
The presentation provided Members with clips of the live demonstration 
provided at the event, which demonstrated how sprinkler systems can reduce 
the impact of fire.  
 
Members were informed that the presentation has also been shared with 
housing associations. 
 
Questions were raised by Members concerning the cost of fitting sprinkler 
systems and insurance for properties fitted with sprinkler systems. 
 
Members then considered Report CFO/030/14 of the Deputy Chief Fire Officer, 
concerning the activities undertaken on Merseyside in support of the CFOA 
National Sprinkler Week.  
 
Members Resolved that: 
 

a) The positive outcomes from National Sprinkler Week, in particular the 
Sprinkler Symposium and the next steps for working with stakeholder to 
retrofit sprinkler systems in purpose built blocks of flats be noted.  
 

b) Their thanks be conveyed to SM Andy Groom and all other staff involved 
in the activities during National Sprinkler Week. 

 
 

10. Service Plan 2014/15  
 
Members considered Report CFO/027/14 of the Deputy Chief Fire Officer, 
concerning the Service Delivery Plan for 2014/15.  
 
Members were provided with an overview of the Service Plan for 2014/15, which 
highlighted changes to the performance indictors in terms of focusing more on 
outcomes rather than outputs; and proposed changes to the way in which 
performance will be reported back to Members for scrutiny.  
 
Members were notified of a change to one of the Equality Objectives contained 
within the Plan, concerning recruitment of female and minority ethnic individuals. 
The change was made to ensure that the objective reflects the Authority’s 
commitment to promoting the Fire and Rescue Service as a career and 
encouraging applications from such individuals, whilst ensuring that the person 
appointed is the best person for the role.  
 
The Deputy Chief Fire Officer also provided an overview of performance against 
the current Plan; and explained measures taken to address any areas of under 
performance. 

Page 6



 
Members welcomed the changes to the Plans for 2014/15 and the Equality 
Objectives.  
 
Members Resolved that: 
 

a) The Service Delivery Plan for 2014/15, be approved. 
 

b) The Service Delivery Plan for 2014/15, be published on the Authority’s 
Website. 

 
 

11. District and Station Community Safety Plans 2014/15  
 
Members considered Report CFO/034/14 of the Deputy Chief Fire Officer, 
concerning the District Community Safety Plans for 2014/15, which reflect an 
inclusive approach to planning on Districts that has involved a wide range of 
staff and stakeholders. 
 
Members were provided with copies of the Equality Impact Assessments for 
each District, in support of this report.  
 
The Deputy Chief Fire Officer provided Members with an overview of the Plans 
and the work undertaken alongside partners to ensure that the Plans represent 
the key priorities for each District. Changes made to the Plans, such as the 
inclusion of information concerning the demographics of the District; and contact 
details for key members of staff, were also highlighted.  
 
Members thanked all involved in the production of the Plans.  
 
Members Resolved that: 
 
The District Community Plans for 2014/15, be approved for publication on the 
Authority’s Website and distribution to stakeholders and partners.  

 
 
 

12. External Funding for  Prevention and Road Safety  
 
Members considered Report CFO/029/14 of the Deputy Chief Fire Officer, 
concerning the current provision of external funding received by the Authority to 
deliver community safety related outcomes across each District of Merseyside.  
 
It was highlighted to Members that for every pound the Authority provides to the 
Fire Support Network to deliver community related activities, the Fire Support 
Network manage to secure an extra £5 in funding to support these activities.  
 
Members were also informed that some staff, particularly those delivering youth 
engagement programmes, rely on external funding to fund their posts.  
As avenues for funding reduce, several members of staff have been placed at 
risk of redundancy until funding can be secured.  

Page 7



 
The Chair of the Committee requested that all Members try to identify and 
secure funding within their local authorities, to enable the continuation of 
community safety activities.  
 
Members Resolved that: 
 
The contents of the report, in particular the risk to the sustainability of funding 
provision and the work undertaken to mitigate the risk, be noted. 
 
 

13. Prosecutions Update  
 
Members considered Report CFO/035/14 of the Deputy Chief Fire Officer, 
concerning the enforcement and prosecution activity carried out by Merseyside 
Fire & Rescue Authority (MFRA) Protection Department throughout 2013.  
 
Members were provided with an overview of the report; and raised several 
questions in relation to evidence captured at premises and the use of CCTV and 
body camera’s; the recovery of costs in relation to prosecutions; and how we 
work with partners during enforcement and prosecution activities.  
 
Members also suggested that officers look into the possibility of providing 
training to judges and magistrates, to try to ensure that the Authority are 
awarded the maximum costs possible when prosecution cases are considered.  
 
Members Resolved that: 
 
The positive impact that the Authority has had on the safety of the communities 
of Merseyside, whilst carrying out its statutory function as the enforcing 
Authority, be noted. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
Close 
 
Date of next meeting Annual General Meeting 26th June 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed:_____________________   Date:______________ 
 

Page 8



MERSEYSIDE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY 
 

MEETING OF THE: AUTHORITY 

DATE: 29 JULY 2014 REPORT NO: CFO/048/14 

PRESENTING 
OFFICER 

DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER: 

KIERAN TIMMINS 
 

REPORT 
AUTHOR: 

KIERAN 
TIMMINS 

OFFICERS 
CONSULTED: 

STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT GROUP 

TITLE OF REPORT: WIRRAL YOUTH ZONE 

 

APPENDICES: APPENDIX A:  
APPENDIX A(1) 
APPENDIX B 
APPENDIX C 

BUSINESS PLAN 
APPENDICES TO BUSINESS PLAN 
MAP OF BIRKENHEAD SITE 
INDEPENDENT VALUATION 

 
 

Purpose of Report 

 
1. To request Members confirm their previous decision to transfer land freed up at 

the Birkenhead fire station site to support the creation of a Youth Zone. 
 

Recommendation 

 

2. It is recommended that Members agree the transfer of land in principle to support 
the Youth Zone subject to :- 
 
a. An appropriate company being set up. 

 
b. The project funding be finalised and the Business Plan staying broadly in line 

with that detailed within Appendix A. 
 

c. A lease being agreed. This being based on a peppercorn rent. 
 

d. Finalised agreement being reached on how the fire station and Youth Zone will 
work closely together on the shared visions and aims around youth 
engagement and support. 

 
e. The provision of a designated Youth Engagement space being created for 

Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service within the Youth Zone. 
 

Introduction and Background 

 
3. Members will recall that in building Birkenhead PFI station, a reasonably sized 

plot of land was freed up as shown in Appendix B. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 9



4. The Authority was approached by Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council in 2010 
to see if that land might be available to create a “Youth Zone”.  Wirral officers 
and Members have visited Toxteth Firefit, and other similar facilities, and 
wanted to create an equivalent offer for the young people of Wirral.  The 
Birkenhead site was considered ideal in terms of a neutral location, and having 
good transport links. 
 

5. Members will be aware that the Authority works well with all the districts to 
maximise the value of the assets in public ownership and improve the overall 
services for the community it serves. Currently, for example, Wirral Metropolitan 
Borough Council are supporting the Authority in identifying a suitable site in 
west Wirral for the West Kirby with Upton station merger proposal.  
 

6. The Authority agreed in principle to transfer the land to support such a project 
(CFO/182/10). 
 

7. Wirral have been working with a charity called “OnSide” who provide a 
comprehensive consultancy service in the development of high quality facilities 
and delivery of young people’s projects. OnSide has its origins in the nationally 
acclaimed Bolton Lads’ and Girls’ Club, and has now built another 5 successful 
Youth Zones across the North West. 
 

8. Wirral and OnSide have set up a Shadow Board chaired by John Syvret of 
Cammell Laird, and includes representatives from Peel, Bibby Shipping, Wirral 
Borough Council and the Authority.  So far, £3m capital funding has been 
identified, with the results of further bids awaited.  The “OnSide” model is to set 
up a Charitable Company to build, own and manage the Youth Zone (similar to 
the model for the Firefit Hub). 
 

9. The Shadow Board has consulted with local young people and developed a 
brand/name for the centre of “The Hive”.  The next stage for the project is to 
conduct a design competition to design a building that meets the needs and 
aspirations of the local young people.  The Shadow Board have asked that the 
Authority confirm their decision from 2010 to give them enough certainty to feed 
into that design competition and allow it to proceed. 
 

10. The final transfer of land can only take place to the Charitable Company once 
this has been set up.  It is expected that the transfer would be a long term lease 
on a “peppercorn” rent, with strict covenants/controls about how the land is 
used. They would operate as a protection of the Authority’s interest in the land 
in the unlikely event of a fundamental failure of the Youth Zone project. 
 

11. In recognition of the contribution from the Authority, it is accepted that both 
organisations would work together to maximise the impact on services for 
young people and for the site to work as a “campus”.  The gym would be 
branded as “Firefit”.  Further details of the partnership opportunities are set out 
in page 20 of Appendix A to this report. In particular it has been agreed in 
principle that the company when formed will work with the Authority to deliver 
Prince’s Trust (and potentially our other youth engagement programmes) in 
support of the youth zone by utilising its rooms and facilities.    

Page 10



 
12. The current Business Plan for the Youth Zone is set out in Appendix A. 

 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

 
13. The location of the Youth Zone has been chosen to maximise services to all 

young people in Wirral. 
 

Staff Implications 

 
14. None specifically arising from this report. 
 

Legal Implications 

 
15. A lease of land would need to be agreed between Wirral Metropolitan Borough 

Council and the Authority so this is not a donation of land. This can only be 
achieved once the Company has been set up formally and appropriate 
applications made to the Charities Commission. The completion of the lease 
would also only be expected when all other elements of the project are in place 
(e.g. full funding and agreed operational aspects) In addition a joint venture or 
partnership agreement may be beneficial to establish how the two 
organisations can work effectively together to best serve the young people of 
Wirral. 
 

16. A further report will need to be submitted to Members when the Company and 
Charitable status has been established for final approval. 
 

Financial Implications & Value for Money 

 
17. If the Authority chose not to support the project, it might realise a capital receipt 

from the sale of the land.  An independent valuation is being obtained and is 
attached as appendix C. This valuation indicated that the land is estimated to 
be worth £250,000 based upon:- 

• a Freehold interest in the subject site  

• with the benefit of full vacant possession 

• Planning Permission for Non-food retail and fast-food restaurant/drive-
through for development  

• And allowing 9 months for marketing. 
 
Planning permission has not been sought by the Authority at this time. 

 
18. The proposal is based upon transferring the land instead on a ‘peppercorn  

rent’ to the charitable company that will run the youth zone 
 

Risk Management, Health & Safety, and Environmental Implications 

 
19. None specifically arising from this report. 
 
 

Page 11



Contribution to Our Mission: Safer Stronger Communities – Safe Effective Firefighters 

 
20. The concept of a youth zone is identical to the model that the Authority has 

developed at Toxteth.  Such centres act as hubs for positive interventions with 
young people and for diversionary activity from antisocial behaviour.  The Firefit 
hub in Toxteth, for example, focuses work in south Liverpool during the 
mischief night/bonfire night period that has helped reduce the incidence of fire. 
The close relationship developed with fire crews helps change perceptions of 
young people, reduce attacks on firefighters and engage with the potential 
workforce of the future.  Agreement in Principle has been reached that a 
Princes Trust programme will be run from the youth zone. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

  
 CFO/182/10 
 

RESIDUAL LAND RELEASED AS PART OF THE PRIVATE FINANCE 
INITIATIVE PROJECT   (Previous report on this subject.) 
 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

  
   
 
 

Page 12



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Wirral Youth Zone 

 

 

Business Plan 

 

 

April 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CFO/048/14

Page 13



2 

 

Contents  

 

1. Executive Summary 

 

2. Organisational Summary 

 

3. Project Background and Origins 

 

4. Over-Arching Strategic Context 

 

5. Need for a New World Class Youth Facility 

 

6. Vision 

 

7. The Impact of OnSide Youth Zones 

 

8. Capital Delivery 

 

9. Project Delivery 

 

10. Partnership Delivery 

 

11. Financial Planning 

 

12. Risk Analysis 

 

13. Marketing and Communications Strategy 

 

14. Appendices 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14



3 

 

1. Executive Summary 

Introduction 

This document outlines the plans for the development of Wirral Youth Zone, an iconic, 21st Century 

youth facility, located in Birkenhead, which will engage and inspire young people, aged 8-19 (up to 25 

for young people with disabilities) from across Wirral by offering access to high quality sports, arts, 

leisure and recreational activities and targeted support programmes aimed at changing the lives of its 

members including the most vulnerable and disadvantaged. 

 

The vision for Wirral Youth Zone is ‘a world class facility at the heart of the town centre which will 

allow young people to express themselves and participate in positive activities’. 

The project has been identified and driven by local community need and in recognition of decades of 

under investment in youth provision at a national level. 

 

This document was produced by OnSide Youth Zones in partnership with Wirral Council and 

Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service (MF&RS) and is the current version of an Operating Business Plan 

for Wirral Youth Zone, which outlines the pre-development and construction phases, alongside the 

operation of the facility, the vision, impact and sustainability strategy. 

 

Wirral Youth Zone will provide an opportunity for MF&RS to build on its community work, particularly 

with local young people, in furtherance of its mission: Safer Stronger Communities – Safe Effective 

Firefighters. 

 

Facility Overview 

 

The Youth Zone will offer a universal service providing a wide range of positive, constructive and 

enjoyable activities to help young people make better use of their leisure time, alongside a range of 

targeted information, advice and guidance services to help young people deal with the challenges they 

will face throughout their lives. 

 

The Youth Zone will contain a wide range of facilities including: 

 

· A multi-use 3G outdoor pitch 

· A four court indoor sports hall 

· A sizeable climbing wall  

· Dance studio, martial arts/boxing room, a fully equipped cardio/weights gym  

· Café and chill out zone 

· A number of adaptable spaces for sports, performing and creative arts and a host of other 

activities   

 

Strategic Context  

 

This Business Plan illustrates how Wirral Youth Zone will contribute to addressing local and national 

strategic priorities. The project is a partnership between OnSide Youth Zones, Wirral Council and 

Merseyside Fire and Rescue service, the local business community and young people which has gained 

momentum as a result of the initial development, feasibility and consultation work undertaken by the 

partners. 

 

More locally, the plan illustrates the alignment between OnSide Youth Zones, Wirral Council and 

Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service. 

Page 15



4 

 

 

The documents outlines the relationships between the organisations and highlights the key partners, 

stakeholders and beneficiaries of the Youth Zone, its facilities, activities and programmes. The existing 

relationships will be further strengthened as the Youth Zone progresses towards becoming 

operational, which will ensure the future growth and sustainability of the facility for generations of 

young people across the Wirral. 

 

Critical Factors for Success 

 

· Confirmation of the availability of the land for the project by Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority 

in accordance with the project timeline and funding requirements  

 

· Acquisition of the total capital funding required to deliver the project 

 

Capital Delivery 

There is a robust and comprehensive plan for the design and construction of the Wirral Youth Zone 

which involves all project partners and will ensure the delivery of a 21st century facility finished and 

equipped to high standards, on time and within a fixed budget. 

 

Financial Viability 

 

The Financial Plan section of the document includes a detailed analysis of the operational expenditure, 

predicted income and growth of the Youth Zone over a 5 year period. 

 

The financial model is based on the proven successful template used by the existing OnSide Youth 

Zones network.  

 

The operational costs of the facility will be met annually through local private sector patrons, public 

sector contributions (Local Authority) and income generated from young people’s annual membership 

fees and payments made per visit. Additional income will be generated through limited an compatible 

room hire to external organisations and sales of food and beverages from the Youth Zone café. 

2. Organisational Summary 

OnSide Youth Zones is a registered charity that facilitates the development and delivery of world class 

Youth Zones, which are a vital resource for young people. Our vision is to provide every town and city 

in the UK with quality, safe and affordable facilities for young people. OnSide Youth Zones was 

established in 2008. The charity was the creation of Bill Holroyd CBE, former Chair of Bolton Lads and 

Girls Club (BLGC) and Jerry Glover MBE who had been the Chief Executive at BLGC for 32 years.  During 

his tenure as Chair, Bill realised that other towns and cities would clearly benefit from a first class 

facility like Bolton. It was this vision that inspired Bill to develop OnSide and spearhead the roll-out of 

the Youth Zone ‘model’ across the region. 

 

To date, OnSide has successfully designed, built and resourced five Youth Zones. The Youth Zones are 

located in areas specifically selected for their geographical location and strategic reach into 

disadvantaged communities. The original Bolton Lads & Girls Club (BLGC) has now been joined by the 

Youth Zones located in Blackburn, Carlisle, Manchester, Oldham and Wigan. 

 

OnSide’s plan is to replicate the Youth Zone model in further towns/cities by 2016, as part of a longer 

term goal to open 20 Youth Zones by 2020 nationally. Wirral and Wolverhampton are planned to open 

in 2016 with further facilities to follow in Preston, London, Chester and the North East. 

Page 16



5 

 

3. Project Background & Origins 

Located in an area of significant social and economic need, it is proposed (subject to the support of 

the Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority) that Wirral Youth Zone be built on Exmouth St, Birkenhead 

adjacent to the new Fire Station and scheduled to open early 2016. Merseyside Fire and Rescue 

Authority is being asked to donate the land on a 125 year lease without premium and with a 

peppercorn rent. These are the terms on which the land has been provided for the other OnSide Youth 

Zones in the network.    

 

Wirral Council are fully committed to the project (having pledged a £2m capital contribution and 

£400,000 annual revenue contribution); an ideal site has been identified; and a local champion 

recruited: the Chief Executive of Cammell Laird, John Syvret.  The strong progress made in Wirral has 

enabled us to secure £3.3 million of the total capital required at this stage of development.   

 

Wirral Youth Zone will operate in accordance with OnSide’s model of best practice and will be 

established as an independent charity with John Syvret as its Chair. The charity will be supported by a 

private sector-led board, strong management team, dedicated and highly qualified team of staff and 

an army of volunteers who together will ensure the sustainability of the facility for the young people 

of Wirral. 

 

Some of the key features of our Youth Zones that we intend to replicate at Wirral Youth Zone include:  

· Town centre location  

· A purpose built facility – constructed and equipped to the highest standards 

· A universal service providing a wide range of positive, constructive and enjoyable activities to help 

young people make better use of their leisure time, alongside a range of targeted information, 

advice and guidance services to help young people deal with the challenges they will face in their 

lives 

· A service accessible and affordable by all (£5 annual membership & 50p per visit); with a clear focus 

on disadvantaged groups 

· Young people only (never dual use) and fully inclusive – in terms of gender, ethnicity and ability 

· Open 7 nights a week until 10pm; all day weekends and school holidays 

· Between 2,000 and 3,000 young people visiting each week 

· More than 100 active volunteers 

· Creation of over 50 paid employment positions 

· An active partnership between the council, the fire service, private and voluntary sectors 

· A sustainable revenue-funding model requiring only a minority contribution to its running costs 

from the public sector 

· The Youth Zone will be open during the day (outside the core hours for young people) to offer 

activities around employability and training, which will maximise the benefits of the facility for the 

wider community 

 

 

(Further details of the Youth Zone network opening hours and sessions programme are enclosed in 

Appendix J and K). 

Page 17



6 

 

The project has been driven by local need for the facility and we have chosen to locate Wirral Youth 

Zone in Birkenhead because of the 

high levels of deprivation (Map 1) 

in the area, although the building 

will be open to young people from 

across the peninsula. All of 

Birkenhead’s Lower Super Output 

Areas (LSOA) are within the bottom 

3% most deprived in the country. 

(Source: Index of Multiple 

Deprivation 2010).   

Wirral Youth Zone will be used by 

young people drawn from across 

the peninsula, giving them 

unprecedented access to state of 

the art sporting, artistic, 

recreational, learning and leisure 

facilities. The Youth Zone will 

employ a rich staffing resource with skills in employability, enterprise, targeted support and 

community engagement designed to raise the aspirations of young people.  

The Youth Zone will create over 50 new posts, from full time senior management roles through to 

sessional workers, coaches and operations teams; some key posts include: General Manager, 

Administration Manager, GM Private Sector, Youth Work Manager (see Appendix E for Job 

Descriptions). The wider economic benefits will be felt by the construction sector and increased trade 

to local businesses surrounding the facility.  

The timescale for the construction phase of the Youth Zone is 14 months, with a pre and post launch 

phase either side of this.  

4. Over-Arching Strategic Context 

Wirral Youth Zone will have a strategic impact and help to achieve a number of key local and national 

indicators relating to children and young people, focused around education, employability, crime, 

health and well-being. The development will have a significant impact upon the following national and 

local Government policy areas: 

 

· Cabinet Office – Positive About Youth Strategy 

· Department for Culture, Media and Sport/Sport England – Youth Sport Strategy – ‘Creating a 

Sporting Habit for Life’ 

· Wirral Council - Health and Well-Being Strategy 

· Wirral Strategic Partnership – Wirral Sustainable Community Strategy – ‘ Wirral 2025 - More Equal, 

More Prosperous’ 

 

The development of Wirral Youth Zone has also taken into consideration the key aims and priorities 

outlined within Wirral Council’s Children and Young People’s Plan 2013-16; and will play a significant 

role in supporting the local authority to achieve key performance targets contained within the plan. 

 

Page 18



7 

 

The vision of the Children and Young People’s plan is: “To enable Wirral’s children, young people and 

families to access services quickly in order to be secure, healthy, have fun and achieve their full 

potential.” Wirral Youth Zone will assist Wirral Council in delivering the vision by offering 

comprehensive, accessible, affordable, exciting and high quality youth provision that allows young 

people to enjoy new experiences and activities that will develop their interests, skills and social 

networks in a safe environment, which encourages them to adopt lifelong positive behaviours and 

improve their overall health and well-being; and enables them to achieve their full potential. 

 

A key aspect of Wirral 2025 – the Sustainable Communities Plan focuses on the “Life Chances for 

Wirral’s Children and Young People” and narrowing the socio-economic disparities between young 

people from the most deprived parts of the borough and those from less disadvantaged areas. Wirral 

Youth Zone will play a key role in helping to eliminate disparities around employment, health and life 

expectancy by giving the most vulnerable young people the same advantages as their peers. The Youth 

Zone will deliver a diverse range of leisure, recreational and developmental activities that will offer 

new opportunities and experiences, many focused around arts, sports and music that will allow young 

people to learn, develop their personal and career interests; and become active, contributing citizens 

who are able to make a difference in their local community. 

 

The Youth Zone will also complement the mission and work of our partner, Merseyside Fire and 

Rescue Service (MF&RS) in creating Safer Stronger Communities – Safe Effective Firefighters, as the 

building and activities will offer a positive alternative option for the most disengaged and vulnerable 

young people. Please refer to section 10 for further details on the partnership with MF&RS. 

5. Need for a New World Class Youth Facility 

The need for a world class facility for young people in Birkenhead, Wirral is in response to recognition 

of decades of under investment in youth provision at a national level. 

 

Wirral is an area of sharp contrasts; whilst many residents enjoy a good quality of life, certain parts of 

the borough experience significant levels of deprivation. Wirral is currently ranked the 60th most 

deprived local authority area in England. This ranking would be worse but for the relative prosperity 

of the rural areas. Urban areas including Birkenhead and Bidston have some of the highest levels of 

social and economic deprivation on the peninsula and across England. 

 

Particular areas of severe deprivation include Birkenhead/Tranmere and Bidston/St James wards, 

which are the 4th and 3rd most employment deprived areas in England (Source: IMD 2010). 

Wirral has the second highest concentration of worklessness in disadvantaged communities in 

England. 7.7% of young people aged 18-24 are claiming Job Seekers Allowance (JSA) in Wirral 

compared with 5.9% in the North West and 5.1% in Great Britain respectively (Source: NOMIS, 

November 2013). Nationally, 15.1% of young people aged 16-18 are not in education, employment or 

training (NEET), rising in some of the most deprived areas in Wirral to concentrations of 17% (Wirral 

Economic Profile, September 2013).  

In partnership Wirral Council and OnSide have consulted young people in Birkenhead about the plans 

for the Youth Zone over the last 12 months through the local Youth Development Group. The group 

are assisting with the branding, building design and communications plan for the facility. 

 

As part of this process a group of 40 young people from Birkenhead visited Wigan Youth Zone, which 

allowed them to investigate what their building might look like and the type of activities it could offer. 

Page 19



8 

 

Feedback from the visit was very positive: “When I first heard about the Youth Zone, I was a bit cynical, 

after seeing it (Wigan) I think young people will travel to use a facility like this”. 

 

Young people informed us that current youth provision isn’t meeting their needs; and agreed that the 

proposed Youth Zone in Birkenhead will “benefit young people by keeping them off the street, giving 

them something to look forward to after school, help young people get jobs, meet new people and 

make friends and learn new skills”. 

 

Our initial investigations have identified clear gaps in provision; and that the needs of the most 

vulnerable young people in particular are not being met. The Youth Zone model will address these 

disparities and support Wirral Council in their commitment to improving the lives of young people in 

the most disadvantaged communities. The project will support the local authority to achieve their key 

priority for ensuring that young people are involved in shaping local services, as outlined within their 

Children and Young People’s Plan as this leads to increased participation in youth provision and 

ultimately within the Youth Zone. 

 

As part of the project development work, OnSide in partnership with Wirral Council have undertaken 

broader consultation and briefings with young people and local communities across Wirral. Together 

the partnership is working closely with local youth organisations including Leasowe Community 

Development Trust and Wirral Metropolitan College; to ensure the most appropriate services are 

delivered within Wirral Youth Zone; and a joined up and enhanced approach to meeting the needs of 

all young people across the peninsula. 

 

Youth Zones constitute a unique and proven model, which are vital in supporting young people’s 

personal development and ensuring they become fully functional members of society. With the 

decline of other youth facilities and activities across Wirral there is a danger of increasing existing 

socio-economic problems including anti-social and offending behaviour, substance misuse and 

unemployment; which will have a negative impact on young people, the local community and the 

economic regeneration of Birkenhead and the wider Wirral area. 

 

The impact of the constructive use of their leisure time has significant and long-term positive impacts 

for young people, helping them develop personal and emotional skills including: confidence, 

aspiration, team-working and social skills. Participation improves relationships with adults, peers, 

parents and teachers, which translates into other areas of their lives including educational attainment 

and employment goals; and the ability to realise their personal and career ambitions. This allows the 

most vulnerable and disengaged young people to experience the same opportunities and advantages 

as their peers from less deprived backgrounds and lead much more inclusive, healthier and fulfilling 

lives. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



9 

 

We know there is a demand for Youth Zones and their activities from analysis of the current 

membership across the existing Youth Zone network. OnSide currently engage with over 20,000 young 

people across North West of England, as illustrated below. 

February 14 
Date 

opened 

Member

s 

Gender: 

% 

female 

BME % 

 

Disability 

declared 

% 

Senior % 

(13-19 

yrs) 

Volunteers 

 

Blackburn Jun 2012 2093 40% 28% 3% 40% 118 

Bolton 1889 3949 40% 19% 6% 55% 259 

Carlisle Jun 2011 1304 33% 1% 0% 29% 52 

Manchester Feb 2012 2376 40% 44% 4% 56% 77 

Oldham Mar 2012 2029 43% 27% 10% 38% 167 

Wigan Jun 2013 8254 45% 3% 2% 49% 111 

Total (or Average) 20,005 42% 16% 4% 48% 784 

 

The Youth Zone network aims to generate and maintain long-term positive habits (sport, art, 

education, and lifestyle) and counter the culture that young people in deprived communities may have 

been born in to. Wirral Youth Zone will deliver employability and enterprise training programmes, 

which will improve confidence, raise aspirations and enable disadvantaged young people to identify 

and pursue realistic education and career goals. The Youth Zone will support young people living in 

Birkenhead and adjacent deprived communities to develop the skills, resilience and networks required 

to access and sustain quality employment opportunities and thrive as adults. 

6. Vision 

The vision for Wirral Youth Zone is ‘a world class facility at the heart of the town centre which will 

allow young people to express themselves and participate in positive activities’. Through such a 

facility, we are ‘investing in young people . . . . . investing in the future’. 

 

Wirral Youth Zone will provide young people with: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Somewhere 

to Go 

Something 

to Do 

Someone to 

Talk to 

Page 21



10 

 

 

 

The legacy for Wirral will be an iconic facility, at the heart of the local community, providing a focus 

for current and future generations of young people. 

 

7. The Impact of OnSide Youth Zones 

 

Membership & participation 

 

As demonstrated in section 5, the OnSide Youth Zone network is currently touching the lives of 20,000 

young people across the North West of England.  

 

Recently, OnSide took part in an extensive analysis exercise, in partnership with Aimia Consulting. This 

exercise interrogated our membership and participation data across the network in order to reveal 

significant trends and inform the effectiveness and targeting of our services. 

 

Each site was interrogated in isolation, with results presented on both an individual and aggregated 

basis. 

 

The effectiveness of targeting young people from areas of deprivation; 

 

The OnSide Youth Zone network aims to ensure that 

young people from disadvantaged areas surrounding the 

Zones are accessing the facility. In order to assess this, 

we collect and analyse the postcode data; tracking both 

membership and active participation.   

 

The map here illustrates the distribution of members 

across the Oldham region (for Mahdlo Youth Zone) 

which enables us to measure the extent to which a Youth 

Zone is accessed by young people from deprived areas. 

This analysis drives action, as the Youth Zone can clearly 

identify any underrepresented areas and target that 

area through schools campaigns, local recruitment 

drives and outreach work.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 1: Mahdlo Youth Zone membership distribution 

33% live 

within a 

mile 

More visits 

from the 

most 

deprived 

areas 

Page 22



11 

 

The value of our volunteers 

 

Volunteers from the local community support us with an average of two to four hours per week of 

their time.  Last year this added up to over 60,000 hours.  Using the Community Development 

Foundation hourly rate of £11.09, this army of volunteers has provided the Youth Zones with time 

valued at over £665,000. We currently have 650 active volunteers across the network; and last year 

saw 57 move into employment as a direct result of volunteering with us. 

 

Outcomes & Evidence 
 

MISSION 

Our mission is to create a safe, affordable and inspirational place for young people to go to in their 

leisure time.  Once through the door of an OnSide Youth Zone, our programmes and services help 

develop confident young people who go on to make purposeful decisions about their own lives.  

 

SERVICES 

General services for all 

An OnSide Youth Zone is open to all young people in the area.  Everyone can access a range of many 

different activities including sports, arts and music. Providing a safe and inspirational place for young 

people to go is simply and intuitively a good idea.  An OnSide Youth Zone provides this in deprived 

areas of the country, where often the alternative for the young people is simply spending evenings on 

the streets or being isolated in their bedrooms surfing the internet.  Taking an average session 

attendance of two hours, Youth Zones have taken young people ‘off the streets’ and engaged in 

positive activity for over one million hours. 

 

Targeted support and programs  

Within each Youth Zone there are programmes that target young people in need and provide 

leadership opportunities, volunteering opportunities, enterprise, and help finding a job.  Details of 

these programmes are summarised below.  

 

OUTCOMES 

Outcomes for the Community 

Ø At a recent meeting, three members of the Harpurhey Police Community Support Officer team 

confirmed that since the Onside Youth Zone in Manchester (‘The Factory’) opened there had been 

a dramatic reduction in calls for police to attend incidents of arson attacks, stone throwing, 

jumping on cars, etc., on Friday and Saturday nights in the area.  We are currently implementing a 

pilot project in Mahdlo Youth Zone with a focus on impact measurement. The purpose of this 

project is to measure the impact of participation at a Youth Zone on a young person’s aspirations, 

outcomes and life experience. Upon successful completion the project will be rolled out across the 

network, providing us with further scope to systematically collect and analyse external crime 

statistics to corroborate verbal reports such as these, and quantify the impact of the Youth Zones 

on youth crime. 

Ø Superintendent Vanessa Jardine, North Manchester Police Division, recently stated, in relation to 

The Factory Youth Zone in Harpurhey, that “The Factory is a fantastic place for young people. 

Policing is all about community.  The Factory is a community for young people and so we are in 

effect actually giving the money to policing”. 

Ø Blackburn Town Centre Sergeant, Nick Everett, has reported that anti-social behaviour has 

markedly decreased in and around the town centre as a result of the Youth Zone and partnership 

working around individual young people known to them.  He also commended the impact of our 

detached programme on engaging young people who spend their time on the streets of the town 

centre. 

Page 23



12 

 

Ø In summer 2012, Tim Forber, the Chief Superintendent Divisional Commander for Oldham, 

reported that the opening of the Youth Zone in Oldham (Mahdlo) had impacted on the quarterly 

year-on-year statistics for the borough where anti-social behaviour involving young people had 

dropped by 30% and young people being victims of street crime had dropped by 40%. 

 

Outcomes for Individuals 

 

Young people coming through the door of a Youth Zone is, of course, a vital pre-requisite for having 

an impact on their lives and delivering outcomes for them.   We currently measure a core set of 

attendance, profile and frequency data to ensure we know that the Youth Zone is a place that young 

people want to come to.  This enables each Youth Zone to identify operational improvements and 

review their performance over time.  OnSide draws this data together to create a collective dataset of 

all Youth Zone activity.  This enables each Youth Zone to benchmark itself against other Youth Zones.  

Core data consists of: 

1. Demographic data (age, gender, post code) 

2. Attendance (numbers, regularity, frequency) 

3. Popularity / Frequency of specific programmes and activities 

 

Once through the door, we must deliver services that are beneficial for young people, and to 

understand how this happens we are articulating a Theory of Change for the OnSide Youth Zones, 

which will allow us to measure key elements of the model that represent important short, interim 

and long term outcomes for young people.  Some of these outcomes are delivered through the 

general provision of services and others are delivered by targeted programmes.  

 

Universal activity programme 

OnSide Youth Zones deliver a universal activity programme which ensures that all young people feel 

safe, welcome and equal. All activity is based around the philosophy of ‘how can we make tonight 

better than last night’ and we commit to deliver: 

· 20 inspiring activities each session, including sports, arts and personal development 

· Buildings that create interest: whose internal connectivity encourages young people to get 

involved in new activities  

· Paid workers who are experts in their field and supported by an ‘army’ of volunteers 

· A ‘try, train, team’ approach to sports and the arts – barriers to accessing new sporting and 

arts based activities are removed; all the kit and instruction is provided by the Youth Zones, 

meaning young people can step in to try new activities without any previous knowledge or 

experience 

· Residentials and other off site trips to boost confidence and broaden horizons 

 

Universal inclusive provision delivered through the Youth Zone environment creates a safe 

atmosphere, which cultivates positive relationships, engages young people in an active lifestyles; and 

generates new skills and positive relationships with peers and staff. This environment increases 

positive outcomes for each young person engaged with a youth zone. 

All young people are welcome at our Youth Zones, regardless of gender, ability, faith or ethnicity. Our 

approach includes outreach in local communities to identify and engage young people and the 

removal of financial or physical barriers to participation, for example Wigan Youth Zone has brokered 

a partnership with a local coach company to transport young people from the furthest parts of the 

borough to and from the facility. 

 

Page 24



13 

 

Targeted Programmes 

 

OnSide Youth Zones each operate specialist sessions targeting identified areas of real need within 

their surrounding communities. 

 

Since opening, the Youth Zones have impacted the lives of young people 

Blackburn 

Health 

related 

projects: 

86 

Sexual 

exploitation 

work: 556 

contacts 

Looked 

after 

children: 

81 

Targeted 

young people 

in troubled 

families: 20 

Young 

Leaders 

programme: 

40 

YZ on the 

street 

programme: 

30 

Bolton 

Health 

related 

projects: 

941 

Accredited 

outcomes: 

277 

Mentoring: 

223  

Enterprise & 

Employability: 

597 

Young 

Carers  

54 

Outreach 

programme: 

1075 

Carlisle 

Health 

related 

projects: 

360 

Inclusion 

project: 

223 

Residential 

off site 

breaks: 

219 

Enterprise & 

Employability: 

350 

Peer system 

vulnerable 

young 

people: 27 

Referrals 

received 

from the 

CJS: 6 

Manchester  

Health 

related 

projects: 

288 

Inclusion 

project: 

167 

Looked 

after 

children: 

35 

Enterprise & 

Employability: 

94 

Young 

Leaders 

programme: 

35 

Mentoring: 

43 

Oldham 

Health 

related 

projects: 

410 

Structured 

counselling: 

62 

Looked 

after 

children: 

55 

Enterprise & 

Employability: 

40 

Young 

Leaders 

programme: 

44 

Outreach 

programme: 

235 

Wigan 

(open 3 

months) 

Health 

related 

projects: 

382 

Off site 

activities 

for YDP: 45 

Looked 

after 

children: 

22 

Enterprise & 

Employability: 

309 

Informal 

learning: 

168 

Conversion 

via outreach 

work: 148 

 

The aim of targeted programmes within OnSide Youth Zones  

Ø The core aim of the Young Leaders Programme is to maximise the potential of young people via a 

volunteering programme.  Volunteering acts as a mechanism to develop knowledge, experiences 

and enthusiasm for work and community contribution. Currently 119 young people are trained as 

Young Leaders. This is an on-going project across the Youth Zone network. 

Ø Within the Enterprise Programme an on-site specialist Youth Worker helps older members 

understand their barriers to work and overcome them, with the ultimate aim of securing 

sustainable employment: almost 700 young people have been reached through this programme to 

date and it is set to expand further with the benefit of a recent Accenture grant. 

Ø Outreach/street sessions are undertaken on key evenings across the region, engaging with young 

people who choose to use their leisure time less constructively.  This type of targeted outreach 

sees 60% of young people engaged go on to become members of their local Youth Zone. 

Ø Mentoring is one-to-one support for young people in need, matched with a fully trained adult 

volunteer.  Over a period of a year they work together to deal with the issue the young person has, 

which can range from non-attendance at school, family breakdown, self-abuse or abuse by others, 

isolation and bullying.  It can be a very powerful experience for the young person, working with 

someone who is not paid to be in their life.  Referrals come from a variety of sources including the 

police, social services, and health and youth workers. 

Ø Residential and off-site programmes operate at all Youth Zones. Young people who have not 

previously stayed away from home or have never left their town, are the target attendees.  The 

Page 25



14 

 

trips also provide members with an opportunity to take part in challenging activities they would 

not normally have the chance to do such as abseiling, canoeing and ghyll scrambling.  

Ø Health related projects include body image, nutrition as part of gym-based fitness programme, 

chlamydia screening, drugs and alcohol awareness, sexual health and contraception, and weight 

loss programmes. 

 

Inclusion 

Ø Youth Zones actively promote true inclusion of young disabled people with their able bodied peers.  

At one Youth Zone in particular 95% of inclusion members feel confident enough to attend the 

mainstream sessions.  

Ø With over 500 members reporting a registered disability, the OnSide Youth Zone network is the 

only youth organisation operating a 7-night a week service to young people with disabilities, with 

evening and all weekend specialist support for the young people, and respite care for families when 

they need it. 

Ø Recently OnSide successfully secured a co-funded project from the Big Lottery Fund/St. James Place 

Foundation. Utilising this grant, with a value of £1.3m, OnSide Youth Zones will undertake a 

ground-breaking activity programme with young disabled people. This will extend our innovative 

approach in delivering sports and arts based activities daily, to young people with moderate to 

severe disabilities, held right at the centre of a mainstream environment. 

8. Capital Delivery 

The Choice of Development Site 

OnSide Youth Zones provide flagship facilities for young people in prominent positions in the heart of 

town and city centres. They are landmark buildings which make strong visual statements and are 

finished to a high internal specification, with the best equipment, and a clear focus on the quality of 

the environment and facilities. The Youth Zone buildings offer a wide range of sporting, artistic, 

cultural, physical and recreational activities for young people. They are accessible for all and open long 

hours every day of the year. Based on the successful operation of OnSide’s existing Youth Zones (and 

the unsuccessful operation of badly sited facilities elsewhere), we apply the following three major 

criteria in terms of location:  

 

1. Neutrality 

A significant feature of the success of the OnSide Youth Zones is their location in town or city 

centres. This is considered ‘neutral ground’ by the large numbers of young people using the 

facilities every week. Locating a Youth Zone outside the town or city centre risks it being 

viewed as ‘on someone else’s patch’, making it potentially popular with young people in the 

locality but completely inaccessible to others. By contrast a central location does not bring 

any of the territorial issues that can hinder positive engagement in less central locations.  

2.  Accessibility 

Youth Zones are for all children and young people of the town and surrounding areas. There 

will however be a focus on engaging disadvantaged young people and it is vital that young 

people should be able to get there very easily by foot and/or by public transport. A substantial 

majority of participants, either walk to the Youth Zones or take the bus. A good site has safe 

pedestrian access and proximity to central public transport stations and/or multiple 

destination stops.  

3.  Prominence 

The ambition is to build a world-class facility for children and young people. The prominence 

of the site not only affects participation; by everyone knowing where it is but it also makes an 

important statement to young people that they are valuable members of the community. This 

Page 26



15 

 

also goes some way in redressing the historic imbalance in investment in facilities for adults 

and young people.   

 

In short, the search is always for an available, safe, affordable site which meets these above criteria 

and which will, with the right building, facilities and staff, support the participation of the largest 

possible number of young people, especially those from disadvantaged areas. A detailed site options 

appraisal and scoring matrix is likely to form one of the documents accompanying the future 

application for planning consent but in short, the Exmouth Street site in Birkenhead represents an 

excellent location for a youth facility of the type envisaged. 

 

Extent of the Development Site 

There are currently two options for the area of land on which Wirral Youth Zone will be built, with 

both being dependent on the support of Merseyside Fire & Rescue Authority and the availability of its 

land. 

1. Ideally the Youth Zone would be designed to make best use of the ‘L-shaped’ plot of land 

(measuring approximately 4,600m2) fronting Exmouth Street and close to its junction with 

Claughton Road in the heart of Birkenhead’s town centre. That site is currently owned in part 

(approximately 2,800m2) by Merseyside Fire & Rescue Authority (“the MF&RA plot”) and in the 

remainder (approximately 1,800m2) by North West Ambulance Service NHS Trust (“the NWAS 

plot”). Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service has of course been significantly involved in, and 

supportive of, the Wirral Youth Zone project in its intended location (which would involve the area 

of its land which is now surplus to requirements following the construction of the new community 

fire station). In contrast, North West Ambulance Service has only relatively recently rationalised its 

operational accommodation strategy and moved into the fire station thereby throwing up the 

possibility of the NWAS plot being available to the Youth Zone project. Currently a definitive 

decision by the Ambulance Service Trust as to whether it will ‘donate’ the NWAS plot is awaited. 

2. If the NWAS plot is not made available on affordable terms (i.e. a 125 year lease without premium 

and at a peppercorn rent) then it is intended to design the Youth Zone building to make optimum 

use of the MF&RA plot in isolation.  

 

Option 1 (with the addition of the NWAS plot) would be preferable since it would make a total 

available site of about 4,600m2 (roughly the size of the plot of The Factory Youth Zone in Manchester). 

It would also allow for the construction of two kick pitches and provide a modest external recreation 

area. The building could also be reduced to two storeys, something that makes the visual connectivity 

and accessibility of all of the activities for the young people stronger. However OnSide has developed 

effective Youth Zones on plots as small as 1,850m2 and we are entirely confident that an exciting, 

linear design can be achieved on the MF&RA plot alone to support a very successful facility for the 

young people of the Wirral.  

   

Design  

Once the extent of the available development land has been confirmed it is intended to run a design 

competition in line with similar processes in relation to the design of the Youth Zone buildings in 

Manchester, Wigan and Wolverhampton. The participants are expected to include a mix of local 

Wirral-based Architects, Architects who have been involved in early feasibility work on the project and 

Architects with prior experience of the design of youth facilities in line with the OnSide model. 

 

Attached as Appendix B is a generic competition design brief for an OnSide Youth Zone and this will 

be refined and developed in close consultation with Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service (and other 

project partners) to ensure that the brief is entirely appropriate for the locality and reflective of the 

expectations of partners and funders. A representative of the Fire Authority also will be invited to 

participate in the judging of competition entries.   

Page 27



16 

 

 

Accommodation and Facilities Proposed 

The proposed accommodation and facilities are described, in general terms, in the generic design brief 

attached. They reflect the successes (and relative failures) in the design and operation of existing 

Youth Zones in the OnSide network from the original nationally-recognised model, Bolton Lads & Girls 

Club, through to the latest facility to open, Wigan Youth Zone. In turn, those designs (and more recent 

modifications to the design brief) reflect the preferences and aspirations of the Young People’s 

Development Groups and other stakeholders involved in each project. 

 

The accommodation proposed will support a universal service with a very wide range of sporting, 

artistic and cultural activities alongside the ancillary support and targeted information advice and 

guidance projects, which are described elsewhere in this document. 

 

Extent of the Building Works to be Undertaken 

The extent of works will only be defined as the design is developed but it is anticipated that the 

building will have a gross internal floor area of between 2,000m2 and 2,500m2 on two floors (possibly 

with limited administrative accommodation on a third floor). External development will include one 

floodlit multi-use games area (or two such areas if the NWAS plot is made available) together with 

imaginative and attractive treatment of any remaining land for external ‘play’. There will also be some 

nearby provision (acceptable to the Highway Authority) for a lay-by or drop-off zone to accommodate 

the limited vehicle movements associated with the Youth Zone’s operation.    

 

The nature and method of construction will of course be determined by the professional team’s 

recommendation but typically an appropriate foundation solution will support a steel superstructure 

with an attractive envelope (sympathetic to nearby buildings) being comprised of a mix of masonry, 

rainscreen cladding and fenestration. A mixture of floor finishes will be employed to suit the needs of 

different activities in different areas. Internal wall and ceiling finishes will reflect a balance between 

practicality and economy to ensure robustness and application of funds to the best advantage of the 

young people. The building will be served by a variety of mechanical and electrical installations 

designed to combine (subject to budget constraints) maximum performance and ongoing 

maintainability with environmental sustainability. 

 

Cost Information 

The total costs will of course depend on design but will be limited to the project budget which has yet 

to be definitively determined but which is likely to fall between £5 million and £6 million. 

 

It is expected, in order to maximise benefit from the fixed project budget, to apply to HMRC for 

approval of the issue of a certificate to the appointed contractor for zero VAT rating of the construction 

services under Group 5 of Schedule 8 of the Value Added Tax Act 1994 on the basis that the building 

is intended for use solely for “a relevant charitable purpose”.  

  

Terms of Land Ownership 

The current landowners are asked to lease the land to the new operating charity, Wirral Youth Zone 

without premium for a term of 125 years at a peppercorn rent. There have been early discussions to 

agree this in principle but the parties’ respective legal advisors will need to negotiate terms which are 

considered appropriate to make the land available without cost whilst protecting the landowner’s 

interests in the unlikely event of inappropriate use or project failure. Such terms are likely to include: 

· A term of 125 years 

· No premium and a peppercorn rent 

· No break clauses 

Page 28



17 

 

· Suitably strict and limited user clauses (linked to forfeiture provisions) to ensure there is no 

material deviation from the original intended charitable use 

· Possibly step-in rights for major funders including Wirral Council and The OnSide 

Foundation. 

  

Programme 

Detailed project development and construction programmes will of course be prepared as soon as the 

first critical path milestones (i.e. confirmation of the extent of land available and the project budget) 

are reached. It is hoped that confirmation of availability of the MF&RA plot will be received by 30th 

May 2014. Following that a maximum period of another month is suggested for assessment of the 

likelihood of availability of the NWAS plot after which a design brief will be prepared based on the 

development land then confirmed as available.  

 

Based on these triggers, no extraordinary complications in the planning process or extreme 

abnormalities in ground conditions or design requirements, and an expected construction period 

between 50 and 58 weeks, Wirral Youth Zone would be ‘open for business’ in early 2016. 

 

Project Team 

A suitably strong multi-disciplinary project design team will be appointed to ensure the successful 

delivery of the capital project. Appointments will follow a competitive selection process based on a 

combination of fee level and experience/suitability. 

 

Contractor Procurement 

Although the precise method of procurement will be determined (in consultation with project 

partners) in due course there are currently the following expectations. 

 

OnSide has experience managing and/or supporting the management of a wide range of contracts 

from those let after full compliance with the OJEU (Official Journal of the European Community) 

process through to those let after negotiated tenders. Current capital funding proposals make it 

unlikely that the contract need be governed by UK or European Public Procurement Rules so the most 

likely method of procurement of the contractor will be two-stage competitive tender by a carefully 

selected list (probably not exceeding six in number) of invited contractors. 

 

It is expected that the form of contract will be the standard JCT Design & Build contract with suitable 

amendments incorporating contractor compliance with detailed technical requirements and 

advanced design information whilst passing design risk to the contractor. This form of procurement, 

coupled with strict change control procedures has proved highly effective in achieving the expected 

quality within the fixed budget.  

        

Project Management Strategy & Procedure 

 

A suitably experienced and qualified Construction Consultant or Project Management Surveyor will be 

employed to lead, coordinate and manage the design team. An additional high-level layer of project 

management will also be provided by OnSide’s Deputy Chief Executive, acting in a ‘developer role’ 

and/or ‘informed client’. This will provide an additional layer of protection of the project aims and 

aspirations and will not replace or override the professional team’s roles or the Project Manager’s 

responsibility to ensure full coordination of the team to realise the Client Brief. 

 

The Project Manager (supported by OnSide’s Deputy Chief Executive) will:- 

· Be the single point of responsibility for delivery 

· Provide specialist market knowledge 

Page 29



18 

 

· Provide management expertise backed by sound commercial awareness 

· Provide an informed approach to team selection and management 

· Execute robust systems and processes which achieve desired results 

· Focus on managing risk and delivering value 

· Pro-actively respond to problem solving 

· Provide expertise based on experience 

· Provide regular reports and feedback 

· Provide monitoring of quality, time and cost 

· Make it happen! 

 

Reporting structures, responsibilities and design team coordination will be in line with a Project 

Execution Plan which will be tailored for the project at the appropriate stage.  

 

Risk Management 

The Project Manager (supported by OnSide) will prepare, monitor and regularly update a 

comprehensive risk register. A specimen register (combining risks from both capital delivery and 

business planning) is attached as appendix D.  

9. Project Delivery 

The Delivery Vehicle 

In common with all Youth Zones in the OnSide network, Wirral Youth Zone will be owned and operated 

by an independent charitable company which is currently being incorporated and registered. This local 

ownership is an important principle and it makes an invaluable contribution to the community’s sense 

of belonging and responsibility leading, in turn to stronger sustainability. Local ‘ownership’ 

strengthens the involvement of local businesses and delivery partners whilst affiliation to the OnSide 

network of Youth Zones opens opportunities for regional funding bids and provides substantial 

benefits in relation to sharing best practice.    

 

When people in Bolton are asked, at random, what they know of Bolton Lads & Girls Club very few, if 

any, will report being unaware of the Club and its work. This is the sort of local awareness and pride 

being cultivated in relation to all Youth Zones in the OnSide network. 

 

The objects of Wirral Youth Zone (taken from its draft Memorandum of Association) are: 

 

“to help and educate children and young people resident in Wirral and Merseyside through 

their leisure time activities by promoting their full physical and spiritual potential in order that 

they may grow to full maturity as individuals and members of society and that their conditions 

of life may improve” 

 

These objects mirror those of the other Youth Zones in the OnSide network and have been agreed 

with the Charity Commission as a concise statement of the over-arching aspiration and satisfying the 

‘public benefit’ requirement. A copy of the Memorandum and Articles of Association for Wirral Youth 

Zone is attached as Appendix A. The subscribers to the Memorandum are John Syvret CBE, Councillor 

Phil Davies and Peter Bibby. Additional trustees will be recruited and appointed (to undertake defined 

roles and responsibilities) as the development of the project continues and the operational phase 

approaches. A representative of Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service will always be invited to attend. 

 

The local steering group/shadow board in Wirral have been instrumental in providing strategic 

direction to the development phase of the project. In order to capitalise on the expertise available 

Page 30



19 

 

within the group, there will be an opportunity for individuals to become members of Wirral Youth 

Zone Board. 

 

Principles of Delivery 

Wirral Youth Zone will provide a universal service, coupled with a responsive series of targeted 

information, advice and guidance projects and programmes, to a wide range of children and young 

people, including the following categories:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

All activities and services provided by the Youth Zone will be delivered by a wide range of expert, 

experienced and highly qualified staff.  In addition the Youth Zone will also utilise the expertise and 

specialist knowledge and support offered by external partners/providers to ensure a coordinated 

approach to delivering the extensive universal service and targeted programme offer. 

 

In line with the principles of best practice, equality and diversity will be at the heart of the Youth Zone 

and embedded within all activities and services delivered within the facility.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Youth Zone Development and Young Peoples Involvement 

 

Young people choose to come to the Youth Zone; it is their place.  In order for a Youth Zone to succeed 

and flourish it must be owned by them and represent what they want.   

 

 

Ø Promoting Accessibility 

Ø Valuing Cultural Diversity 

Ø Promoting Participation 

Ø Promoting Equality of Opportunity 

Ø Promoting Inclusive Communities 

Ø Reducing Disadvantage and Exclusion 

 

Aged 17 – 19 years Aged 12–16 years 
Aged 8–11 years 

Affected by 

territorialism 
Target Market Disengaged  

 

Young people from 

BME backgrounds 
Disadvantaged 

Disabled and/or 

learning disabilities  

Page 31



20 

 

We are committed to involving young people in as much of the development of a new Youth Zone as 

possible.  At the earliest stages of the project OnSide works with the local team to create a Young 

People’s Development Group, bringing together as wide a range of young people as possible.  Over 

time and with the support of the OnSide Young People’s Participation Manager, the group is able to 

help the project be the best it can be, for all the young people of that town or city.  They have input 

into, or in some cases total control over, some key aspects of the project.   

These include: 

· The name of the Youth Zone 

· The brand identity of the Youth Zone including the logo 

· The needs of young people in terms of transportation to and from the Youth Zone 

· Fundraising for the Youth Zone 

· The interior design of the main recreation area  

· The activities they wish to see taking place in the Youth Zone 

· How the new Youth Zone communicates with young people of the town or city in the run up to the 

opening 

 

Getting to the Youth Zone 

In considering the location of all our Youth Zones we ensure that all barriers to accessing the facilities 

are removed, which includes transportation. The majority of our Youth Zone members are able to 

access the facilities by foot, bicycle or public transport, however some of our Youth Zone members 

have experienced logistical issues, which has meant that they are unable to travel to and access the 

facilities. In response to this our Youth Zones in Blackburn and Carlisle negotiated deals with local bus 

companies, which means that transportation is no longer a barrier for young people. 

 

Fundraising 

Prior to opening, OnSide raises the first three years private sector revenue for the Youth Zone.  Young 

people play an important part in this campaign; explaining what having a Youth Zone means to them, 

getting involved in hosting tours of other Youth Zones, and preparing meals with local chefs as part of 

an evening visit by potential private sector patrons to Youth Zones ahead of that all-important ‘ask’. 

 

Interior Design 

Young people are asked to make suggestions as to what the interior of the main recreation area should 

look like. For example, in the Preston design they have requested the cafe to be near the entrance of 

the Youth Zone and have a ‘Starbucks’ feel to it with booths, giving the area a more adult atmosphere. 

 

The Programme 

The activities in the Youth Zone need to reflect what the young people want.  Through the Young 

People’s Development Group and culture of ongoing consultation, locally popular activities are 

designed into the programme.  For example, at Wigan they have wrestling sessions as it is a popular 

local sport. 

 

 

10. Partnership Delivery 

All Youth Zones in the OnSide network represent strong four-way partnerships between: 

a) The Council; 

b) The local business community; 

c) Young people; and 

d) OnSide Youth Zones 

Page 32



21 

 

The contributions of these project partners are supplemented by a wide range of local delivery 

partners and stakeholders. These vary from one project to another and are responsive to need, 

availability and opportunity. They include: 

i. NHS Trusts and providers of primary care; 

ii. Providers of social housing; 

iii. Social Services; 

iv. Child and adolescent mental health services; 

v. Youth Offending Teams; 

vi. Police; 

vii. Specialist sports and arts organisations; 

viii. Contributors to the existing local ‘youth offer’; and 

ix. A range of local third sector organisations already providing targeted support to young 

people. 

Wirral Youth Zone offers an opportunity, which would be unique in the current OnSide network, of 

working closely with the Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service. 

The Partnership with Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service (“MF&RS”). 

We are aware of the lead role played by MF&RS in the Toxteth Firefit Hub, a state of the art centre 

that provides world class facilities for young people across the city of Liverpool and believe that Wirral 

Youth Zone will provide an opportunity for MF&RS to build on its community work, especially that 

with local young people, in furtherance of its mission: Safer Stronger Communities – Safe Effective 

Firefighters.  

Wirral Youth Zone will necessarily be quite different from Toxteth Firefit Hub in that the adjoining 

Community Fire Station is structurally complete and already operating, physical links with it are 

impractical and the Youth Zone must meet the criteria and requirements of the other project partners. 

Similarly, whilst designers in the architectural competition will be encouraged to suggest external 

treatment to the Youth Zone building which is sympathetic to the Fire Station, it is crucial that the 

Youth Zone is very clearly distinguishable in appearance, very attractive to young people and that it 

‘shouts‘ the brand and brand values produced and identified by the young people. Notwithstanding 

these essential differences, the Youth Zone will offer unrivalled opportunities for joint working with 

MF&RS. These will include: 

 

· Branding opportunities for MF&RS, such as the fitness suite or other sports facilities being 

‘Firefit’ zones. 

· Some targeted joint use of facilities, perhaps: 

o Older Youth Zone members with a particular interest in fitness training being 

encouraged in their development by enjoying pre-arranged sessions in the Fire Station 

fitness suite under the coaching of MF&RS staff; or 

o MF&RS staff enjoying use of some of the Youth Zone facilities (e.g. training or sporting 

facilities) when not in use by the Youth Zone members. 

· Involvement of firefighters and other MF&RS staff in employability and enterprise projects in 

the Youth Zone. 

· Volunteering opportunities for firefighters and other colleagues in the Youth Zone; they will 

of course make fantastic role models for the members. 

· Opportunities to work closely with the MF&RS Youth Engagement Team and for its ‘Beacon’ 

project to be rolled out to Wirral Youth Zone members. 

· The chance for Wirral Youth Zone staff and members to enjoy the benefits of involvement in, 

Page 33



22 

 

the hugely successful Prince’s Trust scheme. 

· Joint delivery with Wirral Fire Cadets, based at Wallasey Fire Station and opportunities for the 

opportunities for membership of Wirral Fire Cadets to be ‘advertised’ to a wider audience in 

the Youth Zone. 

· The chance for MF&RS staff to improve young people’s knowledge and practice in relation to 

fire safety and their personal wellbeing; and improve the image of MF&RS amongst young 

people across Wirral. 

· The chance to meet large numbers of young people, build positive relationships with them 

and educate them in; 

o the negative effects on community safety arising from abuse of and attacks on fire 

service staff and equipment and making false emergency calls; and  

o the dangers associated with inappropriate behaviour around Bonfire and Mischief 

Nights.  

· Opportunities for Youth Zone members to have guided tours of the fire station (possibly even 

work experience there) to get a better understanding of the work of the fire service and to 

meet its future recruitment requirements. 

  
Whilst it is perhaps unlikely that other future OnSide Youth Zones will be developed on redundant Fire 

Authority land, it is hoped that many aspects of the Wirral model, in terms of effective joint working 

between a Youth Zone and Fire Service can be replicated across the growing OnSide network. 

11. Financial Planning 

The financial plan below is displayed in detail in Appendix C, supported by an organisational chart in 

Appendix H. The costs are based on evidenced data gleaned from existing operations, using staffing 

structures which are most effective in delivery. 

We have already secured over 50% of the capital funding required, through contributions from Wirral 

Council who have committed £2m, the OnSide Foundation, £1m and Bibby Line Group who have 

committed £300k to the project. 

Given that we expect the capital elements of the building will be fully resourced at launch date, this 

provides a secure and sustainable environment in which to operate. The most significant element of 

the revenue costs (around 77%) are attributed to the staffing resource required to offer the highest 

quality offering, worthy of the world class facility. 

Highlights 

· A sensitivity analysis is provided in the attached financial plan, demonstrating the effects of a drop 

(or increase) in membership fees and participation levels.  

· Grants & Trusts income reflects a zero base – generally grants secured in the early stages of the 

Youth Zone life cycle are likely to be for additional services (therefore also attracting the a similar 

level of expense). However, this is a prudent budget and we would hope that the Youth Zone would 

secure external income to support core services too. 

· Staffing costs open at £822k, this include all core and holiday teams but excludes ‘additional’ roles 

such as Outreach and Mentoring Co-ordinator would only be recruited following a successful grant 

award. 

· Private sector income assumes that any initial patrons (who choose not to renew their 3 year initial 

commitment) are replaced by new patrons on a roll-on, roll off basis.  

Page 34



23 

 

Business Plan: Wirral Youth Zone     KEY DATA 

    Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

Annual Membership Fees 15,000 15,000 15,450 15,914 16,232 

Senior Club Session 45,500 45,500 46,865 48,271 49,236 

Junior Club Session 13,000 13,000 13,390 13,792 14,068 

Holiday Sessions 52,080 65,100 67,053 69,065 70,446 

Secondary Spend 72,878 85,739 90,026 92,727 94,581 

Private Sector Income 516,750 530,000 545,900 556,818 567,954 

Trusts, Grants & Foundations* 0 0 0 0 0 

Public Sector Contribution 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 

Fundraising Events (Shown as Net 

Income) 40,000 40,000 40,800 41,616 42,448 

Facility Hire 6,000 6,000 6,180 6,304 6,430 

Off Site Activities Contributions 10,000 10,000 10,300 10,506 10,716 

Trips & Residentials Contributions 8,000 8,000 8,240 8,405 8,573 

TOTAL INCOME 1,179,208 1,218,339 1,244,204 1,263,416 1,280,684 

Staffing Costs 822,995 822,995 839,455 856,244 873,369 

Premises Costs 99,600 124,350 128,370 132,557 136,919 

Management Costs 63,958 60,958 62,277 63,636 65,035 

Delivery Costs 106,017 106,017 108,138 110,300 112,506 

Contingency 10,926 11,143 11,382 11,627 11,878 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 1,103,496 1,125,464 1,149,622 1,174,364 1,199,708 

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 75,712 92,875 94,582 89,051 80,977 

12. Risk Analysis 

There are two main risks to the successful implementation of the project: 

· Confirmation of the availability of the land; and 

· The capital funding gap 

We are optimistic that the availability of the land will be confirmed shortly as we have developed a 

strong partnership with Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service, and we hope the authority will approve 

the proposal to make the land available to the Wirral Youth Zone project. 

We require confirmation of the availability of the land by 31 May 2014 to meet the project timeline 

in accordance with funding requirements. 

In terms of the capital funding gap, we have already secured over 50% of the total funding required 

and currently have applications pending with Sport England and the FA & Premier League; and we 

are also in discussion with a number of key local companies, which together if successful will close 

the funding gap. 

As mentioned in section 8 above, a specimen risk register for this type of project is included as 

Appendix D. 

 

 

Page 35



24 

 

13. Marketing & Communications Strategy  

Important to the Youth Zone’s success will be the ability to fully communicate its offer and the benefits 

to all target audiences. The aim will be to inform, engage, converse and collaborate with audiences 

to: 

 

· Support  the ongoing successful fundraising/development strategy so that Wirral Youth Zone is 

best placed to reach its funding targets, both now and in the future 

· Support the dissemination of positive messages about Wirral Youth Zone to other external 

stakeholders in the local community with a view to creating a positive reputation for Wirral Youth 

Zone and informing development of its service provision 

· Engage the local community and stakeholders (including young people) in a structured approach 

to manage expectations for the Youth Zone 

· Develop relationships with young people from the city and surrounding areas to build involvement 

and influence for the wider community of young people 

 

As we move towards the opening phase in Year Zero, communications activity should also then be 

focused on the development of a communications platform/infrastructure ready to pass over 

ownership to Wirral Youth Zone staff of all day-to-day communications activity.  

 

A copy of the Tactical Communications Plan for Wirral Youth Zone is enclosed in Appendix I. An extract 

from the Wirral Youth Zone Logo Presentation can be found in Appendix G. 

 

We have also enclosed a copy of the OnSide Manifesto, which outlines our organisation’s commitment 

to extend the Youth Zone network across the UK in order to reach more young people. A copy of the 

manifesto can be found in Appendix F. 

 

Promoting Wirral as a region which invests in its young people 

 

There are many PR opportunities for Wirral Youth Zone as it moves towards a live project. From the 

pre-build phase through to the opening; announcing the project, identifying the site, the building 

design being unveiled, young people submitting the planning application, young people designing the 

brands and deciding the name of the Youth Zone, the building work commencing, the partnerships 

with the Council and Fire Service, the business community coming together to support the young 

people of the town or city, 100 day countdown to opening, and perhaps a VIP opening; 

 

Page 36



25 

 

 
 

Branding - Wirral Youth Zone - “The Hive”   

A core group of 10 young people from across the Wirral took on the challenge of working with Wirral 

based Ice Creatives to name and brand the Youth Zone.  As part of the process the Wirral Youth Zone 

Young People’s Development Group wanted to make sure that all young people from across the Wirral 

had the opportunity to have their say about the final name and branding of the Youth Zone.  During 

the process sessions took place in schools and colleges across the peninsula to get ideas and 

inspiration from a wide cross section of young people. 

The final name “The Hive” was chosen as it was the most popular name put forward but also because 

it represents the values that young people feel the Youth Zone should stand for, which are: that it will 

be an active, safe and supportive place for young people, where they belong, as well as being a place 

of opportunity, development and self-expression where young people work together as a collective 

and support each other. 

 

 

 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Wirral Youth Zone 

 

 

Appendices to Business Plan 

 

 

April 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CFO/048/14

Page 39



2 

 

 

 

 

 Appendices 

 

A. Memorandum of Association of the New Charitable Company  

B. Generic Competition Design Brief 

C. Financial Plan 

D. Specimen Risk Register 

E. Job Descriptions for the main roles 

F. OnSide Manifesto 

G. Extract from Wirral YZ Logo Presentation 

H. Wirral YZ Organisational Chart April 2014 

I. Wirral YZ Tactical Communications Plan 

J. Youth Zone Network Opening Hours 

K. Youth Zone Network Session Programme 

 

 

Page 40



Page 41



·

·

Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



[INSERT

LOCATION]

YOUTH ZONE

  

DESIGN 

COMPETITION 

DEVELOPMENT 

BRIEF

[Insert Date]  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 67



Development Brief – [Insert Location] Youth Zone
[insert date]

 

 

2 

 

 

Contents

Page

1 Introduction : OnSide and [insert location] Youth Zone 3

2 The Facility 4

3 Architectural Competition – Summary of Requirement & Timescales 6

4 The Development Site 9

5 Plan of the Proposed Site 10

6 New Building Requirements 12

7 External Space Requirements 16

8 Other Requirements 17

9 Competition Rules and Timetable 18

Page 68



Development Brief – [Insert Location] Youth Zone
[insert date]

 

 

3 

 

 

1. Introduction   

OnSide

OnSide was established as a regional charity in 2008 with a vision of creating a network of 
21st Century Youth Zones which give young people top quality, safe and affordable places to 
go in their leisure time. 

OnSide Youth Zones provide opportunities and challenges that inspire young people to lead 
healthier and more positive lives, raising their aspirations so they grow up to become happy, 
caring and responsible citizens, with more to offer themselves, their families, the community 
and employers. Having opportunities to try new things and face challenges in a safe 
environment, supported by staff and volunteers who care, gives young people  the chance to 
build career skills, life skills and confidence.

There are now five OnSide Youth Zones (in Blackburn, Carlisle, Manchester, Oldham and 
Wigan) with several more in various stages of development and OnSide is committed to 
extending its vision and network of Youth Zones beyond the North West. Further information 
on OnSide and its projects can be found at www.onsidenorthwest.org

Onside has its roots in Bolton Lads & Girls Club which was the first youth facility on this 
scale in the country and has repeatedly been cited as a model of best practice, now working, 
on a weekly basis, with more than 3,000 children and young people. Further information on 
the Club and its activities can be found at www.blgc.co.uk

[Insert Location] Youth Zone

In common with all Youth Zones in the OnSide network, [insert location] Youth Zone will be a 
separate Registered Charity, a stand-alone organisation receiving support and 
encouragement from OnSide and others but independent, self-sufficient and sustainable. 
The project will be a shining example of a true public/private sector partnership with funding 
leadership, management and drive coming from the local business community and funding 
and key strategic support provided by [insert name of Local Authority]. 

[Insert brief details of the individual Youth Zone charity including, as appropriate:

The project champion and other private sector supporters; and

The Council’s contribution to the project]  

[Insert name of current site owner] has agreed to ‘gift’ the site described in sections 4 and 5 
below for the construction and delivery of a new world class youth facility serving the young 
people of [insert location] and surrounding areas.

[Insert location] Youth Zone will be the client for the project and this brief sets out its criteria 
for the successful design submission.

Page 69



Development Brief – [Insert Location] Youth Zone
[insert date]

 

 

4 

 

 

2. The Facility - Vision and Purpose

If you talk to any group of young people and ask them what they need in their communities, 

you will get a consistent, realistic and simple answer. They will ask for: 

Somewhere to go;

Something to do; and 

Someone to talk to.

When they ask for ‘somewhere to go’, it is so important that we provide somewhere which is 

perceived by young people as bright, modern, safe and affordable. Over the past 20 -30

years there has been enormous investment in an infrastructure of leisure, sporting and 

recreational opportunities for adults. Yet in the same period, we have spent next to nothing 

on facilities and opportunities for young people. Anything dark, dirty, inadequate, only open a 

couple of nights a week and rooted in the 1970’s will not be popular with today’s young 

people and they deserve better. Any new facilities we provide have to be fit for purpose and 

comparable with the offer adults enjoy.

[Insert location] Youth Zone will continue the latest generation of flagship facilities for young 

people, being built in prominent positions in the heart of town and city centres. Indeed the

supporters of the project have ambitions for the facility in [insert name of town/city] to be the 

best of its kind. This is an exciting opportunity to be involved in the design of a landmark 

building which will make a strong visual statement and will be finished to a high internal 

specification, with the best equipment, and a clear focus on the quality of the environment 

and facilities.  

The new building will offer a wide range of sporting, artistic, cultural, physical and 

recreational activities for young people aged 8 to 19 years (up to 25 years for those with 

disabilities and/or learning difficulties). It will be accessible and affordable by all and will be 

open long hours (approximately 8am to 10pm) every day of the year. It is important that the 

Club is open to all

In addition to providing facilities for this universal service of leisure-time activities, the 

building will also include areas suitable for more targeted work with young people including 

training, mentoring, group work and project areas to accommodate information, advice, 

guidance and general support services.

children and young people of the area and especially those from 

disadvantaged families, whose lives already lack discipline and structure, because what 

young people do in their leisure time has a huge impact on their personal health and well-

being and on their future prospects.  

More details of the requirements for the building are given later in this brief but some of the 

main operational facilities at [insert location] Youth Zone will be:

A bright attractive reception area

A large open recreation area, incorporating café facilities and informal activity space

Page 70



Development Brief – [Insert Location] Youth Zone
[insert date]

 

 

5 

 

 

Catering facilities

A four court sports hall

A fitness suite

A climbing wall and separate bouldering wall (if space permits)

A boxing and martial arts gym

A dance and performing arts studio

Arts & crafts areas (both in an informal space within the recreation area and a 

separate project room)

Music and multi-media rooms

Training facilities (which can be incorporated within the Board room)

Facilities for enterprise and employability projects

Focused areas specialising in health, beauty and wellbeing

A range of other rooms/spaces (with associated storage) suitable for flexible use and 

a variety of activities.

Some smaller rooms/spaces which are suitable for one-to-one engagements or work 

with small groups of young people.   

Outdoor multi-use games areas

Outdoor informal recreation areas

Attractive circulation spaces should link the activity areas and central open plan spaces at 

ground floor (particularly the recreation area) and should be able to offer visitors the 

opportunity for informal activity or simply the chance to socialise with friends in a bright, airy 

and attractive environment. Moving around the building, the design should provide 

opportunities for young people to view the activities on offer. This will both encourage 

participation and offer an environment in which young people feel safe.

It is expected that between 1,500 and 2,000 children and young people will visit the Youth

Zone each week and there could be up to 300 attending at any one time.

The facility is expected to have a full time workforce of approximately 15 (perhaps rising to 

20) and approximately 50 part-time positions. This will be supplemented by up to 100 active 

community volunteers. However, the members of staff and volunteers will work very different 

shift patterns and the vast majority will be involved exclusively in face to face work with 

young people. There are unlikely to be more than ten full-time staff (requiring workstations or 

access to ‘hot desks’) in the building during the daytime and probably in the order of 15 – 25

delivery staff and volunteers during evening and weekend sessions.

Page 71



Development Brief – [Insert Location] Youth Zone
[insert date]

 

 

6 

 

 

3. Architectural Competition - Summary of Requirements 

You are invited, as one of a shortlist of [insert number], to compete for the role of Architect

for [insert location] Youth Zone.

Bidders are required to present their proposals for the new [insert location] Youth Zone to a 

panel comprising the [insert details of panel] in a presentation lasting no longer than 30 

minutes with Questions and Answers (up to 15-20 minutes) by the panel.

The presentations will take place on [insert date time and location]

There is no standard format for the presentation. However, within your presentation of the 

development proposal and any supporting documents, there is a requirement to set out the 

following information:

relevant experience and track record, including experience of presenting to 

wider groups e.g. consultation on concepts to young people and business 

groups / stakeholders, and of acting on behalf of public / private sector 

partnerships;

design proposals including indicative plans, external elevations and site 

layouts, planning considerations and design rationale for the building and 

surrounding land;

practice history, organisation chart, resources and CV’s for key staff members;

audited financial accounts;

references;

professional indemnity insurance;

preferred professional team members (see later for definition of scope);

fee proposal based on RIBA Stages and resource allocations.

In addition to the information set out in this Development Brief, there will be an opportunity to 

visit and understand one or more of the established Youth Zones. This is considered an 

important part of the due diligence required in order to present proposals for the new [insert 

location] Youth Zone.

Further to confirmation of your wish to participate in this competition, please contact Rob 

Carter (rob.carter@onsidenorthwest.org 01204 362128 or 07931 377970) to arrange your 

Youth Zone visit(s). To minimise disruption, you should not contact the Youth Zones direct.  

The aspiration to procure a new state of the art Youth Zone in [insert location] includes a key 

project objective to ensure that the aesthetics and quality standards established as part of 

the client brief are delivered by the contractor. 

Page 72



Development Brief – [Insert Location] Youth Zone
[insert date]

 

 

7 

 

 

Based upon experience of other similar facilities, the funding discussions have been based 

on a construction cost of [insert construction budget] excluding VAT, professional fees and 

Fixtures, Fittings & Equipment. The total project budget is [insert overall project budget]

excluding VAT. [The project expects to obtain HMRC approval to avoid liability for VAT on 

the construction cost and directly associated fees]. It is expected that the chosen architect 

will bring to the project the ability to offer an innovative design that is uncompromising in 

quality, provision of facilities and durability whilst achieving the best possible value for 

money.

The Client is keen to identify a robust timescale and cost plan for the project and to ensure 

delivery on time, on budget and without issue. It is open for the Bidder to propose its

preferred method of achieving these objectives. 

To help achieve these objectives the Architect may wish to propose an appropriate design 

team to include the following members:

i. Civil and structural engineer;

ii. Mechanical and electrical consultant; 

iii. Landscape architect (if required);

iv. CDM co-ordinator.

The preferred design team will work with the Project Manager, Employer’s Agent and 

Quantity Surveyors appointed by [insert location] Youth Zone to ensure the delivery of the 

project in line with expectations of quality, timescale and budget. The Project Manager will 

act as Lead Consultant for the project team.

It is also envisaged that the Architect and the preferred design team will offer comments on 

the requirements for the following services in connection with the project: 

i. Acoustic consultancy;

ii. Fire engineering;

iii. Traffic and highways consultancy;

iv. Ecology and arboricultural consultancy; 

v. Site investigations including flood risk and archaeology;

vi. BREEAM or EPC consultancy.   

The Architect will be responsible for the co-ordination of the preferred design team to design 

the building to an exacting detail on behalf of the client team.

A key requirement of the Architect, as lead designer within the design team, will be to ensure 

that the design standards are fully integrated within the design. 

Other key elements of the design development should be:- 

Page 73



Development Brief – [Insert Location] Youth Zone
[insert date]

 

 

8 

 

 

Efficiency and flexibility of the M&E;

Suitability of the security of the building for its intended use; and

The sustainability credentials of this landmark building.

We would expect representatives of the Bidder’s preferred key advisors to be represented at 

the presentation to demonstrate their capability and understanding of the project 

requirements.

The intended procurement route will be a single stage competitive Design and Build

approach based on a fully designed and co-ordinated design led by the Architect. For tender 

purposes we expect robust information at RIBA Stage E to be produced and issued. As part 

of your submission we require a detailed design production programme that clearly identifies 

milestones and the need for client review and interaction. This design programme should 

make allowance for the following: 

i. Interaction with key stakeholders and project supporters;

ii. Design workshops for young people on focused areas of the design (such as 

envelope treatment, internal finishes and fixtures); 

iii. Coordination meetings and review periods for significant specialist FF&E (such as 

the climbing wall and multi-use games areas). 

The Architect will remain the design principal reporting into the Project Manager who will act 

as Lead Consultant for the project team. To ensure that our objectives for quality and 

serviceability are delivered, it is also our intention that the design team, as well as other 

retained design consultants, maintain a "quality control audit / role" on behalf of the client

under the terms of their appointments.  

Page 74



Development Brief – [Insert Location] Youth Zone
[insert date]

 

 

9 

 

 

4. The Development Site - [insert location]

[insert site details]

[Include information such as:

Location in relation to the town/city centre;

Site area;

Any available information about historic use/existing buildings] 

Also consider suitably amended versions of the following paragraphs:

This project proposes to reutilise the site to provide facilities for a Youth Zone, a new-build,

state of the art facility, developed around the needs of the children and young people of 

[insert location]. The building itself should be designed to match the aspiration to create a 

world class facility and complement [insert details of any nearby buildings which might

demonstrate the role good design can play in transforming perceptions of an area]. 

Whilst appropriate for the new Youth Zone, once publicised, the proposals for the 

redevelopment of the site may create significant media interest. Inevitably, as with any 

redevelopment of a town or city centre site, this could lead to disquiet or objection. The 

project partners wish to select an Architect who can work alongside the Project Manager and 

engage with [insert name of Local Authority] prior to any publicity. It is therefore essential 

that proposals are produced on an entirely confidential basis. Bidders should therefore not 

contact any party, other than members of the preferred design team, OnSide and [insert 

other as appropriate]. If you have any queries on this matter, please contact Rob Carter 

(rob.carter@onsidenorthwest.org 01204 362128 or 07931 377970) in the first instance.

Page 75



Development Brief – [Insert Location] Youth Zone
[insert date]

 

 

10

 

 

5. Plan of the Proposed Site

[Insert Google map image with site identified] 

Below is the red line site boundary.

Page 76



Development Brief – [Insert Location] Youth Zone
[insert date]

 

 

11

 

 

[Insert red line site plan]

The site is owned by [Insert name of land owner] and has been earmarked for the 

construction of the Youth Zone. The parties are currently negotiating terms for a lease (and

associated legal matters) to secure the site. It is expected that a lease of 125 years, without 

premium and at a peppercorn rent will be granted.

Note:

Page 77



Development Brief – [Insert Location] Youth Zone
[insert date]

 

 

12

 

 

6. New Building Requirements

The table of requirements, below, is intentionally not too prescriptive. There are certain 

‘minimum offer’ facilities and some activity areas (for example, the sports hall and external 

multi-use games areas) must, by their nature, be of designated sizes, incorporating standard 

specifications. However there is considerable flexibility for the size, layout and specifications 

of many activity areas and ancillary spaces. This will allow bidders considerable freedom to 

demonstrate innovation in design and imagination in layout. 

Extensive work with young people in developing Youth Zones for other areas has highlighted 

that, in addition to needing space for a very wide range of diverse activities, there are some 

common themes in what they want a building to deliver. Whilst some of these relate to 

physical aspects of design, others relate more to an emotional aspect and how the young 

people want to ‘feel’ when participating in activities and moving from one activity area to 

another. Some of these common themes are:

An iconic building which makes a strong visual statement. It should be functional and

inspirational , not institutional, with a ‘WOW’ factor to send a clear message that 

young people matter.

A building designed and equipped to the highest standards, making young people 

feel ‘valued’ as members of their communities.  

A welcoming entrance and reception.

Some bright airy spaces.

A very safe environment.

High degrees of connectivity between activity areas (except for rooms where privacy 

is required).

A desire for the design to demonstrate some environmental and sustainability

awareness (within budget constraints). 

Flexible spaces to accommodate quick changes in activity.

Attractive use of materials and colour.  

In relevant activity areas, a successful scheme should accommodate (but not necessarily 

comply completely with) the sizes, specifications and performance standards of appropriate 

governing bodies (e.g. Sport England for the sports hall and The Football Association for the 

external multi-use games areas).

The building must be fully accessible and go beyond the statutory minimum requirements for 

disabled access. For example, toilet and/or changing facilities must allow for full assistance. 

The table of requirements details only principal circulation and activity areas, with some 

offices. Bidders will be expected to include appropriate additional provision for essential and 

ancillary space, such as storage, reception areas, food servery, toilet and changing facilities,

Page 78



Development Brief – [Insert Location] Youth Zone
[insert date]

 

 

13

 

 

plant rooms and general circulation areas. Further guidance on some of these requirements 

is given below the table and elsewhere in this brief.  

With the exception of the multi-use games areas (which are included in the table), the 

external requirements are summarised in the separate section below. 

Brief description of facility Approximate area (m
2
) 

Sports Hall (broadly in accordance with Sport England specifications) 700

Fitness Suite 150 – 180

Boxing/Martial Arts Gym 100 – 140 

Performing Arts Studio 120 – 150

Open Recreation & Association Area comprising:

General Recreation Area 150 – 200

Café Area 75 – 100

‘Chill-out’ Zone 20 – 40

Informal Arts & Crafts Area 30 – 50 

Radio ‘booth’ (this is to be an enclosed space but with good 
connectivity to the Recreation Area

8 – 12

Kitchen and Servery 40 – 60 

Music & Multi-Media Room(s) (Either separate or one incorporating the 
other) 

100 – 140

Changing facilities and Hygiene Room 60 – 80

Male and Female WC’s including DDA Facilities 60 – 80

Separate locker facilities 5 

Two flexible activity rooms 30 – 50 (each)

Two group work rooms 15 – 25 (each)

Enterprise Zone 40 – 60 

Arts and Crafts / Fashion Room 40 – 60

Health, Beauty and Wellbeing Activity Room 40 - 60

Two one-to-one or small group work rooms 10 – 15 (each)

Board/Training Room 35 – 50

Page 79



Development Brief – [Insert Location] Youth Zone
[insert date]

 

 

14

 

 

Chief Executive/General Manager’s Room 20 – 30

I.T Server Room 5 – 8 

General office (approximately 10 – 12 workstations and 8 ‘hot-desk’ 
areas)

110 - 140 

Three staff meeting rooms/areas 10 – 20 (each)

Staff Room (incorporating a domestic-scale kitchen facility) 20 - 25

Two External Multi-Use Games Areas 600 – 700 (each)

Other information relevant to Building Requirements: - 

Innovative and comprehensive storage facilities, ancillary to the activity areas, will be 

a significant feature of a successful scheme. As well as providing the obvious need 

for easy access to activity equipment, such storage solutions will allow the more 

flexible activity rooms/areas to be multi-use, i.e. capable of being changed quickly 

form one activity to another in response to the changing needs and preferences of 

the young people.

Club sessions for the higher age-groups (say 13+ years) will be ‘open’ in that the 

participants will be free to come and go as they choose. However for juniors (aged 

say 8 – 12 years), there will be closed sessions. Therefore, the entrance and 

reception areas will need to accommodate a controlled entry system.

The design should incorporate a climbing wall giving a minimum of 100m2 of climbing 

surface and with a preferred minimum height (for some routes at least) of eight

metres. Bidders may consider locating the climbing wall in a separate room/area 

within the Youth Zone building as an alternative to the sports hall.

An area for banks of storage lockers (not within the changing facilities) should be 

provided. Those lockers will typically be required for storage of bags and valuables 

and should be located in a readily accessible area of the building.

The table of suggested facilities should be considered only as a guide to minimum 

requirements. Any extra activity or ancillary areas, which can be accommodated by 

your chosen design, may be advantageous. 

The design of any successful scheme would be subject to further refinement 

following the involvement of relevant stakeholders and representative groups of 

young people.

The ability to accommodate occasional large-scale events (such as 

award/celebration or fund-raising events) is a requirement. This might be achieved by 

temporary conversion of the sports hall or other large area of the Club and the design 

should incorporate features to facilitate such use.  

Page 80



Development Brief – [Insert Location] Youth Zone
[insert date]

 

 

15

 

 

See the later section titled ‘Other Requirements’ for further information relevant to building 

design.   

Page 81



Development Brief – [Insert Location] Youth Zone
[insert date]

 

 

16

 

 

7. External Space Requirements

Development proposals should include the following external areas and ancillary facilities:

Two multi-use games areas (with viewing facilities) of at least 35 x 18m in 

dimensions.

Limited car parking facilities for staff and occasional visitors (no more that six at most

and only if space permits; in general terms on site parking is not a requirement) 

A garage or secure yard capable of accommodating at least two 17-seater minibuses

(if space permits). 

A secure workshop area for the building’s maintenance team.

A sports store for equipment associated with the external activity areas. 

A store (with drying facility) for equipment associated with outdoor adventurous 

activities delivered off-site. 

Bidders might also like to consider innovative and attractive treatment of any ancillary 

external space to provide additional, secure, external areas for relaxation, and other outdoor 

activity. 

Page 82



Development Brief – [Insert Location] Youth Zone
[insert date]

 

 

17

 

 

8. Other Requirements  

The design of [insert location] Youth Zone and its ancillary facilities should also take account 

of the following issues.

The safety of children and young people using the Youth Zone is of paramount 

importance and the design should demonstrate an appropriate awareness of that.

 External areas in which young people will be circulating should be separated from 

areas of vehicle movements.

There will be limited times at which large numbers of young people are waiting to 

access the Club’s facilities and it will be important that they will be able to wait/queue 

off the highway. 

During sessions involving the younger age groups, there will be increased vehicle 

movements associated with parents and carers dropping off and collecting children. 

There will therefore need to be a well designed lay-by or similar area to pull off the 

highway.

On-site provision for car parking (if possible) should be limited to staff, the disabled

and occasional visitors’ vehicles along with space for temporary accommodation of 

the minibuses when not garaged.

In addition to the controlled entry system, the building should incorporate an access 

control system allowing unused areas to be locked down for ease of management.

Club sessions involving younger children will be closed sessions so that once 

through an access control system a child will only be able to leave the Youth Zone

when staff consider it appropriate. To achieve that, both the internal and external 

spaces need to be secure.

The design of both internal and external circulation areas should, as far as possible, 

avoid ‘hiding places’ or other ‘blind spots’ which might encourage young people to 

assemble and prove difficult to manage. 

Extensive consultation with young people across the country has revealed that they 

are increasingly aware of and concerned about environmental issues. Therefore 

proposals are expected to address issues of sustainable development in their 

broadest terms.  

Page 83



Development Brief – [Insert Location] Youth Zone
[insert date]

 

 

18

 

 

 

9. Competition Rules and Timetable

Architectural Competition Timetable

Bidders selected      [insert date]

Development brief & competition instructions delivered [insert date]

Return Date for submissions [insert date]

Presentation to Panel of Judges    [insert date]

Winning Entry Confirmed     [insert date]

Submissions should be delivered to reach: 

Mr. Rob Carter, Facilities Development & Deputy Chief Executive, OnSide Northwest 

Ltd, Atria, Spa Road, Bolton, BL1 4AG no later than [insert deadline here]

Bidders are required to provide six paper copies and two electronic copies of their submissions 

(rob.carter@onsidenorthwest.org) 

  

Commitment to Build

The project partners are committed to seeing this new build project commence in [insert 

guideline date]. The winning architectural practice will be responsible for a full design service 

across the RIBA design stages of work.

Outline Timetable

Appoint successful Architect and design team  [insert date]

Outline design       [insert date]

Submit Planning Application      [insert date]

Production of Design information    [insert date]

Prepare tender documentation and issue   [insert date]

Tender period and Award     [insert date]

Commence Works      [insert date]

Construction duration       [insert date]

Occupation        [insert date]

Page 84



Development Brief – [Insert Location] Youth Zone
[insert date]

 

 

19

 

 

Competition Fees 

In accepting the opportunity to be part of this design competition the bidders accept that all 

expense incurred in the preparation and submission of their proposals are at their cost. 

Interview Presentation

The project partners would like to invite all the bidders to present their proposals in support 

of the submitted documentation. The presentation will be to the panel of judges and will be 

an opportunity to present and discuss the submissions formally and in more detail.

The presentations will take place on [insert date time and location] and should last no longer 

than 30 minutes followed by an opportunity for questions and answers (up to 15-20 minutes).  

Panel of Judges

The panel of judges will be made up of [insert location] Youth Zone Board members along 

with external consultants and other appropriate stakeholders. 

The decision of the panel will be final. 

Appointment and copyright of material submitted

Copyright of all submission material will rest with the designers. Once appointed OnSide 

North West will require the use of all material for marketing purposes for the chosen scheme.

Planning and Cost

All submissions should ensure that the proposed scheme:- 

i. has a realistic expectation of obtaining planning consent; and

ii. will fit within the project budget.

Use of Consultants

Designers can choose to involve further consultants in order to further their design 

aspirations as they see fit, however, the client reserves the right to select the design team in 

its entirety and shall not be committed to using the designer’s preferred consultants.

Minimum Information (to be returned with the submission)

Colour brochure containing commentary on proposals – five copies

Sketch Scheme proposals including floor plans/ sections/ elevations

Visual and/or 3D Model to demonstrate proposals to judges

Professional experience relating to public/ community/ education projects

Any other relevant supporting information 

Page 85



Wirral Youth Zone

Indicative 5 Year Financial Plan

Apr 2014

Page 86



ADVANCE EXPENDITURE BUDGET: LAUNCH -2 YEARS

EXPENDITURE
Pre Year 

Zero

Pre soft 

openings 

total

Date -12 months+ -12 months -11 months -10 months -9 months -8 months -7 months -6 months -5 months -4 months -3 months -2 months -1 month

Head count 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 6 6 9 10 10 22

Staffing Costs 16.8% on costs

FTE / 

positions

Hours / 

wk Annual Salary Hourly rate

Net Annual 

Cost

Annual On 

costs Total Annual Mthly cost
Yr-1 Yr 0 Pro rata

OPERATIONS STAFF 211,642£       

Chief Executive / General Manager 1.0 50,000£         50,000£         8,400£           58,400£         4,867£           4 12 77,867£         19,467£        4,867£       4,867£       4,867£       4,867£       4,867£       4,867£       4,867£       4,867£       4,867£       4,867£       4,867£       4,867£       77,867£     

Finance Manager 0.2 36,000£         7,200£           1,210£           8,410£           701£              1 701£             701£          701£          

Business & Administration Manager 1.0 28,000£         28,000£         4,704£           32,704£         2,725£           6 16,352£         2,725£       2,725£       2,725£       2,725£       2,725£       2,725£       16,352£     

Administration Assistant (including H.R.) 1.0 18,000£         18,000£         3,024£           21,024£         1,752£           6 10,512£         1,752£       1,752£       1,752£       1,752£       1,752£       1,752£       10,512£     

Business Development Manager (Private Sector Dev) 1.0 38,000£         38,000£         6,384£           44,384£         3,699£           6 22,192£         3,699£       3,699£       3,699£       3,699£       3,699£       3,699£       22,192£     

Events Co-ordinator 0.5 24,000£         12,000£         2,016£           14,016£         1,168£           3 3,504£           1,168£       1,168£       1,168£       3,504£       

Trusts & Grants Fundraising Officer 1.0 28,000£         28,000£         4,704£           32,704£         2,725£           0.5 1,363£           1,363£       1,363£       

REC AREA TEAM 213,502£       

Youth Zone Manager (incl covering shifts) 1.0 35,000£         35,000£         5,880£           40,880£         3,407£           6 20,440£         3,407£       3,407£       3,407£       3,407£       3,407£       3,407£       20,440£     

Senior Club Co-ordinator 1.0 26,000£         26,000£         4,368£           30,368£         2,531£           4 10,123£         2,531£       2,531£       2,531£       2,531£       10,123£     

Junior/Holiday Club Co-ordinator 1.0 26,000£         26,000£         4,368£           30,368£         2,531£           4 10,123£         2,531£       2,531£       2,531£       2,531£       10,123£     

Rec Area Leader 1.0 21,000£         21,000£         3,528£           24,528£         2,044£           0.5 1,022£           1,022£       1,022£       

Health & Participation Leader 0.5 21,000£         10,500£         1,764£           12,264£         1,022£           0.5 511£             511£          511£          

Independence Group Leader 1.0 21,000£         21,000£         3,528£           24,528£         2,044£           1 2,044£           2,044£       2,044£       

Youth Worker 5.0 71 9.50£             35,074£         4,840£           39,914£         3,326£           0 -£              

Youth Work/Activity Assistant 2.0 24 7.50£             9,360£           1,292£           10,652£         888£              0 -£              

SPORTS TEAM 145,305£       

Sports Hall Leader 1.0 21,000£         21,000£         3,528£           24,528£         2,044£           0.5 1,022£           1,022£       1,022£       

Outdoor Adventure & Climbing Leader 1.0 21,000£         21,000£         3,528£           24,528£         2,044£           0.5 1,022£           1,022£       1,022£       

Health & Fitness Leader 1.0 21,000£         21,000£         3,528£           24,528£         2,044£           0.5 1,022£           1,022£       1,022£       

Youth Instructor 6.0 96 9.50£             47,424£         6,545£           53,969£         4,497£           0 -£              

Youth Work/Activity Assistant 3.0 40 7.50£             15,600£         2,153£           17,753£         1,479£           0 -£              

CREATIVE TEAM 88,304£         
Dance & Performing Arts Leader 1.0 21,000£         21,000£         3,528£           24,528£         2,044£           0.5 1,022£           1,022£       1,022£       

Music & Media Leader 1.0 21,000£         21,000£         3,528£           24,528£         2,044£           0.5 1,022£           1,022£       1,022£       

Fashion, Art & Design Leader 0.5 21,000£         10,500£         1,764£           12,264£         1,022£           0.5 511£             511£          511£          

Youth Instructor 3.0 48 9.50£             23,712£         3,272£           26,984£         2,249£           0 -£              

SUPPORT TEAM 135,357£       

Volunteer Recruitment & Training Manager 1.0 24,000£         24,000£         4,032£           28,032£         2,336£           4 9,344£           2,336£       2,336£       2,336£       2,336£       9,344£       

Communications Manager 0.5 22,000£         11,000£         1,848£           12,848£         1,071£           6 6,424£           1,071£       1,071£       1,071£       1,071£       1,071£       1,071£       6,424£       

Maintenance Officer 1.0 18,000£         18,000£         3,024£           21,024£         1,752£           0.5 876£             876£          876£          

Catering Leader 1.0 19,000£         19,000£         3,192£           22,192£         1,849£           0 -£              -£           

Reception 2.0 60 7.25£             22,620£         3,122£           25,742£         2,145£           0 -£              

Catering (Cook) 2.0 26 7.50£             10,140£         1,399£           11,539£         962£              0 -£              

Cleaner & Supervisor 2.0 35 6.75£             12,285£         1,695£           13,980£         1,165£           0 -£              

Outreach Co-ordinator 0.0 21,000£         -£               -£               -£               -£               0 -£              -£           

Mentoring Co-ordinator 0.0 22,000£         -£               -£               -£               -£               0 -£              -£           

Enterprise Co-ordinator 0.0 21,000£         -£               -£               -£               -£               0 -£              -£           

POSITIONS 45.2 13.8% on costs 794,110£       66,176£         199,017£       

NB: Operations staff as a % of overall staff cost 27% 199,017£   

Premises Costs

Utilities 51,744£         4,312£           1 4,312£           4,312£       4,312£       

Waste Management 1,860£           155£              1 155£             155£          155£          

Security 1,020£           85£                1 85£               85£            85£            

Repairs & Maintenance & Materials 29,604£         2,467£           1 2,467£           2,467£       2,467£       

Cleaning materials/equipment 10,440£         870£              1 870£             870£          870£          

Insurances 10,000£         833£              1 833£             833£          833£          

NNDR rates - 80% discounted 10,200£         850£              2 1,700£           850£          850£          1,700£       

104,668£       8,722£           10,422£         10,422£     

Management Costs

Staff Recruitment (Pre launch cost only) 14,000£         1,167£           7 14,000£         2,000£       2,000£       2,000£       2,000£       2,000£       2,000£       2,000£       14,000£     

Volunteer Recruitment (Pre launch costs only) 3,500£           292£              5 3,500£           700£          700£          700£          700£          700£          3,500£       

Telephone - Landlines & Mobiles 8,868£           739£              3 2,217£           739£          739£          739£          2,217£       

IT & Website Maintenance/Software 8,432£           703£              3 2,108£           703£          703£          703£          2,108£       

Membership system (installation - all prelaunch) 10,000£         1 10,000£         10,000£     10,000£     

Other supplies & sundry items 20,000£         1,667£           3 5,000£           1,667£       1,667£       1,667£       5,000£       

Finance & Bank Charges 500£              42£                3 125£             42£            42£            42£            125£          

Marketing & Comms (Pre launch cost only) 15,000£         1,250£           3 15,000£         5,000£       5,000£       5,000£       15,000£     

Charity Trustees Insurance 750£              63£                1 750£             750£          750£          

Administration 10,000£         833£              3 2,500£           833£          833£          833£          2,500£       

6,754£           55,200£         55,200£     

Delivery Costs

Sports Activity Consumables 5,000£           417£              1 5,000£           5,000£       5,000£       

Arts & Crafts Consumables 3,000£           250£              1 3,000£           3,000£       3,000£       

Music Projects Consumables 5,000£           417£              1 5,000£           5,000£       5,000£       

Transport Costs (Single Minibus) 3,500£           292£              1 292£             292£          292£          

Prelaunch YP promotional activities/events 2,000£           2 1,000£           500£          500£          1,000£       

Awards & Recognition Events 3,000£           250£              0 -£              -£           

Launch Event 3,000£           1 3,000£           3,000£       3,000£       

Training Expenses 10,000£         833£              4 3,333£           833£          833£          833£          833£          3,333£       

Staff & Volunteer Expenses 5,500£           458£              0 -£              -£           

Catering & Retail Supplies 42,071£         3,506£           1 3,506£           3,506£       3,506£       

Catering Equipment (small items) 2,000£           1 2,000£           2,000£       2,000£       

6,423£           26,131£         26,131£     

TOTAL PRE OPENING EXPENDITURE 1,056,899£    290,771£       19,467£        4,867£       4,867£       4,867£       7,617£       6,867£       6,867£       20,020£     20,220£     38,451£     39,102£     37,452£     80,109£     290,771£   

% of a full operating month 4.1% 4.1% 4.1% 6.3% 5.7% 5.7% 16.7% 16.9% 32.0% 32.6% 31.2% 66.8%

Notes:

On-costs shown at 16.8% for Operations & Delivery Staff but a lower rate might apply in this period depending start of pension entitlement

Wirral Zone Zone

Year Zero - Pre Soft openings

Period (Mths)

P
age 87



Business Plan: Wirral Youth Zone

Young People & Income

File: WirYZ - Financial Plan Revised Format Apr14

Annual Membership Fees income (£) sub-totals (£)

Total Members 3000

Annual Membership fee £5.00 15,000 15,000

Senior Club Session
09:00-

12:00

13:00-

16:00

16:00-

18:00

16:00-

22:00

total 

young 

people weeks

young 

people/ 

year income

morning afternoon twilight evening

Income per young person £0.50 £0.50 £0.50 £0.50

Monday 250 250 52 13,000 6,500

Tuesday 250 250 52 13,000 6,500

Wednesday 250 250 52 13,000 6,500

Thursday 250 250 52 13,000 6,500

Friday 250 250 52 13,000 6,500

Saturday 250 250 52 13,000 6,500

Sunday 250 250 52 13,000 6,500

Total 0 0 0 1750 1750 91,000 45,500 45,500

`

Junior Club Session
09:00-

12:00

13:00-

16:00

16:00-

18:00

18:15-

20:30

total 

young 

people weeks

young 

people/ 

year income

morning afternoon twilight evening

Income per young person £0.50 £0.50 £0.50 £0.50

Monday 0 52 0 0

Tuesday 0 52 0 0

Wednesday 0 52 0 0

Thursday 0 52 0 0

Friday 0 52 0 0

Saturday [Juniors 10:00-14:00 ] 250 250 52 13,000 6,500

Sunday [Juniors 10:00-14:00 ] 250 250 52 13,000 6,500

Total 500 0 0 0 500 26,000 13,000 13,000

Individual Project Sessions
09:00-

12:00

13:00-

16:00

16:00-

18:00

18:00-

22:00

total 

young 

people

young 

people/ 

year

morning afternoon twilight evening

Income per young person £0.50 £0.50 £0.50 £0.50

Monday 0 39 0 0

Tuesday 0 39 0 0

Wednesday 0 39 0 0

Thursday 0 39 0 0

Friday 0 39 0 0

Saturday 0 39 0 0

Sunday 0 39 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Holiday Sessions
08:00- 

13:00

13:00-

18:00

total 

young 

people

young 

people/ 

year income (£)

morning afternoon twilight evening

Income per young person £3.50 £3.50

Monday 1860 1860 0 0 3720 3,720 13,020

Tuesday 1860 1860 0 0 3720 3,720 13,020

Wednesday 1860 1860 0 0 3720 3,720 13,020

Thursday 1860 1860 0 0 3720 3,720 13,020

Friday 1860 1860 0 0 3720 3,720 13,020

Saturday 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sunday 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 9300 9300 0 0 18600 18,600 65,100 65,100

Secondary Spend %takeup sum (£) income (£)

Senior Club Session 91,000 visits 65% 0.70 41,405 41,405

Junior Club Session 26,000 visits 75% 0.90 17,550 17,550

Individual Project Sessions 0 visits 50% 1.00 0 0

Holiday Sessions 18,600 visits 80% 1.80 26,784 26,784

sub total 135,600 85,739 85,739 85,739

Other Income income (£)

Private Sector Income 530,000 530,000

Trusts, Grants & Foundations* 0 0

Local Authority Revenue Grant 400,000 400,000

Fundraising Events (Shown as Net Income) 40,000 40,000

Facility Hire 6,000 6,000

Off Site Activities Contributions 10,000 10,000

Trips & Residentials Contributions 8,000 8,000

sub total 994,000 994,000

TOTAL INCOME: 1,218,339

*Trusts, Grants & Foundations shown as £0 since any income here will fund additional areas of work beyond the core activity offer

catering & retail combined

insert data in coloured cells only

Page 88



Business Plan: Wirral Youth Zone

STAFFING - FULL TIME & SUMMARY
File: WirYZ - Financial Plan Revised Format Apr14 insert data in coloured cells only

16.8% on costs

Position Hours/wk FTE Salary (£) Pro rata (£) On costs (£) Total (£)

OPERATIONS STAFF

General Manager 40.00 1.0 50,000 50,000       8,400          58,400        

Finance Manager 8.00 0.2 36,000 7,200         1,210          8,410          

Business & Administration Manager 40.00 1.0 28,000 28,000       4,704          32,704        

Administration Assistant (including H.R.) 40.00 1.0 18,000 18,000       3,024          21,024        

Business Development Manager (Private Sector Dev) 40.00 1.0 38,000 38,000       6,384          44,384        

Events Coordinator 20.00 0.5 24,000 12,000       2,016          14,016        

Trusts & Grants Fundraising Officer 40.00 1.0 28,000 28,000       4,704          32,704        

228.00 5.7 181,200     30,442        211,642      

SUPPORT TEAM - INDIRECT DELIVERY

Volunteer Recruitment and Training Manager 40.00 1.0 24,000 24,000       4,032          28,032        

Communications Manager 20.00 0.5 22,000 11,000       1,848          12,848        

Maintenance Officer (Building) 40.00 1.0 18,000 18,000       3,024          21,024        

Cleaning Supervisor 15.00 6.75 0.4 5,265 5,265         885             6,150          

Cleaner 20.00 6.75 0.5 7,020 7,020         1,179          8,199          

135.00 3.4 65,285       10,968        76,253        

Position

REC AREA TEAM - DELIVERY

Head of Youth Work/Youth Zone Manager (incl covering shifts) 40.00 1.0 35,000 35,000 5,880 40,880

Senior Club Coordinator 40.00 1.0 26,000 26,000 4,368 30,368

Junior/Holiday Club Coordinator 40.00 1.0 26,000 26,000 4,368 30,368

Recreation Area Leader 40.00 1.0 21,000 21,000 3,528 24,528

Independence Group Leader 40.00 1.0 21,000 21,000 3,528 24,528

Health & Participation Leader 20.00 0.5 21,000 10,500 1,764 12,264

Youth Worker/Instructor (Rec Area, Internal) 18.00 9.50 0.5 8,892 8,892 1,494 10,386

Youth Work/Activity Assistant (Rec Area, Internal) 12.00 7.50 0.3 4,680 4,680 786 5,466

Youth Worker/Instructor (Rec Area, External) 16.00 9.50 0.4 7,904 7,904 1,328 9,232

Youth Work/Activity Assistant (Rec Area, External) 12.00 7.50 0.3 4,680 4,680 786 5,466

Youth Worker/Instructor (Participation incl. Young Leaders) 13.00 9.50 0.3 6,422 6,422 1,079 7,501

Youth Worker/Instructor (Participation incl. Young Leaders) 12.00 9.50 0.3 5,928 5,928 996 6,924

Youth Worker/Instructor (Girls Work incl. Health & Beauty) 16.00 9.50 0.4 7,904 7,904 1,328 9,232

Youth Worker/Instructor (Girls Work incl. Health & Beauty) 12.00 9.50 0.3 5,928 5,928 996 6,924

Youth Work/Activity Assistant (Girls Work incl. Health & Beauty) 12.00 7.50 0.3 4,680 4,680 786 5,466

REC AREA TEAM - HOLIDAY CLUB 343.00

Leader in Charge (Holiday Club) 50.00 11.00 0.3 7,150 7,150 1,201 8,351

Youth Worker/Instructor (Holiday Club) 15.00 9.50 0.1 1,853 1,853 311 2,164

Playworker (Holiday Club) 20.00 6.50 0.1 1,690 1,690 284 1,974

Playworker (Holiday Club) 15.00 6.50 0.1 1,268 1,268 213 1,480

Playworker (Holiday Club) 15.00 6.50 0.1 1,268 1,268 213 1,480

115.00

SPORTS TEAM - DELIVERY

Sports Hall Leader 40.00 1.0 21,000 21,000 3,528 24,528

Outdoor Adventure & Climbing Leader 40.00 1.0 21,000 21,000 3,528 24,528

Health & Fitness Leader 40.00 1.0 21,000 21,000 3,528 24,528

Youth Worker/Instructor (Sports Hall) 16.00 9.50 0.4 7,904 7,904 1,328 9,232

Youth Work/Activity Assisstant (Sports Hall) 16.00 7.50 0.4 6,240 6,240 1,048 7,288

Youth Worker/Instructor (Health & Fitness Suite) 16.00 9.50 0.4 7,904 7,904 1,328 9,232

Youth Worker/Instructor (Outdoor & Climbing) 16.00 9.50 0.4 7,904 7,904 1,328 9,232

Youth Worker/Instructor (Boxing & Martial Arts) 20.00 9.50 0.5 9,880 9,880 1,660 11,540

Youth Worker/Instructor (Boxing & Martial Arts) 12.00 9.50 0.3 5,928 5,928 996 6,924

Youth Work/Activity Assistant (Boxing & Martial Arts) 12.00 7.50 0.3 4,680 4,680 786 5,466

228.00

CREATIVE TEAM - DELIVERY

Dance & Performing Arts Leader 40.00 1.0 21,000 21,000 3,528 24,528

Music & Media Leader 40.00 1.0 21,000 21,000 3,528 24,528

Fashion, Art & Design Leader 20.00 0.5 21,000 10,500 1,764 12,264

Youth Worker/Instructor (Dance & Performing Arts) 16.00 9.50 0.4 7,904 7,904 1,328 9,232

Youth Worker/Instructor (Music & Multi-Media) 16.00 9.50 0.4 7,904 7,904 1,328 9,232

Youth Worker/Instructor (Fashion, Art & Design) 16.00 9.50 0.4 7,904 7,904 1,328 9,232

148.00

SUPPORT TEAM - DELIVERY

Catering Leader 40.00 1.0 19,000 19,000 3,192 22,192

Receptionist (1) 30.00 7.25 0.8 11,310 11,310 1,900 13,210

Receptionist (2) 30.00 7.25 0.8 11,310 11,310 1,900 13,210

Cook/Assistant Caterer (1) 13.00 7.50 0.3 5,070 5,070 852 5,922

Cook/Assistant Caterer (2) 13.00 7.50 0.3 5,070 5,070 852 5,922

Outreach Coordinator 0.00 0.0 21,000 0 0 0

Mentoring Co-ordinator 0.00 0.0 22,000 0 0 0

Enterprise Coordinator 0.00 0.0 21,000 0 0 0

126.00 21.8 451,158 75,794 526,952

Total 1323.00 30.9 697,643     117,204      814,846      

TOTAL STAFF COSTS Total Salary cost FTE

OPERATIONS STAFF 211,642 5.7

SUPPORT TEAM - INDIRECT DELIVERY 76,253 3.4

FULL TIME DELIVERY STAFF 295,504 11.0

PART TIME STAFF FOR ACTIVITY AREAS 231,448 10.8

814,846 30.9

Page 89



Delivery Hours Analysis

Open/delivery hours per week 38  

Hours/wk
Per 

open hr Cost/annum

Overheads

Operations staff 228 211,642£         

Premises Costs 124,350£         

Management Costs 69,107£           

Delivery Costs 106,017£         

Indirect

Support team - indirect delivery 135 76,253£           

Direct staff 

Youth Work Manager 40 40,880£           

REC 303 8.0 188,653£         

Sports 228 6.0 132,498£         

Creative 148 3.9 89,016£           

Support team - delivery 126 3.3 60,456£           

21.2

Total staffing hours per week 1208

Total cost per annum 1,098,871£      

Per delivery hour

Total number of staff hours per delivery hr 32

Cost per delivery hour 556£                

Holiday Club Days 62

Hours/wk Cost/annum

Holiday Club - additional staffing for 13 weeks 115 15,450£           

Total Annual Organisation cost

Total core staff and delivery costs 1,098,871£      

Holiday club 15,450£           

1,114,321£      

P
age 90



Business Plan: Wirral Youth Zone

EXPENDITURE
File: WirYZ - Financial Plan Revised Format Apr14

insert data in coloured cells only

Staffing Costs

OPERATIONS STAFF 211,642

SUPPORT TEAM - INDIRECT DELIVERY 76,253

FULL TIME DELIVERY STAFF 295,504

PART TIME STAFF FOR ACTIVITY AREAS 231,448

814,846

Build cost 5,000,000 for area of 3,000                 m
2

Premises Costs rate/square metre (£) fixed sum (£)

Utilities 15.00 45,000

Repairs & Maintenance 5.00 15,000

Life-cycle costs 0.5% 25,000

Plant Maintenance Contracts 2.50 7,500

Alarm Costs 1.50 4,500

Waste Management Charges 0.30 900

Cleaning Materials/Equipment 1.25 3,750

National Non Domestic Rates  (non discount) 17.00 51,000

NNDR (discount) 80%

NNDR rates 10,200

% of capital cost fixed sum (£)

Insurances 0.25% 12,500

124,350

Management Costs % of total income fixed sum (£)

Telephone - Landlines & Mobiles 0.9% 10,965

IT & Website Maintenance & Software 0.8% 9,747

Audit and Legal Costs 0.7% 8,528

Licences 0.1% 1,218

Monitoring & Evaluation Costs 0

Photocopier/Printer Costs 2,500 2,500

Printing, Postage & Stationery 7,000 7,000

Staff Uniforms 3,000 3,000

Hospitality 1,000 1,000

OnSide Network Donation 17,000 17,000

Other Supplies & Sundry Items 0.0% 0

Recruitment and travel 8,148

69,107

Delivery Costs fixed sum (£)

Sports Activity Consumables 5,000 5,000

Arts, Crafts & Fashion Consumables 4,000 4,000

Music & Media Projects Consumables 3,000 3,000

Miscellaneous Project Consumables 4,500 4,500

Transport Running Costs (Single Minibus) 3,500 3,500

Celebration & Promotion Events 2,000 2,000

Marketing & Communication 2,000 2,000

Training Expenses 5,000 5,000

Volunteer Expenses 3,000 3,000

Staff Expenses 6,000 6,000

Offsite Activities Costs 3,000 3,000

Trips & Residentials Costs 5,000 5,000

% of secondary spend 

Catering & Retail Supplies 70% 60,017

106,017

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 1,114,321

Note: "Other Personnel Costs" includes travel expenses and recruitment costs 

Page 91



Business Plan: Wirral Youth Zone

Holiday Sessions
File: WirYZ - Financial Plan Revised Format Apr14

12.4

February 

half term

08:00-

13:00

13:00-

18:00

total 

young 

people weeks

young 

people/ 

year Easter

08:00-

13:00

13:00-

18:00

total 

young 

people weeks

young 

people/ 

year

morning afternoon twilight evening morning afternoon twilight evening

Monday 150 150 300 1 300 Monday 150 150 300 2 600

Tuesday 150 150 300 1 300 Tuesday 150 150 300 2 600

Wednesday 150 150 300 1 300 Wednesday 150 150 300 2 600

Thursday 150 150 300 1 300 Thursday 150 150 300 2 600

Friday 150 150 300 1 300 Friday 150 150 300 2 600

Saturday 0 1 0 Saturday 0 0 0

Sunday 0 0 0 Sunday 0 0 0

Total 750 750 0 0 1500 1,500 Total 750 750 0 0 1500 3,000

May half 

term

08:00-

13:00

13:00-

18:00

total 

young 

people weeks

young 

people/ 

year Summer

08:00-

13:00

13:00-

18:00

total 

young 

people weeks

young 

people/ 

year

morning afternoon twilight evening morning afternoon twilight evening

Monday 150 150 300 1 300 Monday 150 150 300 6 1800

Tuesday 150 150 300 1 300 Tuesday 150 150 300 6 1800

Wednesday 150 150 300 1 300 Wednesday 150 150 300 6 1800

Thursday 150 150 300 1 300 Thursday 150 150 300 6 1800

Friday 150 150 300 1 300 Friday 150 150 300 6 1800

Saturday 0 0 0 Saturday 0 0 0

Sunday 0 0 0 Sunday 0 0 0

Total 750 750 0 0 1500 1,500 Total 750 750 0 0 1500 9,000

October 

half term

08:00-

13:00

13:00-

18:00

total 

young 

people weeks

young 

people/ 

year

Christmas 

& New 

Year

08:00-

13:00

13:00-

18:00

total 

young 

people weeks

young 

people/ 

year

morning afternoon twilight evening morning afternoon twilight evening

Monday 150 150 300 1 300 Monday 150 150 300 1.4 420

Tuesday 150 150 300 1 300 Tuesday 150 150 300 1.4 420

Wednesday 150 150 300 1 300 Wednesday 150 150 300 1.4 420

Thursday 150 150 300 1 300 Thursday 150 150 300 1.4 420

Friday 150 150 300 1 300 Friday 150 150 300 1.4 420

Saturday 0 0 0 Saturday 0 0 0

Sunday 0 0 0 Sunday 0 0 0

Total 750 750 0 0 1500 1,500 Total 750 750 0 0 1500 2,100

TOTAL
08:00-

13:00

13:00-

18:00

15:30-

18:30

18:30-

22:00

morning afternoon twilight evening

Monday 1860 1860 0 0 3720

Tuesday 1860 1860 0 0 3720

Wednesday 1860 1860 0 0 3720

Thursday 1860 1860 0 0 3720

Friday 1860 1860 0 0 3720

Saturday 0 0 0 0 0

Sunday 0 0 0 0 0

Total 9300 9300 0 0 18600

insert data in coloured cells only

young 

people/ 

year

P
age 92



Business Plan: Wirral Youth Zone

Y1 - Y5 SUMMARY

File: WirYZ - Financial Plan Revised Format Apr14
insert data in coloured cells only

INCOME Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Fees

Annual Membership Fees 15,000 0% 15,000 3% 15,450 3% 15,914 2% 16,232

Senior Club Session 45,500 0% 45,500 3% 46,865 3% 48,271 2% 49,236

Junior Club Session 13,000 0% 13,000 3% 13,390 3% 13,792 2% 14,068

Individual Project Sessions 0 0% 0 3% 0 3% 0 2% 0

Holiday Sessions 52,080 -20% 65,100 3% 67,053 3% 69,065 2% 70,446

125,580 138,600 142,758 147,041 149,982

Secondary Spend

Secondary Spend 72,878 -15% 85,739 5% 90,026 3% 92,727 2% 94,581

72,878 85,739 90,026 92,727 94,581

Other Income

Private Sector Income 516,750 -2.5% 530,000 3% 545,900 2% 556,818 2% 567,954

Trusts, Grants & Foundations* 0 0% 0 2% 0 2% 0 2% 0

Local Authority Revenue Grant 400,000 0% 400,000 0% 400,000 0% 400,000 0% 400,000

Fundraising Events (Shown as Net Income) 40,000 0% 40,000 2% 40,800 2% 41,616 2% 42,448

Facility Hire 6,000 0% 6,000 3% 6,180 2% 6,304 2% 6,430

Off Site Activities Contributions 10,000 0% 10,000 3% 10,300 2% 10,506 2% 10,716

Trips & Residentials Contributions 8,000 0% 8,000 3% 8,240 2% 8,405 2% 8,573

980,750 994,000 1,011,420 1,023,648 1,036,121

TOTAL INCOME 1,179,208 1,218,339 1,244,204 1,263,416 1,280,684

Allowance for Discounts 0% 0 0 0 0 0

NET INCOME 1,179,208 1,218,339 1,244,204 1,263,416 1,280,684

EXPENDITURE

Staffing Costs

OPERATIONS STAFF 211,642        0% 211,642 2% 215,874 2% 220,192 2% 224,596

SUPPORT TEAM - INDIRECT DELIVERY 76,253          0% 76,253 2% 77,778 2% 79,333 2% 80,920

FULL TIME DELIVERY STAFF 295,504        0% 295,504 2% 301,414 2% 307,442 2% 313,591

PART TIME STAFF FOR ACTIVITY AREAS 231,448        0% 231,448 2% 236,077 2% 240,798 2% 245,614

Recruitment and travel 8,148 0% 8,148 2% 8,311 2% 8,478 2% 8,647

822,995 822,995 839,455 856,244 873,369

Premises Costs

Utilities 40,500 -10% 45,000 5% 47,250 5% 49,613 5% 52,093

Repairs & Maintenance 1,500 -90% 15,000 2% 15,300 2% 15,606 2% 15,918

Life-cycle costs 25,000 0% 25,000 2% 25,500 2% 26,010 2% 26,530

Plant Maintenance Contracts 750 -90% 7,500 5% 7,875 5% 8,269 5% 8,682

Alarm Costs 4,500 0% 4,500 5% 4,725 5% 4,961 5% 5,209

Waste Management Charges 900 0% 900 5% 945 5% 992 5% 1,042

Cleaning Materials/Equipment 3,750 0% 3,750 2% 3,825 2% 3,902 2% 3,980

NNDR rates 10,200 0% 10,200 0% 10,200 0% 10,200 0% 10,200

Insurances 12,500 0% 12,500 2% 12,750 2% 13,005 2% 13,265

99,600 124,350 128,370 132,557 136,919

Management Costs

Telephone - Landlines & Mobiles 10,965 0% 10,965 3% 11,294 3% 11,633 3% 11,982

IT & Website Maintenance & Software 9,747 0% 9,747 3% 10,039 3% 10,340 3% 10,650

Audit and Legal Costs 8,528 0% 8,528 3% 8,784 3% 9,048 3% 9,319

Licences 1,218 0% 1,218 3% 1,255 3% 1,293 3% 1,331

Monitoring & Evaluation Costs 0 0% 0 3% 0 3% 0 3% 0

Photocopier/Printer Costs 2,500 0% 2,500 3% 2,575 3% 2,652 3% 2,732

Printing, Postage & Stationery 7,000 0% 7,000 3% 7,210 3% 7,426 3% 7,649

Staff Uniforms 6,000 100% 3,000 3% 3,090 3% 3,183 3% 3,278

Hospitality 1,000 0% 1,000 3% 1,030 3% 1,061 3% 1,093

OnSide Network Donation 17,000 0% 17,000 0% 17,000 0% 17,000 0% 17,000

Other Supplies & Sundry Items 0 0% 0 3% 0 3% 0 3% 0

63,958 60,958 62,277 63,636 65,035

Delivery Costs

Sports Activity Consumables 5,000 0% 5,000 2% 5,100 2% 5,202 2% 5,306

Arts, Crafts & Fashion Consumables 4,000 0% 4,000 2% 4,080 2% 4,162 2% 4,245

Music & Media Projects Consumables 3,000 0% 3,000 2% 3,060 2% 3,121 2% 3,184

Miscellaneous Project Consumables 4,500 0% 4,500 2% 4,590 2% 4,682 2% 4,775

Transport Running Costs (Single Minibus) 3,500 0% 3,500 2% 3,570 2% 3,641 2% 3,714

Celebration & Promotion Events 2,000 0% 2,000 2% 2,040 2% 2,081 2% 2,122

Marketing & Communication 2,000 0% 2,000 2% 2,040 2% 2,081 2% 2,122

Training Expenses 5,000 0% 5,000 2% 5,100 2% 5,202 2% 5,306

Volunteer Expenses 3,000 0% 3,000 2% 3,060 2% 3,121 2% 3,184

Staff Expenses 6,000 0% 6,000 2% 6,120 2% 6,242 2% 6,367

Offsite Activities Costs 3,000 0% 3,000 2% 3,060 2% 3,121 2% 3,184

Trips & Residentials Costs 5,000 0% 5,000 2% 5,100 2% 5,202 2% 5,306

Catering & Retail Supplies 60,017 0% 60,017 2% 61,218 2% 62,442 2% 63,691

106,017 106,017 108,138 110,300 112,506

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 1,092,571 1,114,321 1,138,240 1,162,737 1,187,829

Allowance for Contingency 1.0% 10,926 11,143 11,382 11,627 11,878

NET EXPENDITURE 1,103,496 1,125,464 1,149,622 1,174,364 1,199,708

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 75,712 92,875 94,582 89,051 80,977

Page 93



Business Plan: Wirral Youth Zone

Year 1 MONTHLY

File: WirYZ - Financial Plan Revised Format Apr14

INCOME year 1 total

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

1 9% 9% 9% 9% 9% 8% 5% 6% 9% 9% 9% 9% 100%

2 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 100%

3 0.0% 7.7% 0.0% 15.4% 7.7% 0.0% 7.7% 30.8% 0.0% 7.7% 0.0% 15.4% 92%

4 25.0% 0.0% 0.0% 25.0% 0.0% 0.0% 25.0% 0.0% 0.0% 25.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100%

Fees

Annual Membership Fees 1 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,200 750 900 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,350 15,000

Senior Club Session 1 4,095 4,095 4,095 4,095 4,095 3,640 2,275 2,730 4,095 4,095 4,095 4,095 45,500

Junior Club Session 1 1,170 1,170 1,170 1,170 1,170 1,040 650 780 1,170 1,170 1,170 1,170 13,000

Individual Project Sessions 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Holiday Sessions 3 0 4,005 0 8,010 4,005 0 4,005 16,020 0 4,005 0 8,010 52,080

125,580

Secondary Spend

Secondary Spend 1 6,559 6,559 6,559 6,559 6,559 5,830 3,644 4,373 6,559 6,559 6,559 6,559 72,878

72,878

Other Income

Private Sector Income 2 43,062 43,062 43,062 43,062 43,062 43,062 43,062 43,062 43,062 43,062 43,062 43,062 516,750

Trusts, Grants & Foundations* 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Local Authority Revenue Grant 4 100,000 0 0 100,000 0 0 100,000 0 0 100,000 0 0 400,000

Fundraising Events (Shown as Net Income) 4 10,000 0 0 10,000 0 0 10,000 0 0 10,000 0 0 40,000

Facility Hire 2 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 6,000

Off Site Activities Contributions 2 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 10,000

Trips & Residentials Contributions 1 720 720 720 720 720 640 400 480 720 720 720 720 8,000

980,750

TOTAL INCOME 168,290 62,295 58,290 176,300 62,295 56,746 166,120 69,678 58,290 172,295 58,290 66,300 1,179,208

Allowance for Discounts 0% 0

NET INCOME 1,179,208

EXPENDITURE
8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8% 8%

Staffing Costs

OPERATIONS STAFF 2 17,637 17,637 17,637 17,637 17,637 17,637 17,637 17,637 17,637 17,637 17,637 17,637 211,642

SUPPORT TEAM - INDIRECT DELIVERY 2 6,354 6,354 6,354 6,354 6,354 6,354 6,354 6,354 6,354 6,354 6,354 6,354 76,253

FULL TIME DELIVERY STAFF 2 24,625 24,625 24,625 24,625 24,625 24,625 24,625 24,625 24,625 24,625 24,625 24,625 295,504

PART TIME STAFF FOR ACTIVITY AREAS 2 19,287 19,287 19,287 19,287 19,287 19,287 19,287 19,287 19,287 19,287 19,287 19,287 231,448

Recruitment and travel 2 679 679 679 679 679 679 679 679 679 679 679 679 8,148

822,995

Premises Costs

Utilities 2 3,375 3,375 3,375 3,375 3,375 3,375 3,375 3,375 3,375 3,375 3,375 3,375 40,500

Repairs & Maintenance 2 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 1,500

Plant Maintenance Contracts 2 62 62 62 62 62 62 62 62 62 62 62 62 750

Alarm Costs 2 375 375 375 375 375 375 375 375 375 375 375 375 4,500

Waste Management Charges 2 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 75 900

Cleaning Materials/Equipment 2 312 312 312 312 312 312 312 312 312 312 312 312 3,750

NNDR rates 2 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 10,200

Insurances 2 1,042 1,042 1,042 1,042 1,042 1,042 1,042 1,042 1,042 1,042 1,042 1,042 12,500

74,600

Management Costs

Telephone - Landlines & Mobiles 2 914 914 914 914 914 914 914 914 914 914 914 914 10,965

IT & Website Maintenance & Software 2 812 812 812 812 812 812 812 812 812 812 812 812 9,747

Audit and Legal Costs 2 711 711 711 711 711 711 711 711 711 711 711 711 8,528

Licences 2 102 102 102 102 102 102 102 102 102 102 102 102 1,218

Monitoring & Evaluation Costs 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Photocopier/Printer Costs 2 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 2,500

Printing, Postage & Stationery 2 583 583 583 583 583 583 583 583 583 583 583 583 7,000

Staff Uniforms 2 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 6,000

Hospitality 2 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 1,000

OnSide Network Donation 2 1,417 1,417 1,417 1,417 1,417 1,417 1,417 1,417 1,417 1,417 1,417 1,417 17,000

Other Supplies & Sundry Items 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

63,958

Delivery Costs

Sports Activity Consumables 2 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 5,000

Arts, Crafts & Fashion Consumables 2 333 333 333 333 333 333 333 333 333 333 333 333 4,000

Music & Media Projects Consumables 2 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 3,000

Miscellaneous Project Consumables 2 375 375 375 375 375 375 375 375 375 375 375 375 4,500

Transport Running Costs (Single Minibus) 2 292 292 292 292 292 292 292 292 292 292 292 292 3,500

Celebration & Promotion Events 2 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 2,000

Marketing & Communication 2 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 167 2,000

Training Expenses 2 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 5,000

Volunteer Expenses 2 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 3,000

Offsite Activities Costs 2 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 3,000

Trips & Residentials Costs 2 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 5,000

Catering & Retail Supplies 2 5,001 5,001 5,001 5,001 5,001 5,001 5,001 5,001 5,001 5,001 5,001 5,001 60,017

100,017

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 82,796 82,796 82,796 82,796 82,796 82,796 82,796 82,796 82,796 82,796 82,796 82,796 1,092,571

Allowance for Contingency 1.0% 10,926

NET EXPENDITURE 1,103,496

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 75,712

Year 1

insert data in coloured cells only

Page 94



Business Plan: Wirral Youth Zone

Years 2-5 Quarterly

File: WirYZ - Financial Plan Revised Format Apr14

INCOME total total total total

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4

Seasonal variance in attendance 27% 27% 19% 27% 27% 27% 19% 27% 27% 27% 19% 27% 27% 27% 19% 27%

Straight line in expenditure 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%

Fees

Annual Membership Fees 4,050 4,050 2,850 4,050 15,000 4,172 4,172 2,936 4,172 15,450 4,297 4,297 3,024 4,297 15,914 4,383 4,383 3,084 4,383 16,232

Senior Club Session 12,285 12,285 8,645 12,285 45,500 12,654 12,654 8,904 12,654 46,865 13,033 13,033 9,171 13,033 48,271 13,294 13,294 9,355 13,294 49,236

Junior Club Session 3,510 3,510 2,470 3,510 13,000 3,615 3,615 2,544 3,615 13,390 3,724 3,724 2,620 3,724 13,792 3,798 3,798 2,673 3,798 14,068

Individual Project Sessions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Holiday Sessions 17,577 17,577 12,369 17,577 65,100 18,104 18,104 12,740 18,104 67,053 18,647 18,647 13,122 18,647 69,065 19,020 19,020 13,385 19,020 70,446

138,600 142,758 147,041 149,982

Secondary Spend

Secondary Spend 23,150 23,150 16,290 23,150 85,739 24,307 24,307 17,105 24,307 90,026 25,036 25,036 17,618 25,036 92,727 25,537 25,537 17,970 25,537 94,581

85,739 90,026 92,727 94,581

Other Income

Private Sector Income 143,100 143,100 100,700 143,100 530,000 147,393 147,393 103,721 147,393 545,900 150,341 150,341 105,795 150,341 556,818 153,348 153,348 107,911 153,348 567,954

Trusts, Grants & Foundations* 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Local Authority Revenue Grant 108,000 108,000 76,000 108,000 400,000 108,000 108,000 76,000 108,000 400,000 108,000 108,000 76,000 108,000 400,000 108,000 108,000 76,000 108,000 400,000

Fundraising Events (Shown as Net Income) 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 40,000 10,200 10,200 10,200 10,200 40,800 10,404 10,404 10,404 10,404 41,616 10,612 10,612 10,612 10,612 42,448

Facility Hire 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 6,000 1,545 1,545 1,545 1,545 6,180 1,576 1,576 1,576 1,576 6,304 1,607 1,607 1,607 1,607 6,430

Off Site Activities Contributions 2,700 2,700 1,900 2,700 10,000 2,781 2,781 1,957 2,781 10,300 2,837 2,837 1,996 2,837 10,506 2,893 2,893 2,036 2,893 10,716

Trips & Residentials Contributions 2,160 2,160 1,520 2,160 8,000 2,225 2,225 1,566 2,225 8,240 2,269 2,269 1,597 2,269 8,405 2,315 2,315 1,629 2,315 8,573

994,000 1,011,420 1,023,648 1,036,121

TOTAL INCOME 328,032 328,032 234,244 328,032 1,218,339 334,995 334,995 239,218 334,995 1,244,204 340,164 340,164 242,924 340,164 1,263,416 344,807 344,807 246,263 344,807 1,280,684

Allowance for Discounts 0 0 0 0

NET INCOME 1,218,339 1,244,204 1,263,416 1,280,684

EXPENDITURE

Staffing Costs

OPERATIONS STAFF 52,910 52,910 52,910 52,910 211,642 53,969 53,969 53,969 53,969 215,874 55,048 55,048 55,048 55,048 220,192 56,149 53,969 53,969 53,969 224,596

SUPPORT TEAM - INDIRECT DELIVERY 19,063 19,063 19,063 19,063 76,253 19,444 19,444 19,444 19,444 77,778 19,833 19,833 19,833 19,833 79,333 20,230 19,444 19,444 19,444 80,920

FULL TIME DELIVERY STAFF 73,876 73,876 73,876 73,876 295,504 75,354 75,354 75,354 75,354 301,414 76,861 76,861 76,861 76,861 307,442 78,398 78,398 78,398 78,398 313,591

PART TIME STAFF FOR ACTIVITY AREAS 57,862 57,862 57,862 57,862 231,448 59,019 59,019 59,019 59,019 236,077 60,200 60,200 60,200 60,200 240,798 61,404 61,404 61,404 61,404 245,614

Recruitment and travel 2,037 2,037 2,037 2,037 8,148 2,078 2,078 2,078 2,078 8,311 2,119 2,119 2,119 2,119 8,478 2,162 2,162 2,162 2,162 8,647

822,995 839,455 856,244 873,369

Premises Costs

Utilities 11,250 11,250 11,250 11,250 45,000 11,813 11,250 11,250 11,250 47,250 12,403 12,403 11,250 11,250 49,613 13,023 11,250 11,250 11,250 52,093

Repairs & Maintenance 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 15,000 3,825 3,825 3,825 3,825 15,300 3,825 3,825 3,825 3,825 15,606 3,980 3,980 3,980 3,980 15,918

Plant Maintenance Contracts 1,875 2,025 1,425 2,025 7,500 1,969 1,969 1,969 1,969 7,875 2,067 2,067 2,067 2,067 8,269 2,171 2,171 2,171 2,171 8,682

Alarm Costs 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 4,500 1,181 1,181 1,181 1,181 4,725 1,240 1,240 1,240 1,240 4,961 1,302 1,302 1,302 1,302 5,209

Waste Management Charges 225 225 225 225 900 236 236 236 236 945 248 248 248 248 992 260 260 260 260 1,042

Cleaning Materials/Equipment 938 938 938 938 3,750 956 956 956 956 3,825 975 975 975 975 3,902 995 995 995 995 3,980

NNDR rates 2,550 2,550 2,550 2,550 10,200 2,550 2,550 2,550 2,550 10,200 2,550 2,550 2,550 2,550 10,200 2,550 2,550 2,550 2,550 10,200

Insurances 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 12,500 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 12,750 3,251 3,251 3,251 3,251 13,005 3,316 3,316 3,316 3,316 13,265

124,350 128,370 132,557 136,919

Management Costs

Telephone - Landlines & Mobiles 2,741 2,741 2,741 2,741 10,965 2,824 2,824 2,824 2,824 11,294 2,908 2,908 2,908 2,908 11,633 2,995 2,995 2,995 2,995 11,982

IT & Website Maintenance & Software 2,437 2,437 2,437 2,437 9,747 2,510 2,510 2,510 2,510 10,039 2,585 2,585 2,585 2,585 10,340 2,663 2,663 2,663 2,663 10,650

Audit and Legal Costs 2,132 2,132 2,132 2,132 8,528 2,196 2,196 2,196 2,196 8,784 2,262 2,262 2,262 2,262 9,048 2,330 2,330 2,330 2,330 9,319

Licences 305 305 305 305 1,218 314 314 314 314 1,255 323 323 323 323 1,293 333 333 333 333 1,331

Monitoring & Evaluation Costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Photocopier/Printer Costs 625 625 625 625 2,500 644 644 644 644 2,575 663 663 663 663 2,652 683 683 683 683 2,732

Printing, Postage & Stationery 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 7,000 1,803 1,803 1,803 1,803 7,210 1,857 1,857 1,857 1,857 7,426 1,912 1,912 1,912 1,912 7,649

Staff Uniforms 750 750 750 750 3,000 773 773 773 773 3,090 796 796 796 796 3,183 820 820 820 820 3,278

Hospitality 250 250 250 250 1,000 258 258 258 258 1,030 265 265 265 265 1,061 273 273 273 273 1,093

OnSide Network Donation 4,250 4,250 4,250 4,250 17,000 4,250 4,250 4,250 4,250 17,000 4,250 4,250 4,250 4,250 17,000 4,250 4,250 4,250 4,250 17,000

Other Supplies & Sundry Items 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

60,958 62,277 63,636 65,035

Delivery Costs

Sports Activity Consumables 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 5,000 1,275 1,275 1,275 1,275 5,100 1,301 1,301 1,301 1,301 5,202 1,327 1,275 1,275 1,275 5,306

Arts, Crafts & Fashion Consumables 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 4,000 1,020 1,020 1,020 1,020 4,080 1,040 1,040 1,040 1,040 4,162 1,061 1,061 1,061 1,061 4,245

Music & Media Projects Consumables 750 750 750 750 3,000 765 765 765 765 3,060 780 780 780 780 3,121 796 796 796 796 3,184

Miscellaneous Project Consumables 1,125 1,125 1,125 1,125 4,500 1,148 1,148 1,148 1,148 4,590 1,170 1,170 1,170 1,170 4,682 1,194 1,194 1,194 1,194 4,775

Transport Running Costs (Single Minibus) 875 875 875 875 3,500 893 893 893 893 3,570 910 910 910 910 3,641 929 929 929 929 3,714

Celebration & Promotion Events 500 500 500 500 2,000 510 510 510 510 2,040 520 520 520 520 2,081 531 531 531 531 2,122

Marketing & Communication 500 500 500 500 2,000 510 510 510 510 2,040 520 520 520 520 2,081 531 531 531 531 2,122

Training Expenses 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 5,000 1,275 1,275 1,275 1,275 5,100 1,301 1,301 1,301 1,301 5,202 1,327 1,327 1,327 1,327 5,306

Volunteer Expenses 750 750 750 750 3,000 765 765 765 765 3,060 780 780 780 780 3,121 796 796 796 796 3,184

Offsite Activities Costs 750 750 750 750 3,000 765 765 765 765 3,060 780 780 780 780 3,121 796 796 796 796 3,184

Trips & Residentials Costs 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 5,000 1,275 1,275 1,275 1,275 5,100 1,301 1,301 1,301 1,301 5,202 1,327 1,327 1,327 1,327 5,306

Catering & Retail Supplies 15,004 15,004 15,004 15,004 60,017 15,304 15,304 15,304 15,304 61,218 15,610 15,610 15,610 15,610 62,442 15,923 15,923 15,923 15,923 63,691

106,017 108,138 110,300 112,506

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 253,826 253,976 253,376 253,976 1,114,321 259,311 258,748 258,748 258,748 1,138,240 264,853 264,853 263,700 263,700 1,162,737 270,688 265,897 265,897 265,897 1,187,829

Allowance for Contingency 2,786 2,786 2,786 2,786 11,143 2,846 2,846 2,846 2,846 11,382 2,907 2,907 2,907 2,907 11,627 2,970 2,970 2,970 2,970 11,878

NET EXPENDITURE 1,125,464 1,149,622 1,174,364 1,199,708

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 92,875 94,582 89,051 80,977

insert data in coloured cells only

Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

P
age 95



Business Plan: Wirral Youth Zone

NET DEFICIT/SURPLUS
File: WirYZ - Financial Plan Revised Format Apr14

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

surplus of surplus of surplus of surplus of surplus of

Net position 75,712 92,875 94,582 89,051 80,977

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

a
n

n
u

a
l 
d

e
fi

c
it

 /
 s

u
rp

lu
s

Page 96



Business Plan: Wirral Youth Zone

SENSITIVITIES
File: WirYZ - Financial Plan Revised Format Apr14

Scenario 1 Scenario 2 Scenario 3 Scenario 4 Scenario 5

Base (Year 2)

10% increase in 

total costs

10% decrease 

in income

50% decrease 

in volunteer 

recruitment

10% increase in 

income

10% increase in 

income and 

10% decrease 

in costs

INCOME
0% -10% 0% 10% 10%

15,000 15,000 13,500 15,000 16,500 16,500

0% -10% 0% 10% 10%

45,500 45,500 40,950 45,500 50,050 50,050

0% -10% 0% 10% 10%

13,000 13,000 11,700 13,000 14,300 14,300

0% -10% 0% 10% 10%

0 0 0 0 0 0

0% -10% 0% 10% 10%

65,100 65,100 58,590 65,100 71,610 71,610

0% -10% 0% 10% 10%

85,739 85,739 77,165 85,739 94,313 94,313

0% -10% 0% 10% 10%

530,000 530,000 477,000 530,000 583,000 583,000

0% -10% 0% 10% 10%

0 0 0 0 0 0

0% -10% 0% 10% 10%

400,000 400,000 360,000 400,000 440,000 440,000

0% -10% 0% 10% 10%

40,000 40,000 36,000 40,000 44,000 44,000

0% -10% 0% 10% 10%

6,000 6,000 5,400 6,000 6,600 6,600

0% -10% 0% 10% 10%

10,000 10,000 9,000 10,000 11,000 11,000

0% -10% 0% 10% 10%

8,000 8,000 7,200 8,000 8,800 8,800

Subtotal 1,218,339 1,218,339 1,096,505 1,218,339 1,340,173 1,340,173

Discounts 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Income 1,218,339 1,218,339 1,096,505 1,218,339 1,340,173 1,340,173

EXPENDITURE
10% 0% 7% 0% -10%

822,995 905,294 822,995 880,605 822,995 740,695

10% 0% 0% 0% -10%

124,350 136,785 124,350 124,350 124,350 111,915

10% 0% 0% 0% -10%

60,958 67,054 60,958 60,958 60,958 54,863

10% 0% 0% 0% -10%

106,017 116,619 106,017 106,017 106,017 95,416

Subtotal 1,114,321 1,225,753 1,114,321 1,171,930 1,114,321 1,002,889

Contingency 1.0% 11,143 12,258 11,143 11,719 11,143 10,029

Total Expenditure 1,125,464 1,238,010 1,125,464 1,183,650 1,125,464 1,012,917

Net Surplus/Deficit 92,875 -19,671 -28,959 34,689 214,709 327,255

92,875

1 10% increase in total costs -19,671

2 -28,959

3 34,689

4 214,709

5 327,255

Surplus / deficit Scenario

Trips & Residentials 

Contributions

Premises Costs

insert data in coloured cells only

Management Costs

Staffing Costs

Facility Hire

Annual Membership 

Fees

Senior Club Session

Off Site Activities 

Contributions

Trusts, Grants & 

Foundations*

Fundraising Events 

(Shown as Net 

10% increase in income and 10% decrease in costs

10% decrease in income

50% decrease in volunteer recruitment

10% increase in income

Junior Club Session

Individual Project 

Sessions

Holiday Sessions

Secondary Spend

Local Authority 

Revenue Grant

Base (Year 2)

Delivery Costs

Private Sector Income

Page 97



Business Plan: Wirral Youth Zone

KEY DATA
File: WirYZ - Financial Plan Revised Format Apr14

KEY DATA

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Annual Membership Fees 15,000 15,000 15,450 15,914 16,232

Senior Club Session 45,500 45,500 46,865 48,271 49,236  

Junior Club Session 13,000 13,000 13,390 13,792 14,068

Individual Project Sessions 0 0 0 0 0

Holiday Sessions 52,080 65,100 67,053 69,065 70,446

Secondary Spend 72,878 85,739 90,026 92,727 94,581

Private Sector Income 516,750 530,000 545,900 556,818 567,954

Trusts, Grants & Foundations* 0 0 0 0 0

Local Authority Revenue Grant 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000

Fundraising Events (Shown as Net Income) 40,000 40,000 40,800 41,616 42,448

6,000 6,000 6,180 6,304 6,430

Off Site Activities Contributions 10,000 10,000 10,300 10,506 10,716

Trips & Residentials Contributions 8,000 8,000 8,240 8,405 8,573

Discounts 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL INCOME 1,179,208 1,218,339 1,244,204 1,263,416 1,280,684

Staffing Costs 822,995 822,995 839,455 856,244 873,369

Premises Costs 99,600 124,350 128,370 132,557 136,919

Management Costs 63,958 60,958 62,277 63,636 65,035

Delivery Costs 106,017 106,017 108,138 110,300 112,506

Contingency 10,926 11,143 11,382 11,627 11,878

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 1,103,496 1,125,464 1,149,622 1,174,364 1,199,708

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 75,712 92,875 94,582 89,051 80,977

Business Plan: Wirral Youth Zone

Facility Hire

Page 98



OnSide Youth Zones SPECIMEN RISK REGISTER FOR A YOUTH ZONE DEVELOPMENT

Risk ID Risk Category Author Date 

Identified

Description Time 

(T)

1-5

Cost

(C)

1-5

Quality

(Q)

1-5

Impact

(I)

T+C+Q

Probability

(P)

1-5

Severity

I x P

Countermeasures Owner Date of last 

update

Current 

Status

Comments on Current Status

1 Planning Project Manager There is a risk of delays/failure to obtain Full Planning

Permission. Lack of compliance with Council policy and 

national guidance in regards to reserved matters results in 

delays/refusal of planning permission. Impact will be direct to 

the viability of the project.

3 2 2 7 4 28

Early consultation with planners, conservation 

officers and third parties.

OnSide/ Architect Full Planning Permission granted 

by MCC. Contractor working to 

discharge conditions as part of 

building contract.

2 Design Project Manager There is a risk that the project has a weak lead designer which 

may produce an uninspiring design for the youth zone.
2 2 4 8 3 24

Open the scheme out to a design team of local 

architecural practices to ensure best possible 

designs are presented to teh OnSide Board.

OnSide Design competition held to 

identifify most competatnt design 

paractice to deliver the scheme.

3 Financial Project Manager There is a risk of VAT rates rising in the next 6-12 months 

which will affect project budget. OnSide are not VAT elected. 1 3 2 6 4 24

Raise budgetry concerns with BIG and seek 

additional funding via DCSF.

OnSide PM Cost plan amended following 

confirmation of VAT Rise in Jan 

2011.

4 Construction Project Manager There is a risk that the Utilities (Gas, Water, Electric, etc.) 

supplies are incapable of meeting the increased load of new 

facilities.
3 3 1 7 3 21

Assess results from initial utility surveys to 

establish local capacity and feed this into the 

early design of facilities and site layout.

CDMC Services Engineers confirmed 

adequate capacity in networks.

5 Design Project Manager There is a risk that the proposed design team do not have the 

capacity in resource to complete more than one myplace 

scheme at a time.

2 2 3 7 3 21

Consider obtaining additional resourse from other 

practices. All eggs not in one basket.
Design team only responcible for 

one OnSide project.

6 Stakeholder Management Project Manager There is a risk that various pressure groups (neighbours, 

NIMBY etc) object to the scheme.
3 3 1 7 3 21

Maintain communication strategy using 

communications/ marketing officer.

OnSide Comms 

Officer
Still ongoing concern by 

neighbours. Communications 

strategy led by MCC with OnSide 

input.

7 Statutory Project Manager There is a risk that Section 278 Agreements are required.

2 3 2 7 3 21

Confirm this as a requirement due to the works 

and progress at early stage with local council 

officers/legal team.

OnSide S278 Agreements required. 

Contractor risk now project on 

site.

8 Construction Project Manager There maybe a risk that the local community will make a 

village green application which will delay the scheme start 

date. 3 2 1 6 3 18

Early consultation with Council to agree strategy 

for communication.

OnSide PM Still a risk but assurances from 

MCC received that any application 

(which is unlikely) will be throw 

out.

9 Financial Project Manager There is a risk that the scheme estimate will exceed approved 

BIG budget.
1 3 2 6 3 18

Ensure contingencies included. Finalise design, 

produce revised estimate.

Design Team Scheme on budget.

10 Financial Project Manager There is a risk of increases in construction costs post 

procurement. Impact is directly upon the projects affordability. 

Knock on impact would be to OnSide and DCSF and 

ultimately the project - possible need to find additional capital 

funding.

1 3 2 6 3 18

Risk allocation in proposed procurement model to 

transfer significant cost and construction risk to 

the contractor. Cost consultant to keep abreast of 

current market conditions and advise accordingly.

myplace Risk now with contractor post 

contract.

11 Financial Project Manager There is a risk to the project budget with greater costs 

expended for pre-construction fees etc prior to 

commencement on site. Budget exhausted due to 

overspends. Project scope reduced through lack of resources.

1 3 2 6 3 18

Proactively identify and monitor potential budget 

overspends including prioritising specification 

items, make a contingency available. Keep 

Project Board aware of the budget position.

OnSide / QS Project pre -construction fees 

kept to budget.

12 Planning Project Manager Changes arising from consultation with planners

2 2 2 6 3 18

Carry out detailed pre-application meetings with 

Planners to ensure proposala are as acceptable 

as possible.

OnSide/ Architect Planning permission received. No 

unanticipated conditions 

attached.

13 Statutory Project Manager There is a risk that the Utilities (Gas, Water, Electric, etc.) will 

require long lead in times to undertake diversions/provide new 

services. 3 2 1 6 3 18

Programme control - appoint dedicated officer for 

task - i.e. M&E Consultant.

OnSide/M&E 

Consultant
Still a risk but transfered to 

Contractor who is responcible for 

the deilivery. OnSide to confirm 

shipper details.

14 Financial Project Manager There is a risk that the approved budget may not allow for the 

"prefered" scheme. 1 3 4 8 2 16
Maintain effective dialogue with fund holders, 

prepare lower revised design

Design Team Prefered scheme to be delivered.

15 Legal Project Manager There is a risk of title issues attributable to the site leading to 

potential legal delays etc - loss of reputation.
2 1 1 4 4 16

Ensure that all necessary title, easement and 

right of way searches have been produced at the

earliest opportunity and assess likely impact.

OnSide PM Lease and land legal issues 

completed.

16 Financial Project Manager There is a risk in achieving desired BREEAM - Funding is 

insufficient to meet BREEAM very good category. 1 2 2 5 3 15

Introduce BREEAM advisor early to give the 

greatest potential of achieving points for all 

project elements.

OnSide BREEAM a planning condition 

which contractor has to deliver.

17 Government Project Manager There is a risk that changes in legislation will cause increased 

cost/delays. 2 2 1 5 3 15

Project Team members to highlight significant 

changes to Project Manager and hence Project 

Board.

Design Team No foreseen issues to consider. 

Part L changes reviewed and dealt 

with.

RISK REGISTER BY SCORE 1 OF 4

P
age 99



OnSide Youth Zones SPECIMEN RISK REGISTER FOR A YOUTH ZONE DEVELOPMENT

Risk ID Risk Category Author Date 

Identified

Description Time 

(T)

1-5

Cost

(C)

1-5

Quality

(Q)

1-5

Impact

(I)

T+C+Q

Probability

(P)

1-5

Severity

I x P

Countermeasures Owner Date of last 

update

Current 

Status

Comments on Current Status

18 Statutory Project Manager There is a risk that the Utilities (Gas, Water, Electric, etc.) - 

will perform poorly on site.
2 2 1 5 3 15

Programme control - appoint dedicated officer for 

task - i.e. M&E Consultant.

Contractor Still potential for this to happen. 

Team to keep reviewing. Timely 

placing of order by contractor 

necessary.

19 Construction Project Manager There is a risk that site contamination only discovered

once construction/remodeling works commence- Increased 

duration and/or costs on building Youth Zone on site. All

solutions involve cost & delay. 

2 3 2 7 2 14

Extensive surveys to be carried out early. Contractor Geo-tech surveys now complete. 

No unexpected land issues 

identified.

20 Stakeholder Management Project Manager There is a risk of specification drift - Specification for Youth 

Zone altered without adequate change control considerations. 

Uncontrolled change subverts the success of the project and 

lead to intolerable increases of cost and timescales.

2 3 2 7 2 14

Project controls and sign off requirements

implemented and agreed. Robust change control 

system in place and all changes referred to client 

for sign-off before any action taken or drawings 

amended.

OnSide PM Change control procedures in 

place. Robust management 

system of sign of.

21 Financial Project Manager Expectations are not achievable with the funding which is 

allowed.
1 1 4 6 2 12

Design Team and QS to work closely together in 

presenting affordable schemes to Sponsor and 

highlighting any deviances for early decisions.

Design Team No issue. Funding adequate for 

scheme that has been designed.

22 Financial Project Manager There is a risk of delayed payment of contractor invoices 

following agreed valuation and subsequent issue to BIG for 

authorisation.

2 1 1 4 3 12

Agree payment authorisation procedure with 

grant officers as soon as possible.

OnSide PM Good relationship with Funder 

ensures timely payments are 

released to OnSide enabling 

ability to pay contractor within 

the agreed contract payment 

terms.

23 Financial Project Manager There is a risk that expenditure will not match funding profile 

(out of sync).
1 2 1 4 3 12

Discuss with fund grant officers at inception 

meeting and agree cash flow forecast to be drawn 

down during construction period. Develop robust 

programme

OnSide PM Cash flow forecast reported 

monthly. Any significant deviation 

reported.

24 Government Project Manager There is a risk that changes in Government may have an 

impact in funding. 1 2 1 4 3 12

Obtain Conservative Government backing for 

myplace scheme progression and completion of 

projects.

myplace Change in government realised. 

Myplace funding ringfenced.

25 Procurement Project Manager There may be difficulty and delays securing and acquiring 

specialist materials.

2 2 2 6 2 12

Identify lead in times and programme as 

necessary. Early contractor involvement. Avoid 

Client ordering materials.

Contractor Contractor to ensure procurement 

schedule is issued and dates kept 

to in line with the construction 

programme.

26 Stakeholder Management Project Manager There is a risk of slow decision making. Delays in decision 

making may cause project slippage. Some delays may have 

irrecoverable impacts to programme schedule. 2 2 2 6 2 12

Robust project management processes.

Briefings and report updates to Project Board - 

clear explanation and approval of material 

changes.

OnSide Contractor to ensure all client 

decisions are identified as part of 

their procurement programme.

27 Construction Project Manager There is a risk that problems with vandalism during 

construction will be greater than anticipated.
1 3 1 5 2 10

Early contractor involvement. Contractor Ongoing. Contractor to ensure 

adequate security provision is in 

place to manage any situation 

that may arise.

28 Construction Project Manager There is a risk that construction maybe delayed leading to a 

failure to meet programme timescales. 2 2 1 5 2 10

Identification of critical paths, regular 

communication with stakeholders and pro-active 

project management.

Contractor Project team to continually 

monitor actual progress against 

contract programme.

29 Design Project Manager There may be problems with meeting agreed design 

programme/ milestones. 2 2 1 5 2 10
Bring in extra resource (i.e. consultants). Regular 

progress meetings.

Design Team Pre-construction timescales met.

30 Design Project Manager There is a risk of potential additional site measures, possible 

need for rainwater attenuation, assessment of water discharge 

from sites and waterproofing to building.
2 2 1 5 2 10

Carry out early surveys, assess results and need 

for additional measures. Produce details of

requirements and impact on design and cost to 

enable decisions to be made as to need for 

changes to design or budget.

Design Team Design now completed for this 

item. Contractor to deliver as per 

design recomendations.

31 Procurement Project Manager Procurement strategy not approved by BIG/ myplace.

1 2 2 5 2 10

Work with myplace support team to identify any 

concerns from BIG and justify VFM.

OnSide/myplace 

support team
Fund managers have approved 

the scheme and signed off all 

aspects of capital delivery plan 

submitted by OnSide.

32 Statutory Project Manager There is risk that unchartered services will be encountered 

during excavation.
2 2 1 5 2 10

Allow for in risk register and consider contingency 

sum.

Contractor Still a potential until ground works 

fully completed. Early indications 

is that risk of this is low.

RISK REGISTER BY SCORE 2 OF 4

P
age 100



OnSide Youth Zones SPECIMEN RISK REGISTER FOR A YOUTH ZONE DEVELOPMENT

Risk ID Risk Category Author Date 

Identified

Description Time 

(T)

1-5

Cost

(C)

1-5

Quality

(Q)

1-5

Impact

(I)

T+C+Q

Probability

(P)

1-5

Severity

I x P

Countermeasures Owner Date of last 

update

Current 

Status

Comments on Current Status

33 Design Project Manager There is a risk that adverse weather conditions may be more

severe than anticipated. 1 1 1 3 3 9

Allow for in risk register. All Ongoing.  

34 Design Project Manager There is a risk that the brief for the project will change (scope 

creep).
2 1 1 4 2 8

Project Board to be set up and roles defined. 

Project Management in place.

OnSide Design fixed and signed off.

35 Financial Project Manager There is a risk that unidentified BIG/myplace procedural 

guideline inaccuracies will cause the procurement process will 

take longer than anticipated.

2 1 1 4 2 8

Early contractor involvement myplace Scheme signed off by BIG Lottery 

in suitable time.

36 Procurement Project Manager There is a risk of the legality of procurement. Procurement

does not comply with EU regulations and directives. OnSide 

pursued in European Courts, having contract award 

suspended or cancelled, facing claims for damages.
1 2 1 4 2 8

QS plus myplace advisors provide skills and 

experience. Assessment of procurement route 

reviewed against EU requirements. Audit trial 

open, clear and transparent. VFM varified.

OnSide/ QS OJEU Notice issued for 

procurement of the scheme and 

procedural guidlines followed. Full 

audit trail held on file. 

37 Resource Project Manager There is a risk of loss of key personnel during project causing 

a critical delay to project schedule.
1 1 2 4 2 8

Project core team identified and fully briefed. All Risk reduced now scheme on site 

in regard to design team. Still 

potential for this to happen.  

38 Statutory Project Manager There is a risk that the works will cause more Interference with 

neighbours than anticipated 
1 2 1 4 2 8

Works to be phased to maintain vehicular access 

to local businesses and domestic dwellings.

Contractor Ongoing. Contractor managing 

day to day activities to alleviate as 

much interferance as possible.

39 Statutory Project Manager There is a risk that Utilities (Gas, Water, Electric, etc.) - 

estimated costs will not be accurate 1 2 1 4 2 8
Maintain close liaison with Statutory Undertakers. OnSide PM/ M&E 

Consultant
Costs now received. Contracor to 

deliver.

40 Statutory Project Manager There is a risk that the Utilities (Gas, Water, Electric, etc) will 

provide inaccurate estimates for diversions etc. 1 2 1 4 2 8
Programme control - appoint dedicated officer for 

task.

OnSide PM/ M&E 

Consultant
Costs now received. Contracor to 

deliver.

41 Construction Project Manager There is a risk that the Main Contractor will cease trading.

2 3 1 6 1 6

Investigate financial status of Contractor prior to 

appointment.

Contractor Dunn & Bradstreet check 

undertaken prior to entering 

contracts. Review revealed good 

financial standing of contractor.

42 Construction Project Manager There is a risk that the poor performance from the Contractor 

will cause the construction period to over-run.
3 2 1 6 1 6

Early Contractor involvement - develop 

achievable program.

Contractor Still a risk until project is 

completed. Client team to 

monitor progress and 

performance.

43 Planning Project Manager There is a risk of provision of Transport Impact

Assessment for highways as part of planning submission. 

Survey outcomes requiring additional highways provision/ 

traffic calming measures requiring additional funding over that 

included.

1 1 1 3 2 6

Transport Assessment prepared, 

recommendation included for additional highways 

work, likely costs need to be identified through 

highways confirmation of actual requirements.

Architect Planning permission received. No 

unanticipated conditions 

attached.

44 Financial Project Manager There is a risk that BIG budget allocation to the scheme could 

change. 1 2 2 5 1 5
Successful delivery of stage 2 bids and close 

liaison with grant officer.

myplace Budget remains the same. No 

funding cuts realised.

45 Planning Project Manager There maybe a risk that the Council requires an 

archaeological/ scientific investigation of the site as part of a 

planning requirement. English Heritage or other body declare 

sites as being of Archaeological/scientific interest. (this is 

triggered as part of the investigations required to satisfy 

planning).

2 2 1 5 1 5

Local research into historical records for use of

sites. Early liaison with the planners regarding

requirement for archaeological survey.

Structural Engineer Not required by MCC as part of 

the Planning.

1 Communication Project Manager There maybe a risk of lack of Community Support & negative

media coverage which will at least require additional work and 

effort if not slow the whole schedule down.
2 1 1 4 1 4

Develop a communication plan, which seeks to 

ensure that the rationale for the project and its 

benefits are communicated to stakeholders

OnSide Comms 

Officer
Communication plan being led by 

MCC.

2 Services Project Manager There is a risk that topographical survey information is not

accurate. 1 2 1 4 1 4
Allow for in risk register. Structural Engineer No unforessen issues realised.

3 Statutory Project Manager There is a risk that there will be road closures adjacent the 

site to facilitate the build. 1 2 1 4 1 4

Keep in contact with local highways officers to 

ensure site access strategy assumed is 

acceptable.

Contractor Contractor to manage as 

necessary.

4 Statutory Project Manager There is a risk that the Ground Investigation will identify more 

poor ground than anticipated. 1 2 1 4 1 4
Undertake early investigations Contractor No unforessen issues realised.

5 Construction Project Manager There is a risk that Construction traffic will cause damage to 

the existing road surfacing. 1 1 1 3 1 3

Early Contractor Involvement, establish specific 

routes for construction vehicles.

Contractor Contractor risk. Delapidations 

survey undertaken prior to 

commencment of project.

6 Construction Project Manager There may be unforeseen problems with site safety during

construction. 1 1 1 3 1 3
All operations will be subject to a risk assessment 

(CDM).

Contractor Contractor risk to manage as 

necessary.

RISK REGISTER BY SCORE 3 OF 4

P
age 101



OnSide Youth Zones SPECIMEN RISK REGISTER FOR A YOUTH ZONE DEVELOPMENT

Risk ID Risk Category Author Date 

Identified

Description Time 

(T)

1-5

Cost

(C)

1-5

Quality

(Q)

1-5

Impact

(I)

T+C+Q

Probability

(P)

1-5

Severity

I x P

Countermeasures Owner Date of last 

update

Current 

Status

Comments on Current Status

7 Construction Project Manager There may be unforeseen problems with public safety during

construction. 1 1 1 3 1 3

Scheme design and build to mitigate against 

impact on public safety. Early contractor 

involvement.

Contractor Contractor risk to manage as 

necessary.

8 Construction Project Manager There may be unforeseen problems with the proposed 

construction method 1 1 1 3 1 3

Early contractor involvement. Contractor No anticipated problems with the 

construction logic proposed.

9 Construction Project Manager There is risk that an Archaeological investigation will find 

burial sites etc 1 1 1 3 1 3
Undertake early investigations if required. Contractor No unforessen issues realised.

10 Other Project Manager There is a risk that inadequate/ incomplete audit trail records 

kept. Onside subject to legal challenge, loss of reputation and 

future projects being subjected to challenges/restrictions if 

audited and found to be deficient.

1 1 1 3 1 3

Completed audit documents transparent, regular

reporting to project Board recorded and 

accessible codified system for tracking changes.

OnSide PM Ongoing. No foreseen issues 

anticipated.

11 Stakeholder Management Project Manager There is a risk that unclear project roles, financial and staffing 

budgets poorly managed. Duplication and omission of work & 

key activities.
1 1 1 3 1 3

Senior Lead Officer, Project Board and project 

team established (with terms of reference). Put in 

place risk management and communication 

strategies.

OnSide Local board to develop.

12 Statutory Project Manager There may be difficulties in obtaining EA approval for 

proposed drainage outfalls etc. 1 1 1 3 1 3
Early consultation with EA. Design Team No anticipated issues foreseen.

LEGEND

Time Impact Likelyhood Impact:

1 = 0 - 24% 

2 = 24 - 50%

3 = 50:50%

4 = 50 - 75% Probability:

5 = 75 - 100%

Cost Impact Likelyhood

1 = 0 - 24% Severity:

2 = 24 - 50%

3 = 50:50%

4 = 50 - 75%

5 = 75 - 100%

Quality Impact Likelyhood

1 = 0 - 24% 

2 = 24 - 50%

3 = 50:50%

4 = 50 - 75%

5 = 75 - 100%

Effect on the project/programme/OnSide if this risk were to occur

Estimate of the likelihood of the risk occurring

Assessment of the impact and and probabilty of event/risk

RISK REGISTER BY SCORE 4 OF 4

P
age 102



 
 

Candidate Briefing Document 

 

GENERAL MANAGER 

 

1. Introduction and Background 

 

Introductory information about the Youth Zone and OnSide. 

 

2. The Role 

 

The dimensions of this role defy definition in conventional terms.  It is both large and small; 

it is strategic, and at the same time demands very detailed and hands-on management.  It 

demands effectiveness at a high level and, at the same time, at the lowest levels.  The Youth 

Zone team consists of 30 full and part time employees and over 50 volunteers spread across 

six days and evenings.  The General Manager has responsibility for a revenue budget of 

£600,000 per annum. 

 

A willingness to get stuck into the detail, in an environment without corporate support 

structures, is therefore as important as the ability to influence effectively at the most senior 

levels.  As one Board member put it, “not a suit”. 

 

Key result areas for the new General Manager during the first 12 months are therefore:- 

 

· Working with the Chairman and the Board, lead the ongoing development of the 

Youth Zone strategy and plan 

· Ensure that structure, processes and controls are aligned with the strategy and 

the plan 

· As part of the plan, generate and deliver a robust funding plan, which will enable 

the Youth Zone to operate with an appropriate level of reserves 

· Paint a vision and inspire the team, help them to be effective as individuals and as 

a team and support them to deliver a wide range of ever changing and 

developing activities for young people 

· Provide clear leadership for the team 

· Work with other service providers locally to generate more for young people in 

the locality of the Youth Zone and the surrounding areas 

 

The relationship of the new General Manager with the Chairman of the Board is clearly 

important.  The relationship will be supportive and provide challenge, enabling the team of 

two to deliver ongoing success for the Youth Zone. 

 

3. The Person 

Candidates will be expected to be able to demonstrate the following experience, skills, and 

personal qualities:- 

Page 103



 
 

 

· Any background which demonstrates sound commercial and business management 

skills 

· General management experience  

· A successful record of developing and implementing strategies and business plans 

· Experience of managing a team, ideally on multiple shifts 

· An effective communicator, both spoken and written, together with strong 

relationship building and influencing skills 

· Strong relationship management skills, someone who can sell concepts and identify 

opportunities through discussion, a savvy and effective sales person for the 

organisation 

· A results driven approach, focussed on solutions rather than obstacles 

· Able to move comfortably from the strategic to the practical and hands-on 

· Organised and systematic 

· Personal authority and credibility at senior level 

· Financially literate 

· A believer: a genuine passion for making a difference to young people’s lives 

· Experience of the voluntary / charitable sector and / or working with young people is 

an advantage but not essential 

 

Appendix 1:  Duties and Responsibilities 

 

Vision and Strategy 

· Clearly articulate the mission, vision and values of the Youth Zone 

· Provide clear leadership and direction 

· Propose, consult on and create the Youth Zone’s strategy and plan 

· Act as a source of inspiration to all employees, Youth Zone members, Board 

members, volunteers, supporters and wider stakeholders 

· Take appropriate steps to identify and effectively manage risks 

 

Governance 

· Support the Chairman in maintaining the capabilities and leadership of the Board 

· Work with the Board in fulfilling the charity’s constitutional, regulatory and legal 

obligations 

· Ensure the Board is supported and challenged 

· Understand and clearly communicate to Board members and others the views and 

needs of young people 

 

Management 

· Manage senior staff, supporting them to set targets and strategies and be 

accountable for their performance 

· Allocate organisational resources, manage on-going challenges and opportunities, 

and support the senior staff to do likewise 

Page 104



 
 

· Inspire the staff and volunteers to give their best and support them to uphold the 

Youth Zone’s sense of identity and deliver a wide range of activities for young people 

· Determine staffing requirements based on agreed budgets 

· Responsible for all matters concerning the recruitment and employment of staff 

· Ensure all legal obligation relating to staff are observed, and set and guide the policy 

with regard to volunteers 

 

Fundraising 

· Accountable for the Youth Zone’s fundraising strategy and activities 

· Work with staff, Board members and external organisations to seek new sources of 

income 

· Work with the Commercial Manager to develop their strategy, assist with major bids 

and meet potential and existing funders where appropriate 

· Ensure that feedback to supporters and funding bodies is appropriate and high 

quality 

 

Finance and Assets 

· Responsible to the Board for the financial health of the Youth Zone 

· Prepare annual budgets for presentation to the Board 

· Ensure effective financial management including a successful annual audit 

· Responsible for all the capital assets of the Youth Zone 

· Ensure proper maintenance and upkeep of the buildings, premises, vehicles and 

equipment owned or leased by the Youth Zone  

 

Delivery 

· Responsible for the operation of the Youth Zone and all its projects, working with 

appointed members of staff 

· Establish (through consultation) and monitor agreed performance measures 

· Ensure that comprehensive and appropriate policies, covering all facets of the Youth 

Zone’s operation, are developed, maintained and observed 

· Ensure that policies for Child Protection and Safeguarding are in place and are 

practised 

· Keep ‘a finger on the pulse’ across all the Youth Zone’s activities and deal with any 

serious issues that arise 

 

Youth Zone in the Community 

· Protect and enhance the reputation of the Youth Zone 

· Promote and lead the Youth Zone’s working relationships and partnerships with the 

Councils, key partners and other local organisations 

· Promote and develop the Youth Zone brand and ensure a high level of awareness 

across the community 

 

 

Page 105



 
 

Candidate Briefing Document 

 

GENERAL MANAGER 

 

1. Introduction and background 

 

Introductory information about the Youth Zone and OnSide. 

 

Recruiting the General Manager 15 months ahead of opening is a big investment for the 

charity; however, it will be instrumental in ensuring the Youth Zone gets off to a flying start.   

 

The General Manager will start by learning the delivery and income generation model that has 

been successful in the existing Youth Zones.  Thereafter, most of the first 12 months will be 

focussed on the critical task of developing private sector support, and creating a new business 

network with strong relationships based around the Youth Zone.  In part, this will be to secure 

the private sector income streams, and will be achieved through working closely with the 

OnSide Private Sector Development Manager.  During this period the Board and the OnSide 

project team will be working to complete the building, liaise with other groups in the 

community and continue the local communications campaign to support the work of the 

General Manager. 

 

Six months before opening, the General Manager role will change to focus on the countdown 

to the opening.  Recruitment and planning the post-opening activity will become the main 

focus, with OnSide managing the first key appointments: the Youth Work Manager, 

Administration Manager, Volunteer Manager and Development Manager.  These key people, 

together with the General Manager, will then undertake responsibility for further recruitment 

to the team.  Moving towards the opening, the General Manager will become responsible for 

ensuring everything needed for a successful opening is in place. 

 

2.  The Role 

 

The role of General Manager of a Youth Zone defies definition in conventional terms.  It is both 

large and small; it is strategic, and at the same time demands very detailed and hands-on 

management.  It demands effectiveness at a high level and, at the same time, at the lowest 

levels.  The Youth Zone team will consist of approximately 40 full and part time employees 

and up to 100 volunteers spread across seven evenings and weekends.  The General Manager 

has responsibility for a revenue budget of £1 million per annum. 

 

A willingness to get stuck into the detail, in an environment without significant corporate 

support structures, is therefore as important as the ability to influence effectively at the most 

senior levels.  As one Board member put it, “not a suit”. 

 

Page 106



 
 

During the pre-opening period the General Manager will report to the OnSide Chief Executive.  

This will ensure the General Manager receives the knowledge and support required during 

this development phase. 

 

What success will look like for the Youth Zone at the point of opening: 

· The first three years’ private sector revenue funding secured and the business 

community feel that this is their project. 

· The team is recruited and trained, ready for the opening. 

· There are 100 volunteers recruited and trained, ready for the opening. 

· The systems and processes needed to run the organisation are in place (this work will 

be led by OnSide). 

· The programme of activities for the first two months are planned and ready for 

delivery, including all the materials needed to deliver it. 

 

What success will look like a year after the Youth Zone has opened: 

· The team will be strong, well supported and effective at delivering a great, innovative 

service for the young people. 

· There will be up to 200 young people attending every session, coming because they 

want to and inspired by the continually changing programme on offer. 

· The local authority and business community will continue to feel engaged and that 

their money is well spent, together with enjoying the new strategic business 

relationships the Youth Zone has created for them. 

· The financial control and understanding will be in place, with new income streams 

being generated to enable additional work to be done, and to ensure the long term 

sustainability of the Youth Zone.  

· The whole community will see the Youth Zone as an asset for the city; they will 

understand what it does and know how they can get involved. 

 

After opening, the General Manager will report to the Chair of the Board.  The relationship 

will be supportive and challenging, enabling the team of two to deliver ongoing success for 

the Youth Zone.  OnSide will remain involved, both as a member of the board and a support 

network for the General Manager and Youth Zone team. 

 

3. The Person 

Candidates will be expected to demonstrate the following experience, skills, and personal 

qualities:- 

 

· Any background which demonstrates sound commercial and business management 

skills; 

· A self-starter, someone who lifts stones and generates new work streams; 

· General management experience; 

· A successful record of developing organisations and implementing strategies and 

business plans; 

Page 107



 
 

· Experience of managing a team, ideally on multiple shifts; 

· An effective communicator, both spoken and written, together with strong 

relationship building and influencing skills; 

· Strong relationship management skills, someone who can sell concepts and identify 

opportunities through discussion, a savvy and effective sales person for the 

organisation; 

· A results-driven, energetic approach, resiliently focussed on solutions rather than 

obstacles; 

· Able to move comfortably from the strategic to the practical and hands-on; 

· Personal authority and credibility at senior level; 

· Organised and systematic; 

· Financially literate; 

· A believer, with a genuine passion for making a difference to young people’s lives. 

 

 

General Manager Accountabilities (post opening) 

 

Management of staff and volunteers with the following direct reports: 

· Youth Work Manager 

· Administration Manager 

· Development Manager 

· Volunteer Manager 

· Communications/Events Coordinator 

· Building maintenance 

 

Accountabilities 

 

1. Custodian of the OnSide Youth Zone DNA and values 

2. Sustainability: fundraising and income generation for the Youth Zone’s operating costs 

3. Service delivery: ensuring the service is of a high standard and attracting a wide range 

of young people  

4. Leadership and management of the team including briefings, appraisals and team 

feedback 

5. Planning at an operational and financial level 

6. Governance and legal compliance 

7. Financial Control 

8. Human Resources 

9. Marketing and communications 

10. Networking within the local public and private sector to generate more opportunities 

for the city to use the platform created by the Youth Zone 

 

 

Page 108



 

Role Profile:   Youth Work Manager 

 

Reporting to:  General Manager 

 

Responsible for: Club Co-ordinators and all aspects of Youth Work Delivery 

 

Context of the post 

Introductory information about the Youth Zone and OnSide. 

 

JOB PURPOSE: 

· To manage the Youth Zone’s youth work provision and the team of staff and volunteers who 

deliver it; 

· Accountable for the effective running of the core provision of the projects, currently Junior, 

Senior and Inclusion Clubs, Holiday Club and mentoring; 

· To quality assure all youth work provision by setting and maintaining high standards; 

· To ensure that the Youth Zone provides a fun, supportive, safe, inclusive and positive place 

which attracts and retains young people from across the City and beyond, and which 

motivates and raises young people’s aspirations.  

 

MAIN DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

The Youth Work Manager has responsibility for the planning, delivery and development of all youth 

work. The position will be based at the Youth Zone. In addition to the overall management of youth 

work, duties will include: 

 

· Ensure quality planning and delivery in the clubs and ensure delivery is fun, safe, challenging 

and developmental. 

· Operate at a senior management level. Together with the members of the Senior 

Management team, establish links and delivery packages to the wider district/rural parts to 

ensure that young people can benefit and have access to the Youth Zone resources. 

· Deputise for the Chief Executive as and when required. 

· With the Development Manager and General Manager, ensure a robust fundraising plan for 

all projects and the Youth Zone overall.  Take an active part in the development of 

fundraising strategies and applications.  Develop and support Project leaders to take 

ownership of funding for individual projects. 

· Ensure the integration of sport, drama, music, dance and arts and crafts provision into 

session planning and delivery, both on and off site. 

· Ensure the quality delivery of youth work on off-site programmes and projects.  

· Manage and develop teams of staff, including Club Co-ordinators, youth workers and 

volunteers, and support and coach them to achieve their full potential within their given 

roles within the CYZ appraisal systems. 

· Ensure the participation of young people and that their ideas contribute fully in the planning 

and delivery of sessions, projects and activities. 

· Work with young people during Youth Zone sessions. 

· Develop systems to ensure that provision is of the highest quality and achieves positive 

outcomes for children and young people. 

· Manage budgets associated with the areas of delivery in the Youth Zone. 

· Manage the day-to-day operations at the Youth Zone, ensuring that policies and procedures 

are appropriate and adhered to. 

· Work with and in the community to market the Youth Zone, inviting young people to the 

Youth Zone and securing community support, engagement and partnerships. 

Page 109



 

· Keep the Youth Zone looking exciting and ensure that the atmosphere is consistent with the 

Youth Zones’ values and principles. 

· Accountable for the resolution of difficulties, complaints and issues during Youth Zone 

sessions. 

· Ensure that all the Youth Zone equipment is properly maintained and accounted for.  

· Ensure that all projects and activities operate within the strategic objectives and principles 

of the Youth Zone ensuring due consideration is given to safeguarding, health and safety, 

inclusion and equal opportunities. 

· Responsible for the process of feedback and review of the Youth Zone’s delivery including 

overall responsibility for maintaining the Management Information System. 

· Develop systems and procedures to measure performance in order to demonstrate the 

impact of the Youth Zone and ensure continuous improvement of delivery. 

· Develop relations and partnerships within the city and beyond, exploring areas for joint 

working where appropriate. 

· Network at a senior level with key partners, stakeholders and supporters, in order to 

maintain relations at the highest level to secure significant contribution and support. 

· Deliver a focused, measurable contribution to the Youth Zone’s overall strategic plan. 

· Responsible for the promotion and development of best youth work practice, ensuring 

compliance with statutory guidance and opportunities with national policy. 

· Deputise for the General Manager as required. 

 

This is a unique role at the centre of an exciting organisation. It will be stimulating, challenging and 

incredibly rewarding. 

 

PERSON SPECIFICATION: 

 

 Essential Desirable 

Knowledge & Experience 

A professional qualification in Youth Work    

A passion for youth work and a minimum of 5 

years’ experience 
  

 

 

A management qualification or at least three 

years’ recent experience 

   

Effective people management, supervision and 

coaching skills 
  

 

 

Experience of learning and coaching activities    

Experience of managing staff and volunteers    

Experience of programming a diverse range of 

activities for young people 
  

 

 

Experience of planning, delivery and evaluation    

Skills 

Excellent communication, relationship building 

and interpersonal skills 
  

 

 

IT literate    

Good organisational skills with the ability to think 

strategically and the flexibility to adapt to 

circumstances 

  

 

 

Ability to relate to young people from all 

backgrounds 
  

 

 

Page 110



 

Ability to work under pressure    

Ability to work with initiative, enthusiasm and 

self-motivation 
  

  

 

Strong negotiation skills    

Proven record in project management    

Personal Qualities 

Non-judgemental and inclusive approach to 

youth work 
   

Ability to care about and be sensitive to both 

individuals and the community needs 
   

Good interpersonal skills    

Creative and solution orientated    

Demonstrate a commitment to the values, 

principles and goals of the Youth Zone 
   

The ability to cope with multiple demands and 

deadlines, the ability to work fast and to a 

consistently high standard 

   

 

 

 

Page 111



 

 

 

 

Job Description 

 

Job Title:  Administration Manager     

 

Reporting to:  General Manager 

 

Responsible for:  Administrator 

 

Job Purpose: 

· To set up and run the administration and HR functions for the Youth Zone. 

· To provide secretariat support for the Board of the Youth Zone. 

· To have overall management of the office and line management of the Administrator. 

 

Context of the post: 

 

Introductory information about the Youth Zone and OnSide. 

Main duties and responsibilities  

· To establish and maintain office systems to ensure the smooth and efficient running of 

the Youth Zone 

· To establish and maintain a database system for membership, relationship 

management and data collection and retrieval 

· To perform the HR function and ensure compliance with all employment and 

safeguarding legislation 

· To ensure the Youth Zone complies with its obligations under data protection 

legislation 

· To act as Personal Assistant to the General Manager 

· To promote and organise staff development and training 

· To manage the Youth Zone’s communications through phone, letter, email and social 

media 

· To provide the secretariat service for the Youth Zone Board and administrative 

support for its members 

· To ensure the required returns are made to the Charity Commission and Companies 

House 

· To supervise the work of the Administrator 

· To be responsible for the book-keeping function for the Youth Zone 

· To review and update health and safety policies and ensure they are observed, in 

liaison with the Duty Managers 

· To attend events and conferences as required 

 

General 

· To be alert to issues of safeguarding child protection, ensuring the welfare and safety 

of Youth Zone members is promoted and safeguarded, and to report any child 

protection concerns to the designated Child Protection Officers using safeguarding 

policies, procedures and practice 

Page 112



 

 

 

 

· To contribute towards the production and delivery of strategic and business plans for 

the Youth Zone  

· To assist with any promotional activities and visits that take place at the Youth Zone 

· To actively promote the Youth Zone and positively contribute towards increasing 

Youth Zone membership 

· To participate in staff meetings, staff training and staff supervision and appraisal 

 

Person Specification 

 Essential Desirable 

Experience 

All-round administrative and management experience ü  

Experience of developing office and HR systems ü  

Experience of managing recruitment and HR functions   

Experience of basic accounts work / book-keeping ü  

Experience of supervising staff ü  

Experience of providing support at Board or General Manager level ü  

Skills and Abilities 

Excellent administrative and organisational skills ü  

Excellent written and verbal communication skills ü  

High standard of ICT skills, including the use of databases ü  

Ability to cope with multiple demands and deadlines and maintain a 

consistently high standard of work 

ü  

Ability to establish a rapport with stakeholders at all levels and from 

all sectors 

ü  

Ability to work on own initiative and as part of a team ü  

Methodical approach and ability to maintain accurate and 

transparent data systems 

ü  

Ability to remain calm and in control in pressurised situations ü  

Ability to deal with confidential information sensitively and 

appropriately 

ü  

Knowledge and Understanding 

Knowledge and understanding of HR management and relevant 

legislation 

ü  

Knowledge of IT, spreadsheets, word processing and database 

packages (particularly cloud based systems such as Salesforce) 

ü  

Knowledge of health and safety and data protection legislation ü  

Knowledge and awareness of issues affecting young people  ü 

Qualifications  

Education to degree level or equivalent experience ü  

Personal Qualities 

A flexible attitude to work and a willingness to perform a variety of 

duties to ensure an efficient and effective service 

ü  

A high degree of motivation ü  

Attention to detail ü  

 

Page 113



A NEW 

THE ONSIDE WAY

FOR THE YOUNG PEOPLE

OF GREAT BRITAIN

MANIFESTO

Page 114



THANK YOU TO OUR PATRONS,
SPONSORS AND SUPPORTERS

Accenture

Alan and Kate Livesey*

Alan Murtagh and Michelle Stubbs*

Alison and Daniel Rees

Andrew and Fiona Tyrer*

Anthony and Margaret Preston*

Anthony and Alison Hitchen*

ASC Renewables

Big Lottery

Bill and Julie Holroyd* 

Bill and Liz Ainscough*

Brian and Katherine Scowcro�*

Bruntwood*

Clear Marketing*

Conlon Construction

Dave and Pat Whelan*

David and Janelle Barker*

DRL (AO.com) 

Eversheds

Gar�eld Western Foundation

Iain and Su Sharp*

Ian and Jan Currie*

Impetus-PEF

John Lea

Keith and Tania Black*

Malcolm and Rhianydd Walker*

Martin and Judith Ainscough*

Martin and Pat McMillan*

Michael and Jean Oglesby*

Michael Oliver

Palatine Private Equity

Paul and Pam Bell*

Phil and Estelle Goodwin*

Richard Robinson

Rothschild

Simon Moran*

St. James’s Place Foundation

�e Queen’s Trust

�e Stoller Charitable Trust*

Virginia Halliwell*

Vivien Rink

Warburton Charitable Trust*

Zochonis Charitable Trust

*Founder patrons

2

Page 115



From the Chairman 4-5

CEO overview 6-7

�e OnSide way 8-9

Our promise 10-11

A four-way partnership 12-13

World-class buildings 14-15

Best-in-class facilities 16-19

Making it happen 20-21

Funding a Youth Zone 22-23

Our vision 26-27

�e OnSide team 28-29

How you can help 30

CONTENTS
3

Page 116



4

Page 117



FROM THE 

CHAIRMAN

OnSide now provides safe and inspiring 
places for over 15,000 young people  

to go to in the north west. 

Our six current Youth Zones are already transforming their communities. 

!e dynamic four-way partnerships between the public, private and 

voluntary sectors plus, of course, the young people themselves, are ensuring 

the success of each Youth Zone and I’m con"dent these will go on to deliver 

for the young people for many years to come.

We have now proven beyond doubt that our model is successful, sustainable 

and relevant. In addition we are now able to demonstrate a signi"cant social 

impact in our communities. Most importantly, the young people love the 

facilities and vote with their feet in droves, with over 350,000 visits to  

our Youth Zones per year.

We are now faced with the opportunity (and challenge) of making OnSide a 

national charity, with the aim of creating Youth Zones in every town and city 

in the UK. In doing so we will have built a world-class platform to ensure 

that our young people have the best possible start in life. Just imagine.

As ever, I would like to underline my sincere thanks to our Patrons and 

wider support community. Without you, none of this would have happened.  

I also want to register my thanks and admiration to the hugely over-worked 

OnSide team, led by Kathryn Morley.

Finally, Jerry Glover retired as Chief Executive of OnSide in April, taking up 

a part-time consultancy role with us. Jerry is the inspiration for the  

Youth Zone movement and we all owe him a massive debt of gratitude. 

Onwards and upwards!

Bill Holroyd CBE DL - Chairman 

5

Page 118



As Chief Executive of OnSide Youth Zones, 
it gives me great pleasure to introduce the 
new manifesto, a declaration to extend our 
network across the UK in order to reach 
more young people.

I’m fortunate to lead a dedicated and highly experienced team, able to work 

alongside existing Youth Zones and various stakeholders wishing to build one 

in their location. Highlights of a very successful 2013 include:

•  Wigan Youth Zone opened in June with over 7,000 young members in the 

!rst four months

•  Firm commitments for new Youth Zones in Preston, Wolverhampton and 

Wirral, which once open will make a total of nine OnSide Youth Zones 

•  "e Queen’s Trust, St. James’s Place Foundation and Gar!eld Weston made 

signi!cant contributions to the OnSide Foundation for the development of 

Preston, Wolverhampton and Wirral Youth Zones

•  "e Big Lottery made an award for our three-year initiative in partnership 

with Seashell Trust to futher support young disabled people and their 

families across the OnSide Youth Zone network

We have received support from Impetus-PEF, who use a venture philanthropy 

model to select charities with signi!cant growth potential. "eir support is 

helping to accelerate our work to achieve our vision of 20 fully-operational 

Youth Zones by 2020.

None of this would have been possible without the OnSide Board, Patrons, 

supporters, volunteers and champions, or the dedication of the OnSide team. 

"ank you for your support 

Kathryn Morley – Chief Executive

6
THE START OF  

SOMETHING GOOD

Page 119



7

Page 120



THE 
ONSIDE WAY

Young people need our help now more  
than ever before.

Whether it’s a lack of ambition or quali!cations, or negative behaviour and 

attitudes, the current childhood crisis is real and well documented. OnSide 

Youth Zones are designed to give young people aged 8–19 years old (25 for 

those with a disability) somewhere to go, something to do and someone 

to talk to in their leisure time; occupying their bodies and minds with fun 

activities, learning new skills and socialising in a safe, positive way. Youth 

Zones are there for young people in deprived areas, where the alternative for 

many is spending their evenings on the streets or isolated in their bedrooms, 

sur!ng the internet.

What makes an OnSide Youth Zone?

• An inspiring, safe and a"ordable place for young people to go

• A private sector-led Board, heading up an independent local charity

• A sustainable funding model

•  A four-way partnership between the private sector, the local authority, 

young people and the community

•  #e right city centre location, in ‘neutral’ territory that all young people 

from the community can share

•  A functional, inspirational building design based on how young people  

engage, socialise and participate

8

Page 121



Monitoring & evaluating

Status

IN
 P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
H

IP
O

p
en

 &
 accessib

le

STAFF

DESIGN

VISION & PURPOSE

AFFORDABLE

9

Page 122



Somewhere to go

• Up to 250 young people attend each 

Youth Zone every evening

• Safe places for young people to  

socialise with peers and  

adult role models 

• Neutral spaces, away from gang  

pressures or postcode wars

• Buildings and activities open to all 

young people – it’s their place

• Iconic, inspiring buildings show the 

community the value of young people

• Just 50p per visit, £1 for a nutritious 

hot meal, £5 annual membership 

10

Page 123



OUR PROMISE

Something to do

• 20 inspiring activities each session, 

including sports, arts and  

personal development

• Buildings that create interest and make 

it easy to get involved in activities

• Youth Zones can host almost any  

activity young people want

• Paid workers are experts in their !eld, 

supported by an army of volunteers

• ‘Try, train, team’ approach to  

sports and arts

• Regular inter-Youth Zone events where 

young people meet and compete

• Residentials and other trips to boost 

con!dence and broaden horizons

We provide inspiration and raise aspirations, pointing the most troubled  

young people in the right direction.

Someone to talk to

• Youth workers engage with young 

people on their terms

• Casual one-to-one work is a key part  

of youth workers’ roles

• Young people are helped to develop 

their communication skills

• Targeted programmes for  

employability, mentoring, inclusion, 

sexual health and more

• Philosophy of personal responsibility – 

‘get active, get creative, get outdoors,  

get sorted, get ahead and get connected’

• Youth Zones can be a second home, 

away from family and school pressures

11

Our promise to Britain’s young  
people is simple. If they live within 

the local area of a Youth Zone,  
they will have:

Page 124



12

The
COMMUNITY

LOCAL
Authority

P
R

IV
A
T
E

se
ct

o
r

Y
O

U
N

G
p

eo
p

le

Page 125



A FOUR-WAY 

PARTNERSHIP

�e whole community comes together to
take pride in and ownership of the Youth

Zone, to ultimately ensure its success.

A unique partnership of the private sector, local authority, young 

people and the community form a dynamic four-way, inter-connecting 

relationship, which drives the success of an OnSide Youth Zone. 

�e Youth Zone becomes a valuable community asset and each group 

plays its own vital role, breathing real life into their Youth Zone. 

From conception to completion; the inaugural opening of the doors for 

business and the ongoing day-to-day functioning of the Youth Zone. 

From our champions, investors and fundraisers who bring in the money, 

to the committed team of paid workers and volunteers who deliver an 

inspiring range of activities and targeted services. 

However the partnership wouldn’t be complete without the support of 

local communities and young people’s groups working together to deliver 

more services to more young people. And most importantly, the young 

people themselves – their need drives our whole reason for being. 

13

Page 126



WORLD-CLASS 
BUILDINGS

Visible from miles around, these are iconic 

buildings we are proud of.

We believe our buildings convey a clear message to young people: “You deserve 

the best.” Our iconic buildings make a statement about the value each town 

or city places on its young people. Visible from miles around and packed with 

exciting, interesting and educational things to do, our Youth Zone buildings are 

places we can all be proud of.

Each Youth Zone is designed to become a landmark feature of a town or city, 

with its own entirely unique, eye-catching architecture and state-of-the-art 

facilities full of highly trained, experienced teams. 

With !tness suites to rival the best private gyms, chill out areas on a par 

with many of the bars and cafés around and media and music suites that 

would make creative agencies jealous, our Youth Zones o#er the ‘wow’ factor, 

sending out a clear message that young people matter.

14

Page 127



15

Page 128



Sports hall
Jam-packed with high intensity 

activities like wall climbing, dodgeball, 

basketball and many more.  

�ey’re challenging, exhilarating and 

motivating places to be.

Skate park
From half-pipes to ramps and rails, the  

skate park at Wigan Youth Zone is  

designed by and for skaters. 

Somewhere to hang out, learn new 

tricks, share their passion, make new 

friends and gain con�dence.

Dance studio
Specialist dance studios o�er young 

people plenty of room to express  

themselves through a variety of  

di�erent dance styles, helping them  

get active and learn new skills.

Fitness centre
Teaching young people 

how to lead a healthy, 

active lifestyle. From 

nutrition advice to �tness 

training, there’s something 

for all ages and abilities.

16

Page 129



BEST-IN-CLASS FACILITIES

Boxing &  
martial arts
Not just a great way to keep !t, 

boxing and martial arts are all about 

control, persistence and poise. 

We’re talking punch bags, training 

equipment, a boxing ring and 

challenging activities like wrestling.

Outside 
A chance to explore the outdoors, 

trek through the wide-open, kayak 

and climb, sleep by a !re, team-build 

and learn the art of survival.  

Or simply get a game of football  

on our all-weather pitches.

We don’t just encourage young people to  
lead healthier and more active lives,  

we ensure they’re well-equipped to enjoy all 
kinds of sports and physical pursuits.

17

Page 130



Arts, cra�s & fashion
A chance to make a statement and 

leave a mark on their own Youth Zone. 

Making murals, learning sewing skills 

and exploring fashion trends. All the 

tools, space and inspiration are here.

Restaurant & kitchen
Nutrition plays a huge part in the 

development of young people.  

Our restaurant and kitchen serve up 

subsidised meals and give young  

people a chance to learn how to cook 

their own food.

BEST-IN-CLASS FACILITIES

Inspiring young minds to open up, be  
creative and feel at ease, our state-of-the-art 
surroundings bring everyone together in a 
fun and inclusive environment.

18

Page 131



Enterprise
Giving young people the skills 

they need to get a job. CV writing, 

interview tips and teamwork 

skills. Young Leaders courses build 

character and con�dence, taking 

charge of live projects.

Media studio
Young people can express 

themselves and get inspired in our 

cutting-edge media studio. A �lm 

suite, a radio studio and media 

centre. Open to all. 

Music room
Kitted out with instruments and 

equipment, members are free to make 

some noise and follow their dream. 

Writing, rapping, mixing, playing, 

jamming, singing and recording.

Recreational area
Sometimes young people just need 

space. Somewhere to chill out, meet 

mates and chat. Play pool, have fun 

and be themselves. Somewhere like 

our recreational area.

19

Page 132



20

Page 133



Our role is to support existing  
Youth Zones in operating  

e�ectively, as well as introducing  
new Youth Zones to towns 

and cities across the country. 

In developing new Youth Zones, OnSide adopts a total management 

approach, from supporting local stakeholders, identifying the need in each 

area for a Youth Zone, through to the completed building and its opening. 

!is includes the initial building design using experience gained from the 

six Youth Zones now operating, as well as the construction and internal 

speci"cations, ensuring it’s all delivered on time and on budget.

Alongside the physical building we work with the local Board, o�ering 

advice and support to raise the "rst three years’ revenue ahead of opening,  

while initiating the recruitment of the team, both sta� and volunteers, 

who will go on to run the Youth Zone. 

Equally important is establishing a cohesive marketing strategy,  

from overall branding and internal/external communications to supporting 

fundraising activities and helping the local community understand how they 

can make the most of the soon-to-be Youth Zone. And as every business  

requires sound "nancial management, we have approved systems to  

manage capital, revenue, membership and attendance.

!roughout all of this we involve young people as much as possible; it’s their 

Youth Zone. Young people’s active participation and in#uence in areas of 

brand identity, transportation, fundraising and the interior design of the 

Youth Zone are fundamental to our approach.

21
MAKING IT HAPPEN

Page 134



FUNDING A  
YOUTH ZONE

Each and every Youth Zone presents  
its own set of unique and intricate  
funding challenges.

A model of local ownership is a key success factor in ensuring !nancial 

sustainability of each Youth Zone into the future. "is all-important funding 

approach is split into two distinct areas of Capital and Revenue: 

Capital: "e cost of building and !tting out a Youth Zone is in the order 

of £6million; £3m, with the site provided by the local authority and the 

remainder made up of grants, trusts funding and local philanthropic giving.  

"e OnSide Foundation invests in the new Youth Zones by #owing capital 

grants raised by OnSide to each project.

Revenue: "e cross-sector funding model is unique and sustainable.  

"e annual running costs for a start-up Youth Zone are £1million; 40% met 

by local authority support, 50% by the local private sector and 10% through 

membership and entry fees from young people. OnSide works with the local 

team to raise the !rst three years of private sector funding ahead of opening.

22

Page 135



23

Page 136



THE TIMELINE FOR AN 
ONSIDE YOUTH ZONE

24

Day one

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

•   Building contract tendered

• Legals agreed

• Full capital secured

•  Building designed

•  Planning application submitted

•  Young people create the Youth Zone name and  

brand identity

Page 137



25

Target duration

Opening

21/2 years

FOUNDATIONS YEAR ZERO

•  Building project underway

• Young people design interior

• Revenue campaign

• First employee recruited

•  Website and other comms go live, 

media countdown to opening

•  Recruitment and training of sta!  

and volunteers

•  Financial and membership systems 

established

• Activity Plan for Youth Zone created

•  Opening day event planned  

and delivered

Page 138



OUR VISION

20 Youth Zones by 2020 

Established by Bill Holroyd and his founding team of Board Directors in 

2006, the OnSide Youth Zones charity has made hugely signi!cant progress.

To date !ve new Youth Zones have been built based on the original Bolton 

Lads and Girls Club model, which is part the OnSide network.  

We currently have:

• Approaching 7,000 visits per week, 350,000 per year across all Youth Zones

• Created over 200 jobs within the !ve new Youth Zones

• Recruited over 700 volunteers

• Raised over £50 million of funds for the bene!t of young people

•  Leading-edge activites for young disabled people to enjoy with their  

able-bodied peers 

Our vision is that one day every town and city throughout the UK will have 

its own Youth Zone. With a proven model, experience of implementation and 

!rst-hand understanding of the positive impact for young people, our aim is 

to replicate the model and grow our network to 20 Youth Zones by 2020. In 

doing so we will:

• Engage with over 50,000 disadvantaged young people nationwide

• Create more than 600 jobs

• Involve more than 3,000 volunteers

"is is only the beginning. With a further three Youth Zones in the pipeline at 

the time of going to print, the positive impact on Britain’s young people and 

the return on social investment for stakeholders will be unparalleled. 

26

Page 139



27

  EXISTING YOUTH ZONES 

  NEW POTENTIAL PROJECTS

Wolverhampton

Oldham

Carlisle

Leeds

She eld

North East

Rochdale

Crewe

Manchester

Nottingham

Hull

Preston

Chester

Wirral

Blackburn

Wigan

Bolton

Liverpool

London

Page 140



Dynamic, dedicated and  
highly experienced.

Chiara Mallia Administration Manager

Claire Greenwood Grants and Trusts Manager

David Barton Young People’s Participation Manager

Fiona Norcross Head of Finance and Systems

Jerry Glover MBE Senior Advisor

Jo Barber Events and Donor Development Manager

Kathryn Morley Chief Executive

Nick Cooper Local Engagement Manager

Rachel McCrystal Private Sector Development and Funding Manager

Rebecca Baron Communications Manager

Rob Carter Facilities Development and Deputy Chief Executive

28
THE ONSIDE TEAM

Page 141



THE ONSIDE BOARD
29

Bill Holroyd CBEWilliam Lees-Jones

Ross Warburton MBE John Marsh

Karen Gri!thsMargaret Preston

Chris Oglesby Jim Smith

Nigel RichensDaniel Hall

Page 142



HOW YOU CAN HELP

Help the young people in your town or city.

Step forward and become part of a team that creates a Youth Zone.  

Help OnSide by donating !nancial support to help fund our work.  

Volunteer at your local Youth Zone, from being a Board member  

through to helping deliver activities during evenings and weekends.

30
C

O
N

TA
C

T
 U

SS
T
E
P

 F
O

R
W

A
R

D

emailChairman

CHAMPIONIN
S

P
IR

E
 &

 LE
A

D

C
ap

ital in
p

u
t

G
IV

E

Patron

VOLUNTEER

M
en

to
r

D
O

N
A
T
E

Page 143



3

Page 144



“It gives me an opportunity to try  

new things and meet new people. 

It also gives me, and other young 

people like me, the chance to change 

the perceptions that others have of 

young people today.” 

Lucy, aged 16, from Pemberton

OnSide Youth Zones, Suite GB, Atria, Spa Road, Bolton BL1 4AG
www.onsideyouthzones.org   Email: enquiries@onsideyouthzones.org   Tel: 01204 362 128

Registered Charity no. 1125893   Registered Company no. 06591785

Design donated by Clear Marketing Communications

Page 145



www.icegroupuk.com   |    +44(0)151 647 4700

© ICE LTD 2009 All rights reserved.

North West & Midlands
t +44(0)151 647 4700

North East
t +44(0)191 543 8737

South West
t +44(0)117 911 3619

South East
t +44(0)20 3411 4470

Divergent Naming – session 2  

Bidston Primary School

P
age 146



www.icegroupuk.com   |    +44(0)151 647 4700

© ICE LTD 2009 All rights reserved.

North West & Midlands
t +44(0)151 647 4700

North East
t +44(0)191 543 8737

South West
t +44(0)117 911 3619

South East
t +44(0)20 3411 4470

Divergent Naming – sessions 3 & 4

11-15 and older consultation 16+

Divergent Naming – session 5

Children with special needs

P
age 147



www.icegroupuk.com   |    +44(0)151 647 4700

© ICE LTD 2009 All rights reserved.

North West & Midlands
t +44(0)151 647 4700

North East
t +44(0)191 543 8737

South West
t +44(0)117 911 3619

South East
t +44(0)20 3411 4470

P
age 148



www.icegroupuk.com   |    +44(0)151 647 4700

© ICE LTD 2009 All rights reserved.

North West & Midlands
t +44(0)151 647 4700

North East
t +44(0)191 543 8737

South West
t +44(0)117 911 3619

South East
t +44(0)20 3411 4470

P
age 149



www.icegroupuk.com   |    +44(0)151 647 4700

© ICE LTD 2009 All rights reserved.

North West & Midlands
t +44(0)151 647 4700

North East
t +44(0)191 543 8737

South West
t +44(0)117 911 3619

South East
t +44(0)20 3411 4470

Thank you…

THE

P
age 150



                                                                                                               STAFF ORGANISATION CHART                                                                                                              

 

Notes: Two figures are shown against some Paid Staff Sessions to show variance during holiday periods.    

The position of Mentoring Coordinator could be a late appointment (say starting 6 months in). 

01 Wirral YZ Staff Organisational Chart 21Feb11 

Trusts & Grants 

Fundraising 

Officer 

Facilities 
Manager 

[Including 
Events Support] 

Administration Manager 

[P.A. to Chief Executive, 

Human Resources & Health & 

Safety] 

Youth Work Manager Private Sector & 

Events Fundraising 

Officer 

Finance 

Manager 

Mentoring Coordinator 

[Targeted projects & 

Partnership Development] 

 

 Volunteer Sessions Per Week (Day 1) 

 Volunteer Sessions Per Week (End Year 1) 

Catering 

 

Admin   

Assistant 

 

Reception Cleaning and 
Maintenance 

[2 x Half 

Time] 

22/27 

8 

18 

32/37 

4 

8 

9/14 

3 

6 

Senior 

Club 

Junior 

Club 

24 

18 

28 

14/29 

12 

20 

6/11 

14 

22 

Paid Staff Sessions Per Week 

Volunteer Sessions Per Week (Day 1) 

Volunteer Sessions Per Week (End Year 1) 

Wirral Youth Zone Board 

Chief Executive 

Part Time Youth Workers, Activity Assistants & Volunteers 

Arts 
Coordinator 

 

Volunteer 

Recruitment & 

Training Officer 

Senior Youth 

Worker 

[Senior Club 

13+] 

Inclusion 

Outreach 

Coordinator 

Youth Worker 

[Junior Club 
8–12 & 

Holiday Club] 

 

Sports 
Coordinator 

 

P
age 151



Implementation

Planning

Communications Objectives Task Output Evaluation Notes Budget
Develop communications 

strategy and agree budgets

Agree key messages, target 

audiences and timeline of actions 

Ongoing n/a

Identify and form a Young People's 

Development Group for Wirral Youth 

Zone 

To be co-ordinated through 

Council and OnSide's 

Young People's 

Participation Manager

n/a
Set up 

Facebook 

Group for 

YPDG

Identify and appoint a local design 

agency to create brand identity in 

conjunction with young people

Ice Design Appointed Dec 

2013

£850

Brand workshops to be held with 

Young People and Design Agency

Separate proposal  

developed for 

implementation of sessions

TBC
Board 

presentatio

n 

Support local engagement 

events with informational 

materials

Develop a Wirral Youth Zone briefing 

sheet:

*Key Messages

*Local stats

*FAQs

*Branded presentation 

Led by Local Engagement 

Manager at OnSide & 

Council Rep

n/a

Develop PR Plan with Wirral Council to 

identify:

*Target media 

*Key spokespeople

*Relevant images to be distributed

Drip feed positive news stories to the 

local media in Wirral:

- Building Updates

- Sod Cutting

- YP's news 

Announce 

YZ site

Brand 

identity & 

YZ name

Announce 

building 

designs for 

Wirral YZ

Planning 

Permission 

Submitted

Website 

launch

Sod 

cutting

GM 

Appointme

nt

Arrange meeting with the editor of 

main newspaper (Liverpool Echo) to 

garner media support for the 100 day 

promotional plan

To be co-ordinated with 

relevant spokesperson for 

the YZ. 

Produce promotional DVD that can be 

shown to the local private sector  in 

Wirral

Utilise OnSide promotional 

video and ensure 

appropriate title screens 

with branding are in place 

for Wirral YZ

TBC

Produce leaflet / newsletter to support 

the private sector development work

500 copies initial print run.

1 newsletter per 1/4 

Print: £350

Design: £TBC
1st 

Newsletter

Work with local design agency to 

create relevant electronic templates 

including a Business Card for GM

Develop website phase 1 version and 

initiate e-marketing channels, Video 

and image sharing channels (YouTube 

/ Flickr)

Unique visitors

Bounce Rate

Page Visits

Time spent on site 

Phase 2 - opening to be 

developed 4-6 months prior 

to opening 

£1500 - £2000

Launch Youth Zone Social media 

channels:

*Twitter

*Facebook 

*No. Followers

*Engagement rate

*Total Reach

*No. Comments / Likes

*Demographics 

Promote key milestones in the 

project during development 

stages, i.e. planning 

permission announcement, 

sod cutting

*Estimated Advertorial Value

*Estimated Editorial Value

*Opportunities to see / hear

*No. Pieces of coverage 

Appoint web design agency, 

agree costs, collate content
2 Articles per week for website 

*Total Private Sector revenue of 

£500,000 raised 

Number of Founder Patrons 

confirmed

Number of enquiries

Prepare 100 day 

promotional plan for 

Wirral YZ

Design & Development Stage Foundation Stage

Illustrative Plan 
Wirral Youth Zone: Tactical Communications Plan 

*Support  the ongoing successful 

fundraising/development strategy so that 

Wirral Youth Zone is best placed to reach 

its funding targets, both now and in the 

future

• Support the dissemination of positive 

messages about Wirral Youth Zone to 

other external stakeholders in the local 

community with a view to creating a 

positive reputation for Wirral Youth Zone 

and informing development of its service 

provision

• Develop relationships with young people 

from the city and surrounding areas to 

build involvement and influence for the 

wider community of young people

• Engage the local community and 

stakeholders (including young people) in 

a structured approach to manage 

expectations for the Youth Zone

*Brand, YZ name and logo all 

agreed

*Board gain an understanding of the 

process the young people have 

gone through and understanding to 

the values behind the brand

*Young people consulted and 

feedback received from as wide an 

audience as possible

Develop a brand identity and 

values for the Youth Zone in 

conjunction with local young 

people 

Raise Awareness for the  

Youth Zone and support

the Revenue Campaign

Planning Permission 

announcement

P
age 152



 
 

Updated: March 2014  

Youth Zone Opening Hours 
 

 Mon Tue Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun 

Carlisle 6.30-8.30pm 

Junior Club 

6.30-9pm 

Senior Club 

4-9pm 

Senior  

Drop-in 

6.30-8.30pm 

Junior Club 

6.30-10pm 

Senior Club 

10am-1pm 

Inclusion 

- 

1.30-3.30pm 

Junior Club 

- 

6.30-10pm 

Seniors 15+ 

N/a 

Mahdlo 3.30-

5.30pm 

School’s Out 

- 

6.30-10pm 

Seniors 

3.30-

5.30pm 

School’s 

Out 

- 

6.30-9pm 

Juniors 

3.30-5.30pm 

School’s Out 

- 

6.30-10pm 

Seniors & 

Ability 

Group 

3.30-5.30pm 

School’s Out 

- 

6.30-9pm 

Juniors & 

Ability 

Group 

3.30-

5.30pm 

School’s Out 

- 

6.30-10pm 

Seniors 

10am-1pm 

Juniors 

- 

1.30-4.30pm 

Girls Only 

- 

6.30-10pm 

Seniors 

10am-1pm 

Open 

Family 

- 

1.30-

4.30pm 

Ability 

Family 

Factory 

 

3.30-5.30 

After 

School Club 

(8-15) 

- 

6.30-10 

Seniors  

(13-21) 

3.30-5.30 

After 

School 

Club (8-

15) 

- 

6.30-9.00 

Juniors 

(8-12) 

3.30-5.30 

After School 

Club (8-15) 

- 

6.30-10 

Seniors (13-

21) 

3.30-5.30 

After School 

Club (8-15) 

- 

6.30-9.00 

Juniors 

(8-12) 

3.30-5.30 

After 

School 

Club (8-15) 

- 

6.30-10 

Seniors 

(13-21) 

10-2 Juniors  

(8-12) 

- 

6.30-10 

Seniors (13-

21) 

12.15-3.30 

Family 

Session 

Blackburn 4-5.30pm 

Dance, 

Musical 

Theatre & 

Junior Gym 

Session 

6-9pm 

Junior Club 

3.30-

5.30pm 

Boxing, 

music & 

sewing 

6-10pm 

Senior 

Club 

4-5.30pm 

Dance & 

Football 

6.30-8pm 

Blackburn 

Youth Choir 

6-9pm 

Junior Club 

4-5.30pm 

Fitness 

session & 

football 

5.30-6.30pm 

Young 

Leaders 

6-10pm 

Senior Club 

4-5.30pm 

Climbing, 

drama & 

netball 

6-9pm 

Junior Club 

10am-

2.30pm 

Junior Club 

2.30-5.30pm 

Girls’ 

climbing, 

football & 

fitness 

session 

6-9pm 

Senior Club 

10am-1pm 

Inclusion 

Club 

1-5pm 

Song 

writing & 

media 

production, 

dance & 

inclusion 

football 

Wigan 4pm-9pm 

Seniors 

4pm-8pm 

Juniors 

 

4pm-9pm 

Seniors 

 

4pm-9pm 

Seniors 

 

4pm-10pm 

Seniors 

 

10am-3pm 

Juniors 

4-10pm 

Seniors 

 

10am-3pm 

Juniors 

4-10pm 

Seniors 

 

BLGC 4-10pm 

Senior Club 

4-10pm 

Senior 

Club 

4-8.30pm 

Junior Club 

4-10pm 

Senior Club 

4-8.30pm 

Junior Club 

2-5pm Junior 

Club 

6-9pm 

Senior Club 

2-5pm  

Fusion Arts 

6-9pm 

Senior Club 

 

Page 153



STANDARD YOUTH ZONE SESSION PROGRAMME Term-time programme

Time

Note: An option might be to have an open session for Juniors one evening each week.

Seniors (13-19 yrs)

General open session activities (plus any 

targeted and ancillary projects)

Seniors (13-19 yrs)

General open session activities (plus any 

targeted and ancillary projects)

Juniors (8-12 yrs)

General open session activities

Juniors (8-12 yrs)

General open session activities

Juniors and/or Seniors

Slot to accommodate locally-selected specific 

projects 

Juniors and/or Seniors

Slot to accommodate locally-selected specific 

projects 

Specialist sports & arts 

sessions

Seniors (13-19 yrs)

General open session activities (plus any 

targeted and ancillary projects)

Seniors (13-19 yrs)

General open session activities (plus any 

targeted and ancillary projects)

Seniors (13-19 yrs)

General open session activities (plus any 

targeted and ancillary projects)

Seniors (13-19 yrs)

General open session activities (plus any 

targeted and ancillary projects)

Specialist sports & arts 

sessions

Juniors (8-12 yrs)

Specialist sports & arts 

sessions

Juniors (8-12 yrs)

Specialist sports & arts 

sessions

Juniors (8-12 yrs)

3.00-4.00

Juniors (8-12 yrs)

Specialist sports & arts 

sessions

Seniors (13-19 yrs)

General open session activities (plus any 

targeted and ancillary projects)

Juniors (8-12 yrs)

9.00-10.004.00-5.00 5.00-6.00 6.00-7.00 7.00-8.00 8.00-9.008.00-9.00 2.00-3.0012.00-1.00 1.00-2.009.00-10.00 10.00-11.00 11.00-12.00

F
ri

d
a

y
S

a
tu

rd
a

y
S

u
n

d
a

y
M

o
n

d
a

y
T

u
e

s
d

a
y

W
e

d
n

e
s

d
a

y
T

h
u

rs
d

a
y

https://onsideyouthzonesorg.sharepoint.com/Onside Youth Zones/Future Youth Zones/Wirral/Supporting docs MF&RA Business Plan/Appendices/Youth Zone Network Session Programme

P
age 154



STANDARD YOUTH ZONE SESSION PROGRAMME Holiday programme

Time

Note: An option might be to have an open session for Juniors one evening each week.

S
u

n
d

a
y Juniors (8-12 yrs) Juniors and/or Seniors Seniors (13-19 yrs)

General open session activities
Slot to accommodate locally-selected specific 

projects 

General open session activities (plus any 

targeted and ancillary projects)

S
a

tu
rd

a
y Juniors (8-12 yrs) Juniors and/or Seniors Seniors (13-19 yrs)

General open session activities
Slot to accommodate locally-selected specific 

projects 

General open session activities (plus any 

targeted and ancillary projects)

T
h

u
rs

d
a

y Seniors (13-19 yrs)

General open session activities (plus any 

targeted and ancillary projects)

F
ri

d
a

y

Seniors (13-19 yrs)

General open session activities (plus any 

targeted and ancillary projects)

Holiday Club (Typically 8 - 14 yrs)

Full all-day holiday care scheme with comprehensive range of in-house and off-site activities                                  

(Divided into 2 x half-day sessions)

Holiday Club (Typically 8 - 14 yrs)

Full all-day holiday care scheme with comprehensive range of in-house and off-site activities                                  

(Divided into 2 x half-day sessions)

T
u

e
s

d
a

y Seniors (13-19 yrs)

General open session activities (plus any 

targeted and ancillary projects)

W
e

d
n

e
s

d
a

y

Seniors (13-19 yrs)

General open session activities (plus any 

targeted and ancillary projects)

Holiday Club (Typically 8 - 14 yrs)

Full all-day holiday care scheme with comprehensive range of in-house and off-site activities                                  

(Divided into 2 x half-day sessions)

Holiday Club (Typically 8 - 14 yrs)

Full all-day holiday care scheme with comprehensive range of in-house and off-site activities                                  

(Divided into 2 x half-day sessions)

8.00-9.00 9.00-10.00

M
o

n
d

a
y Seniors (13-19 yrs)

General open session activities (plus any 

targeted and ancillary projects)

Holiday Club (Typically 8 - 14 yrs)

Full all-day holiday care scheme with comprehensive range of in-house and off-site activities                                  

(Divided into 2 x half-day sessions)

2.00-3.00 3.00-4.00 4.00-5.00 5.00-6.00 6.00-7.00 7.00-8.008.00-9.00 9.00-10.00 10.00-11.00 11.00-12.00 12.00-1.00 1.00-2.00

https://onsideyouthzonesorg.sharepoint.com/Onside Youth Zones/Future Youth Zones/Wirral/Supporting docs MF&RA Business Plan/Appendices/Youth Zone Network Session Programme

P
age 155



Page 156

This page is intentionally left blank



C
F

O
/048/14

P
age 157



P
age 158

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT AND VALUATION  
             (short version) 
 

Our Ref: MGH/CV14-2352           29
th
 April 2014 

 

Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service 

Estates Department-Headquarters Building 

Bridle road 

Bootle 

L30 4YD          fao; ananthasubramanayam@merseyfire.gov.uk  
 

Re: Land to the South of Birkenhead Fire Station Bentinck Street/Exmouth Street, Birkenhead CH414NF 

 
 

1.  Instructions: 

 

 

We confirm that our inspection and Valuation of the above property 

is in accordance with the RICS Guidelines for the valuation of 

property assets as outlined within the RICS Valuation – Professional 

Standards 2014 (“The Red Book”). 

 

We provide a shortened form of Valuation Report which does not 

include detail of or comments on all matters covered during our 

inspection and further investigations. 

 

 

2.  Inspection: 

 

  

The property was inspected in fine and dry conditions by the writer. 

 

The site is unoccupied but fenced and fully open to view. 

 

 

3.  Purpose of Report: 

 

 

To provide:- 

• description of the property and its location 

• comment on current apparent condition 

• comment on development potential 

• comment upon potential extension/merger 

• comment on market conditions for development sites 

• comment on current market conditions for development sites 

• opinion of current Market Value 

• further advice 

 

 

4.  Location & Amenities: 

 

  

The property is located on/outside the immediate north-western 

fringe of Birkenhead town centre, in a mixed commercial and 

residential (including administrative) area between Exmouth Street 

Bentinck Street and also abutting Bright Street. 

 

Birkenhead is the principal town of the Northern Wirral Peninsula, 

providing its principal facilities and the largest retail centre, 

primarily around ‘The Pyramids’. 

 

Across Exmouth Street are a range of community / administration 

buildings and a large Asda supermarket (rear onto Exmouth Street 

and taking its principal access from the Grange Road/Pyramids 

area); across Bright Street are religious buildings and across 

Bentinck Street some Victorian style industrial buildings and Local 

Authority style housing. Immediately adjacent to the new 

Birkenhead Fire Station and 1960s style Ambulance Station. 

 

CFO/048/14

Page 159



 

5.  Description: 

 

 

The subject is an approximately rectangular shaped site, cleared and 

level, as well as fully fenced; with its narrow elevations to Exmouth 

Street and Bentinck Street and with a width to depth ratio circa 1:4. 

 

To the rear of Bentinck Street, there is a concrete surfaced driveway 

leading into the site through double steel palisade gates onto a 

concrete hard-standing, which forms a minority part of the site, the 

remainder of which is surfaced with crushed rubble.  

 

There is no vehicular access from Exmouth Street or Bright Street 

(which is cobbled) and given proximity to the major junction of 

Exmouth Street, Claughton Road, nor is there likely to be so. 

(Indeed, Bright Street formally had connection with this junction, 

which has been closed). 

 

 

6.  Accommodation: 

 

  
The site has been measured on the basis of its gross area as follows:-  

 

With a maximum width circa 28 m and depth circa 102 m the gross 

area is circa 2,750 m² (3,300 yd.²/0.66 acres). 

 

We are advised that the adjacent Ambulance Station site is of similar 

size. 

 
 

7.  Services: 

 
We have NOT placed any tests on the services 
and assume them to be both modern and 
compliant with relevant Regulations and fully 
serviceable, unless otherwise stated.  

 

  

The subject property benefits from proximity of all mains services 

including water, drainage, electricity, gas and telephone.  

 

There are clearly no live service connections to the site and any 

development will require the forming and connection of services to 

the mains. 

 

It is assumed that there are no service mains running beneath the 

site, which would impair or increase the cost of development. 

 

 

8.  Tenure / Tenancies: 

 

  

The Land Registry website indicates that Title to the site is Freehold 

as part of a larger landholding, comprising Birkenhead Fire Station. 

 

It is assumed that this Freehold is relatively unencumbered and that 

there are no restrictions on severing the subject site from the 

Freehold or use and development. 

 

It is assumed that the vehicular access from Bentinck Street forms 

part of the site. 

 

Your solicitors must confirm these matters. 

 

Page 160



 

9.  General/Environment Matters: 

 
Our Valuation is on the assumption that there are 
no deleterious materials or contamination to the 
site.  We have not carried out an Environmental 
Assessment in connection with the Land. 
 
We are not aware of any localised contamination. 
The site is situated in an established residential 
area where there is no evidence of any industrial 
processes having caused environmental damage. 

 

 

Online/Internet enquiries indicate that the property is not at risk 

from radon gas, flooding or coal mining related damage.  

  

An energy performance certificate (EPC) is not required for sale of 

vacant land for development. 

 

We note that the site formerly supported a 1960s office and ancillary 

accommodation building associated with the former Fire Station; it 

is assumed that whilst there is clear evidence of compacted rubble 

surfacing the site there is no asbestos within it. 

 

We did not note any readily visible evidence of Giant Hogweed or 

Japanese Knotweed. 

 

 

10. Apparent Condition: 

 
Our Inspection was confined to obtaining sufficient 
information to guide our opinion as to the fair 
market value and we have neither conducted a 
ground conditions survey of the property nor been 
provided with a copy of one and our fee has been 
charged accordingly. 
 

  

There was no readily visible evidence of ground conditions 

sufficiently adverse as to prevent development. 

 

We note that the site previously supported a two-storey concrete 

framed building for over 40 years without ground condition related 

structural defect/damage occurring. 

 

It is highly likely that there are foundation structures within the 

subsurface of the site, the removal of which, together with the 

compacted rubble overburden will be considered a normal part of 

development costs. 

 

It is unlikely that a developer would purchase the site without a 

‘Stage II’ site investigation report relating to ground conditions and 

chemical analysis.  

 

 

11. General Remarks: 

 
Birkenhead; 

The principal town of the North Wirral \peninsular lies directly across the Mersey and connected to it by two 

road as well as rail tunnels.  Birkenhead provides its own large, distinct, nuclear centre serving the majority of 

the Northern Wirral population, with their principal facilities; retail, social, administrative and to a degree 

employment. 

 

The principal centre of Birkenhead is around Grange Road and the Pyramid Shopping Centre, with the subject 

site lying on its immediate north-western fringe, separated from it by the two principal roads of Exmouth Street 

and Claughton Road. 

 

Whilst the wider Birkenhead area includes affluent and desirable suburban residential locations, residential 

property within the vicinity of the subject tends to be of smaller, ‘affordable’ type and there is an adverse 

reputation with regard to social structure and antisocial behaviour. 

 
L41 4NF; 

The immediate vicinity of the subject includes the adjacent newly constructed Fire Station, the 1960s style 

Ambulance Station (which we understand is now redundant), a church with community building and some 

Victorian style industrial warehouse buildings. 

 

Opposite, across Exmouth Street is an office building and the rear (diagonally across the road junction) is the 

rear of a large Asda supermarket, which forms one of the peripheral parts of the town centre itself. 

 

The majority of the buildings to west, north and east within a few hundred metres are ‘affordable’ housing, 

including social housing and are generally of relatively low value. 

 

Page 161



 

The Site; 

The site has been formed through the demolition of the former office and ancillary accommodation attached to 

the original Fire Station and in terms of current status, is typical of many such sites; hard-core covered and 

secured with steel fencing. There is a single vehicular access point to the rear from Bentinck Street and whilst it 

may be possible to secure other access points from Bright Street to enable development, this is likely to have a 

requirement for the upgrading of Bright Street from cobbles to foundation and macadam surface. It is highly 

unlikely that any vehicular access would be allowed from Exmouth Street, even through re-opening of the 

former Bright Street/Exmouth Street/ Claughton Road junction. 

 

Whilst the site is clear, open and level and enjoys a relatively high profile to this principle road junction, its 

configurations with a width depth ratio in the order of 1:4, is not typical for a development site and similarly, its 

size is considered somewhat oversized for the type of development, which might be attracted to it. 

 

Residential Development Potential; 

Given the adjacent industrial, commercial and administrative buildings, we consider it highly unlikely that 

speculative residential development could be undertaken profitably other than potentially flats targeted for sale 

to overseas investors above ground floor commercial property. 

 

The type of developer currently undertaking this type of development is well aware of their bargaining power 

for purchase of sites and also, currently concentrates on acquisition of ‘cheap’ sites from Receivers or property 

owners in financially distressed circumstances. 

 

Further, this type of development tends to be concentrated on the city rather than town centres as those are 

locations more easily marketed to Middle and Far East investors due to the number of potential key worker and 

student tenants. 

 

Further, given the nature of the immediate vicinity of the site and its potential for commercial or community 

related use within a commercial area, we consider there may be considerable opposition to residential 

development from the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Retail Development Potential; 

The site sits outside of the principal town centre and we note that there are no retail units within the immediate 

vicinity. The site does, however, enjoy a high profile to a busy road junction and therefore some attraction to a 

retailer in this respect, but not forming part of an established retail location, it is distinctly tertiary. 

 

Roadside (whether large or small) retail outlets have a tendency to group together in support of each other and 

in this respect, the site might support a terrace of a number of retail units; however, only that at the eastern end 

will have the profile to the main road. Further, with access from Bentinck Street only, there would have to be 

fairly significant encouragement to potential customers to drive from the main route ‘around the back’ and in 

our opinion, this would limit the potential retailer type to one dealing in significantly attractive goods on a 

specialist basis, to which customers will travel from a wide geographical area. 

 

Whilst the site itself is realistically too large in its entirety for a building which would house the type of retail 

operation which might be attracted to this site, it would however, provide extensive car parking which would be 

vital for a specialist retailer whose customers are vehicle borne. 

 

This site is, in our opinion, not suitable for food retail and, although you state that you have had some interest 

expressed from a number of branded, corporate food retailers for and ‘Express’ store, we consider it highly 

unlikely given its severance from the main centre, the position of the Asda store and the relatively limited 

amount of housing immediately adjacent. We do not however, discount the fact that they may purchase in order 

to sterilise the site and preserve the trading of their existing stores. 

 

Industrial Development Potential; 

We do not discount the appeal of the site for light manufacturing and/or storage use and note existing such uses 

immediately adjacent. We do however, consider that there may be opposition to such development from the 

Local Planning Authority as they attempt to direct the use of this area in a different direction and also note the 

very limited funding available for such development, even for owner occupation. 

 

This type of development would afford the site the lowest value and there are higher value routes which should 

be explored first. 

 

Page 162



 

Fast-Food/Drive-Through; 

Given its location on this prominent busy road junction and the current acquisitive nature of branded, corporate 

fast-food/drive-through operators for sites such as the subject, we consider that this is a market sector where the 

site would have relatively strong appeal. 

 

Typically, sites for this type of operation 0.25 - 0.5 acres, and that this site is somewhat oversized and the 

amount of area above that required would attract nil or nominal value within the overall transaction figure. 

 

We consider this to be the most commercially viable use of the site in isolation from any other land and 

therefore, the sector in which it will be of most appeal to developers who would seek a ‘back-to-back’ or ‘sale 

and lease back’ arrangement with an operator. 

 

Available clearing bank finance for development on a particularly speculative basis remains virtually non-

existent in the North West at present. 

 

This type of development, if undertaken by a local developer, would be most likely financed with their own 

capital, supplemented by sub-prime/bridging finance at high rates of interest, and thus, in order to maintain 

profit the interest rates are funded/afforded at the cost of land value. 

 

Potential If Merged with the Ambulance Station Site; 

You have suggested the possibility of merger of the ambulance station site with the subject site, which would 

produce a site in the order of 1.2 - 1.3 acres, L-shaped with principal frontages to Bentinck Street (ambulance 

station) and Bright Street (subject site), with the subjects site providing the only main road exposure to 

Exmouth Street. 

 

Although the site would now be twice the size of the subject and be capable of supporting a larger building, the 

principal frontage to Exmouth Street will not be increased proportionately and neither will the necessity to 

access by vehicle from the rear. 

 

The site does, however, present the opportunity for the development of a discount food retail supermarket such 

as Aldi with the principal building on the subject site enjoying the benefits of exposure to Exmouth Street and 

Claughton Road and the ambulance station site, the car park. 

 

There is already an Aldi supermarket on Leonard Street, approximately 1km north-west of the subject site with 

a bigger frontage to the main road than the subject offers; however, with vehicular traffic attracted by the main 

shopping centre, it is not improbable that this combined site would prove attractive in this respect. 

 

Social/Community Use Development; 

Given the nature of the existing community use buildings in the area and the fact that it effectively sits on a 

‘hub’ adjacent an area of low cost and social housing, this site is ideally suited for some form of community 

use. 

 

The adjacent church and facility are noted, as well as ‘The Laurels’ opposite, which provides offices and 

facilities for many community groups and there is no doubt further demand for such premises in this area. 

Indeed, we have been involved in the land/property search for a group of midwives seeking premises, who 

eventually opted for ‘the Laurels’. 

 

Of course, it is difficult to place capital value on land for such development in relation to the value of the 

development; however, the value which would be attributed to the land would be that of the nearest most 

valuable alternative use.  Generally, such purchase and development is from a ring fenced public fund often 

assisted by external public/European funding. 

 

Therefore, it may be possible to argue and achieve retail/quasi retail value upon disposal for such development. 

 

 

Page 163



 

Generally; 

Whilst this is a site of commercially developable size, centrally located within the heart of Birkenhead adjacent 

a busy road junction and enjoying a high profile to it, it has considerable detracting factor is for commercial 

development. 

 

We caution against viewing this site in its own right, or as part of a larger site as immediately suitable for 

valuable development say food retail as, the limited main road frontage and rear access will be significantly 

detracting factors. 

 

If this site were to be sold for development, we consider that the most viable sales area and development would 

be for roadside/fast-food/drive-through restaurant and we draw to your attention the McDonald’s and KFC site, 

on Sefton Street (Stock Road) in Liverpool, where both have main road frontage, but access is to the rear via a 

side street. 

 

It is easy to assess potential uses and values and target the most valuable use, attempting to apply it to the site 

when the reality, and particularly with developers, is that the site must fit the use. 

 

Certainly, if the site is sold for development/use less valuable than the above or food retail, it should be 

restricted with covenants, preserving the right to future payment should a more valuable use become intended. 

 

 

12. Valuation Methodology: 
 

 

The primary method of valuation is the Comparative Method 

whereby a site/property is compared to others which have been 

bought and sold within a relevant geographical area and timeframe. 

In the case of developer and sites, this applies to use as well. 

 

It for development sites appraisal was often by way of Residual 

Method (usually involving a computer program) reducing assessed 

Gross Developed Value development costs, profit, finance, fees etc, 

however, these factors vary considerably between developers. At 

present the Residual Method may not produce a sufficiently accurate 

result and therefore, should be considered in general guidance terms 

only. 

 

We have considered evidence of sales of development sites 

throughout the North West region and in particular, those developed 

for fast-food/drive-through restaurant use. 

 

We have not considered any ‘abnormals’ i.e. physical features which 

might prevent or significantly increase the cost of development. 

 

We do assume that Planning Permission will be granted for a 

relevant development. 

 

 

13. Opinion of Value: 

 
This opinion of value is on the assumption that; 
 
 (a) The property is not subject to any unusual or 
onerous restriction and encumbrances or 
outgoings and that good title can be shown. 
(b) The property is unaffected by any matters 
which would be revealed by a local search and 
replies to the usual enquiries or by any statutory 
notice. 

 

 

Accordingly, having regard to the points and comments noted above 

we consider that the Market Value of the assumed relatively 

unencumbered Freehold interest in the subject site with the benefit 

of full vacant possession, Planning Permission for development and 

allowing 9 months for marketing may be expressed in the order of:- 

 

Non-food retail and fast-food restaurant/drive-through; 

 

£250,000 

(two hundred and fifty thousand pounds). 

 

Food retail as part of the combined site; 

 

£325,000 

(three hundred and twenty five thousand pounds) 

 
 Page 164



 

 

14. Validity: 

 

This Valuation Report is provided for the stated purpose(s) and for 

the sole use of the named client.  It is confidential to the client and 

his professional advisers and the Valuer accepts no responsibility 

whatsoever to any other person. 

 

Neither the whole nor any part of the Valuation Report or any 

reference hereto, may be included in any published document, 

circular, or statement, or published in any way, without the Valuer’s 

written approval of the form and context in which it may appear. 

 

 

 

M. G. HARDIE  LL.B. MRICS 

 

RICS REGISTERED VALUER 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 165



Page 166

This page is intentionally left blank



MERSEYSIDE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY 
 

MEETING OF THE: COMMUNITY SAFETY AND PROTECTION COMITTEE  

DATE: 31 JULY 2014 REPORT 
NO: 

CFO/083/14 

PRESENTING 
OFFICER 

CHIEF FIRE OFFICER DAN STEPHENS 

RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER: 

 DCFO PHIL GARRIGAN 
 

REPORT 
AUTHOR: 

MYLES PLATT 

OFFICERS 
CONSULTED: 

WATCH MANAGER JOHN COUSINS 
CYP LEAD CAROLINE CRICHTON 

TITLE OF REPORT: CFOA ROAD SAFETY WEEK 2014 

 

APPENDICES: APPENDIX A:  
APPENDIX B: 

MFRS ROAD SAFETY STRATEGY 
ACTIVITY IMAGES AND SUMMARY 

 
 

Purpose of Report 

 
1. To inform Members on the background to and activity carried out by MFRA staff 

during the Chief Fire Officers Association (CFOA) Road Safety Week 9th June to 
15th June 2014. 

 

Recommendation 

 

2. That Members;  
 

a. Note, the contents of this report and the contribution this activity has to 
the reduction of those killed or seriously injured on the roads as a result of 
being in a road traffic collision. 

 
b. Note that whilst those killed or seriously injured in road traffic collisions is 

reducing, the numbers of those pedestrians and cyclists killed or seriously 
injured in Merseyside has been rising for the last 3 years.  

 
 

Introduction and Background 

 
3. The National CFOA Road Safety Strategy’s mission “To work with a range of 

partners in order to be world leaders in delivering integrated road safety 
education resulting in safer roads throughout the UK”. Is supported by its vision 
to support a steady reduction in the number of those killed or seriously injured, 
with the ultimate vision of zero deaths and recued injuries on the UK roads. 

 
4. To achieve the mission and the vision the strategy contains 8 key priorities, in 

summary: 
 

a) Build relationships with stakeholders and ensure the Fire and Rescue Service 
are seen as preferred partners. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 167



 
b) Establish National Road Safety Week. 

 
c) Establish a UK wide standard approach to access of road safety data and 

intelligence. 
 
d) To provide a comprehensive picture of national themed campaigns and 

events. 
 
e) Collate a suite of resources and a toolkit to enhance service delivery. 
 
f) Work with strategic and local partners to support road casualty reduction 

across the UK. 
 
g) Provide a framework/approach which FRA’s can utilise when seeking funding 

and commissioning. 
 

h) Establish a complete set of Memoranda of Understanding and Data Sharing 
Protocols to support road safety outcomes. 

 
5. The Authority supports the CFOA strategy through its own Road Safety 

Strategy 2011 -2014 which is currently under review for 2015, attached as 
Appendix A.  

 
6. The Authority is represented at a regional level at the North West Road Safety 

Group by members of its road safety team located at service headquarters, 
charged with delivering outcomes at a local level to support the CFOA National 
strategy. 

 
7. The Authority is represented at a local level with Local Authority and 

Merseyside Police, who have responsibility for road safety in each District, 
along with other road safety practitioners at a strategic (Merseyside Road 
Safety Partnership) and operational (Merseyside Road Safety Officers Group) 
level.  
 

8. As detailed in Appendix A, local road safety partnerships are attended by 
Station Managers in each District who have responsibility for Road Safety in 
their area. 
 

9. As detailed in paragraph 4 b) Merseyside has made a significant contribution 
and carried out activity in each District to support CFOA National Road Safety 
Week, a summary and breakdown of which is detailed below: 
 

Liverpool District   
 
   
10. Croxteth; Operational staff from Croxteth Community Fire Station held an event 

in Paradise Street Liverpool City Centre. The MFRA crash car was used to 
highlight the dangers of drink driving and also the consequences of speeding, 
using mobile phones and in car distractions. The event was also supported by 

Page 168



the Prince’s Trust Team from Toxteth. Over 100 people were directly engaged 
with as a result of the event. 

 
11. Belle Vale; Operational crews from Belle Vale Community Fire Station staged 

an extrication display at Morrison’s car park. Operational and Prevention staff 
also directly engaged with shoppers promoting the road safety message ‘safety 
for all’. A total of 250 shoppers were engaged with as a result of the event. 

 
Wirral District 
 
12. Upton; Operational and Prevention Road Safety personnel from Wirral were 

joined by Local Authority Road Safety practitioners and Merseyside Police in 
supporting CFOA Road Safety week. An extrication demonstration was 
undertaken by crews from Upton with the crash car demonstrator in 
attendance. Prevention staff and partners engaged with shoppers offering road 
safety advice covering the ‘Safety for all on our roads’ message. 250 shoppers 
benefited from direct engagement. 

 
13. Bromborough; Crews from Bromborough Community Fire Station and 

Prevention staff took part in a successful event at Bromborough Asda. The 
crash car was used as an interactive tool to engage members of the public into 
thinking about road safety. Road safety leaflets were also distributed in the 
foyer of the store, MFRA, Merseyside Police and Local Authority staff directly 
engaged with the public promoting Road safety messages. More than 150 
shoppers were directly engaged with as a result of the event. 

 
Sefton District 
 
14. Crosby and Bootle & Netherton; Operational crews from each station took part 

in a multi-agency ‘Road Safety’ market place held at Holy Family School, 
Thornton, to engage with their year 10 pupils. The event saw MFRA staff 
present their ‘Suddenly from Nowhere’ package to three groups. The crash car 
was also used to engage and raise road safety awareness. Police and Local 
Authority practitioners also supported the road safety message. The event 
culminated in an extrication display that saw two of the year 10 pupils used as 
casualties. 90 year 10 pupils were directly engaged with. Crews across Sefton 
have also attended three cycling events planned in conjunction with Sefton 
Local Authority Road Safety staff, to promote safe cycling.  

 
 
Knowsley District 
 
15. Huyton, Kirkby and Whiston; A Multi- agency event was held at Asda Huyton on 

Saturday 14th June. Operational crews worked alongside the North West 
Ambulance Service ‘HART Team’ and Merseyside Police to demonstrate the 
skills and team work needed to successfully perform’ Gold Standard extrication. 
Members of MFRA ‘Road Safety Team’ were also in attendance with the 
demonstration crash car to promote the ‘safety for all’ message. Over 300 
shoppers were directly engaged with during the event 

Page 169



St. Helens District 
 
16. St. Helens, Newton-le-Willows and Eccleston; A weeklong series of events 

were held at Cowley International College in St Helens, culminating in a multi-
agency event at Church Square St Helens. MFRA delivered Road Safety 
sessions to more than 150 students at Cowley. The Display in Church Square 
was supported by all road safety partners; MFRA Operational and Prevention 
staff, Local Authority road safety practitioners, North West Ambulance Service 
and Merseyside Police. Direct engagement with the public was supported by 
two multi-vehicle extrication scenarios during the daylong event. Several live 
casualties were used to add a sense of realism and urgency to the scenarios. 
Over 500 members of the public were directly engaged with by all partners 
promoting the ‘Safety for all’ message 

. 
Summary 
 
17. All of the events held across Merseyside were well supported and delivered in 

partnership across the County, delivering the key message of ‘Road Safety for 
All’ through education and engagement. 

 
18. The Authority Corporate Communications team worked with the local radio 

stations, press, social media and internal sites to promote the Road Safety 
messages. It is estimated that due to the media coverage the Road Safety 
messages engaged in excess of 250,000 residents across Merseyside.   
 

19. Images and a summary of local activity can be found in Appendix B.   
 
 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

 
20. A full equality impact assessment has been completed for the Authority Road 

Safety Strategy 2011-14. This will be reviewed as the strategy is refreshed for 
2015. 

 
21. The road safety message is aimed at all members of the community to include 

vehicle use, cycling and pedestrians with a particular focus on those members 
of the community who are most vulnerable on Merseyside’s roads. 

 
 

Staff Implications 

 
22. There are no additional staffing burdens associated with engagement and 

education with members of the community. 
 

Legal Implications 

 
23. Whilst there is no direct legal responsibility for the Authority to actively engage 

in road safety education and engagement, the Fire and Rescue Services Act 
2004 provides a duty under section 8(1)(b) to protect people from serious harm, 

 

Page 170



to the extent that it considers it reasonable to do so, in the event of road traffic 
accidents in its area.  This encompasses road safety education. In addition the 
Act under section 21gives statutory effect to the Fire & Rescue Service National 
Framework. This Framework sets out the government’s priorities for the Fire & 
Rescue service and explains what Fire & Rescue authorities are expected to 
do. It introduces the concept of Integrated Risk Management planning (IRMP) 
as a way of identifying existing and potential risk to our communities. The IRMP 
must set strategies for, amongst other things, reducing the number and severity 
of road traffic collisions. 

 

Financial Implications & Value for Money 

 
24. All activity relating to road safety education and engagement is met from 

existing budgets.  
 

Risk Management, Health & Safety, and Environmental Implications 

 
25. Road Safety education and engagement both for staff and members of the 

community makes a direct positive contribution to the reduction of risk on the 
roads of Merseyside and beyond. 

 

Contribution to Our Mission: Safer Stronger Communities – Safe Effective Firefighters 

 
26. Road Safety education and engagement directly contributes to outcomes 

contained within the IRMP and the number of RTC‘s attended by operational 
crews, thus making members of the community and firefighters safer . 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

  
N/A 
 

 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

  
MFRA 
 
MFRS 
 
CFOA              
 
IRMP 
 
HART 
 
RTC 
 
FRS 
 
 
 

Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority  
 
Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service  
 
Chief Fire Officers Association 
 
Integrated Risk Management Plan 
 
Hazardous Area Response Team 
 
Road traffic Collision 
 
Fire and Rescue Service 

 

Page 171



Page 172

This page is intentionally left blank



 Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014  

 Page 1 of 21      Version 13 

Road Safety Strategy 2011 – 2014 
Reducing the impact 
             

 
 

 
Safer Stronger Communities – Safe Effective Firefighters 

C
F

O
/083/14

P
age 173



 Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014  

 Page 2 of 21      Version 13 

Contents 
 
 
 
Foreword  Chairman of Fire Authority / Deputy Chief Fire Officer  
 
Section 1  The National Context 
 
Section 2  Role of the Fire and Rescue Service 
 
Section 3  Historical data and target setting 
 
Section 4  Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service Response 
 
Section 5  Implementing the strategy 
 
Section 6  Emergency Response 
 
Section 7  Annual Action Plan 
 
Section 8  List of area designated reference holders and Abbreviations 
 
 
 

P
age 174



 Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014  

 Page 3 of 21      Version 13 

 
Foreword 
 
 
 
I am pleased to present Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service’s Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014 
 
In launching this strategy, Merseyside Fire & Rescue Authority recognise the vital role the Fire & Rescue Service plays in 
contributing to the wider community safety agenda and in particular, to the reduction in the number of people killed or seriously 
injured on our roads. 
 
The Authority recognises the good work already undertaken by many within the service whilst also being mindful of the need to co-
ordinate and properly support future initiatives. 
 
This document sets out the main ways in which we plan to contribute to the achievement of a reduction in road casualties by the 
year 2014. 
 
To implement the IRMP we work in partnership with others to provide an excellent, affordable service to all the diverse communities 
of Merseyside. We ensure that our interventions make a difference. We build upon our unique position of trust and respect within 
the community and the professionalism of our staff to tackle the real underlying factors which affect risk. 
 
In addition, this strategy demonstrates to the public, to our partner agencies and to our staff the importance we place on this issue 
and the role we all have to play in making Merseyside’s roads safer for everyone. 
 
Tony Newman  
Chairman of Merseyside Fire Authority. 
 
 

 

 

 

P
age 175



 Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014  

 Page 4 of 21      Version 13 

Deputy Chiefs Comments  
 

The Fire and Rescue service are now called to rescue more people from road traffic collisions than from fires. Our staff within 
MFRS deals with the aftermath of road traffic collisions and the impact they have on human life, on a daily basis. It is only right, 
therefore, that we direct our efforts towards trying to prevent such incidents. 
 
No single agency can be responsible for reducing deaths and injuries on our roads. The focus of this strategy, therefore, is to 
encourage and support partnership working with those agencies involved in the delivery of road safety initiatives and to 
demonstrate a strategic commitment to the issue. 
 
We will also continue to prepare for all road traffic collisions. Our aim will be to effectively respond to any call for assistance to a 
road traffic collision and get appropriately trained and equipped personnel to the scene of operations to undertake and support 
rescue and scene safety operations. 
 
This strategy will serve to focus our minds on this important issue and by doing so, support our mission “Safer Stronger 
Communities – Safe Effective Firefighters.” 
 
Phil Garrigan 
Deputy Chief Fire Officer 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 176



 Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014  

 Page 5 of 21      Version 13 

Section 1   The National Context   
  
                         
The scale of the problem 
 
Road safety directly involves all road users of all ages, whether on bike, on foot, or in 
a vehicle. Roads can unfortunately sometimes prove to be a dangerous environment 
and road accidents cause immense human suffering. Every year, around 3,500 people 
are killed on Britain’s roads and 40,000 seriously injured. In total, there are over 
300,000 road casualties in nearly 240,000 accidents. 
 
Road traffic collisions do not have a single cause. They are result of a number of 
contributory factors that combine in a way that leads to a road user failing to respond 
in a particular situation. Human error is a contributory factor in approximately 95% of 
road collisions. 
 
Of particular concern is the fact that road accidents remain the biggest single cause of accidental death for people under the age of 
24 1 in the UK. In addition, a significant number of road deaths can be attributed to an illegal action. For example, almost 16% of 
road deaths happened when someone was driving while over the legal alcohol limit. 
 
The National Strategy 
 
In May 2011, the Department for Transport published “Strategic Framework for Road Safety”. This outlines the Government’s plans 
to reduce deaths and injuries on Britain’s roads as well as the measures and steps that others can take. It is available to download 
at www.dft.gov.uk/roadsafety. 
“ Where road users make low level mistakes or display poor skills we intend to divert them in to a greater range of educational 
courses to help develop safer skills and attitudes. “ 
 
The government adopted a range of targets in 2011 to encourage a multi disciplinary approach with the various partners in the 
community working together to deliver its road safety strategy. It is believed that this can be achieved by applying a four-strand 
approach encompassing improved education, enforcement, engineering and encouragement. 
Although the department of transport has overall ownership for these targets, the strategy has been built into each local authority’s 
five year local transport plans as well as the Police Authority’s annual policing plans. The strategy encourages all highway 

P
age 177



 Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014  

 Page 6 of 21      Version 13 

authorities to adopt their own local targets, publish their plans, carry out casualty reduction schemes, education, training and 
publicity initiatives, monitor their actions, evaluate progress and publish outcomes. 
 

 

National targets 
 
The targets to be achieved by the year 2020 are: 
 

• A 40% reduction in the number of people killed or seriously injured in road accidents 
 
Many local authorities, including our partners within Merseyside have incorporated these targets into their local public service 
agreements. By doing so, they have set themselves stretching targets which, if achieved, will allow additional funding to be 
released for continuing road safety initiatives. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
1 
In 2002 800 people under the age of 24 dies as a result of a road accident. This figure is 300% greater than the next biggest cause. 

P
age 178



 Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014  

 Page 7 of 21      Version 13 

Section 2   The Role of the Fire and Rescue Service 

Fire and Rescue services Act 2004 
 
The Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004 represents the most significant legislation changes in the operation of the Fire and Rescue 

Service (FRS) in over 50 years. The Fire Services Act of 1947 focussed 
on preparing and equipping Fire & Rescue Services to respond to fires, 
with no responsibilities or duties placed upon Fire authorities in relation to 
road traffic collisions or other emergencies. Over time societal 
expectations and public demands have resulted in the role of the Fire and 
Rescue service evolving and changing and the 2004 act sets out a much 
broader range of statutory duties. 
 
In particular, the new Act recognises that the Fire and Rescue service is 
now the primary rescue service at road traffic collisions and part 2, section 
8, of the Act places a statutory duty on Fire & Rescue services to prepare 
for rescuing people from road traffic collisions (RTCs) 
 
This recognition reflects the increasing workload on Fire & Rescue 
services partly attributes to their attendance at RTC’S. Within Merseyside 

the incidents attended by MFRS have reduced from 433 in 2009 to 407 in 2010. The statutory changes also reflect the contribution 
made by Fire & Rescue Authorities over the years to ensure that when we attended incidents, we were able to assist and effect an 
efficient extrication of casualties even though there was no statutory duty to do so. 
 
Importantly, the 2004 Act gives statutory effect to the Fire & Rescue service national Framework. This Framework sets out the 
government’s priorities for the Fire & Rescue service and explains what Fire & Rescue authorities are expected to do. It introduces 
the concept of Integrated Risk Management planning (IRMP) as a way of identifying existing and potential risk to our communities. 
The IRMP must set strategies for, amongst other things, reducing the number and severity of road traffic collisions. 
 
The Authority, therefore has a key role to play with our partners in preventing road traffic collisions and the resultant damage to 
human life, much as it intends to reduce fire related deaths and injuries. 
 
 

P
age 179



 Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014  

 Page 8 of 21      Version 13 

The Police Reform Act 2004 
 
By adding Fire and Rescue Authorities to the list of “responsible authorities”, The Police Reform Act 2002 (Part 6, Section 97, 
Subsection (2)) places a duty on the Fire and Rescue Authority to work with the police and local authorities in crime and disorder 
reduction partnerships, to identify crime and disorder problems in their area and to develop and implement strategies to tackle 
them. 
 
Consequently, within our work with partners to reduce crime and fear of crime, the Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority 
recognises that its Fire & Rescue service has an important contribution to make in the specific area of reducing the instances of 
crime related vehicle collisions. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 180



 Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014  

 Page 9 of 21      Version 13 

Section 3  Historical Data and Target Setting 

Where We Are Now 

MFRS records using the national Incident Recording System (IRS) and our own Vision Boss mobilising and management system 
show that 14 people were killed and over 72 seriously injured in road traffic collisions in 2010. In addition over 321 people were 
slightly injured. 
 
The following tables provide details of those road traffic collisions attended by Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service 

Degree of Severity 2009 2010 

FATAL 17 14 

SERIOUS 87 72 

KSI 104 86 

SLIGHT 329 321 

TOTAL 433 407 

 
Historical Amount of Fatalities and Injuries in Road Traffic Collisions between 2006 and 2010 (annual) 

Degree of Severity 20062 2007 2008 2009 2010 

FATAL 16 7 13 17 14 

INJURY 679 555 499 416 393 

TOTAL 695 562 512 433 407 
*Note: Not all fatal RTCs are attended by Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service. 

 

                                                 
2
 Prior to 01/04/2008 it is not possible to differentiate between minor and sever injuries in RTC’s as the data is not available. 

Since 01/04/2008 it is possible to ascertain an injury’s severity. 

P
age 181



 Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014  

 Page 10 of 21      Version 13 

Where we want to be 

The Fire and Rescue Service does not attend all road traffic collisions. Some serious incidents including those incidents involving 
pedestrians and cyclists and other minor accidents are often dealt with by the Police and/or the Ambulance Service. This has led to 
differences in the way we, the Police and our other partners collect and measure data. 
 
It is, therefore, unhelpful to apply percentage reduction targets to our incident figures as we measure different sets of data. 
Therefore, the aim of this strategy is to focus Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service on this important community safety issue. It will 
allow us to consider the targeting of our resources towards education and encouragement initiatives in such a way that we 
contribute to the overall government reduction targets. 
 
Our commitment to this strategy, and our partners’ objectives, will be demonstrated by the inclusion of the 5 relevant council targets 
and performance in our annual Service Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 182



 Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014  

 Page 11 of 21      Version 13 

Section 4   Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service Response 

What Have We Done? 

In the past, our approach to road traffic collisions has largely been to make an emergency response when required in order to 
release any casualties trapped as a result of the incident. 
 
This has required a sustained and measurable commitment of financial resources and training time as well as a continual process 
of equipment innovation and evolution. 
 
With the focus changing to a balanced strategy incorporating our preventative road safety activity, the Area Manager for Prevention 
Protection now sits on the Merseyside strategic Road Safety Planning Group established to coordinate and develop road safety 
strategies and initiatives across partner agencies. 
 
In addition, individual Community Safety Managers, recognising both the increasing workload resulting from RTCs and the key role 
the service plays in preventing RTCs, have developed local initiatives in an attempt to tackle the problem. 
 
Case Study 
 
Road safety drive 

 

More than 1,000 young people in St Helens were warned of the dangers on the region’s roads during National Road Safety 

Week.  

 

Watch Manager Neil Graham of Eccleston and Fire fighter Mike Dwyer of St Helens spoke with every student at Carmel 

College during the awareness week about the real dangers they face on the roads.  

 

Merseyside’s Fire and Rescue Service’s hard-hitting Drive 2 Arrive presentation warned 17 to 19-year-olds of the 

consequences of not wearing seatbelts, drink driving, speeding, and using mobile phones whilst driving.  

 

Crew Manager Vin Taylor of Speke has also trained tutors at the college to deliver the package to future students.  

 

 

 

P
age 183



 Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014  

 Page 12 of 21      Version 13 

Vicky Bryant of Carmel College said: “The sessions have definitely been a major hit. The young people have absolutely 

loved it and have been talking about it all week.” 

 

The sessions were arranged to reduce the number of accidents in the district and crews from Eccleston and St Helens will 

continue the road safety drive with visits to St Helens College throughout the Year. 

 

Station Manager Richard Clarke said: “The work carried out by operational crews is a vital part of making the roads around 

the St Helens district a safer place.” 

 
This case study and other initiatives represent examples of good work. The main purpose of this strategy is to ensure that such 
initiatives are fully supported and all positive outcomes shared across the service. 
 

Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service recognises its own responsibilities to reduce risk to road users by formally assessing the risks 
and introducing suitable controls for relevant service activities. These controls include providing service vehicles incorporating 
appropriate safety technology and supporting maintenance regimes. 
 
Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service has a team of specialist accredited driver training instructors and examiners who deliver training 
and assessment of all employee drivers, including emergency response drivers who are trained and assessed in accordance with 
National Codes of Practice. They are required to return to the Driving School at periodic intervals in order to demonstrate continued 
competence 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 184



 Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014  

 Page 13 of 21      Version 13 

What We Are Going To Do 

Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service will help keep people safer as we contribute to the achievement of the 2011 targets and will 
develop initiatives aimed at facilitating reductions in fatal and serious casualties on roads across Merseyside. 
 
We have agreed a plan of key actions described in the attached action plan, which gives responsibility for delivering key objectives 
to the appropriate level within the organisation. 
 
The strategy recognises that many of our partners organisations have a wealth of experience in driving road safety forward and we 
will look to ensure that our strategic and local initiatives make full use of this experience and that our aims and objectives support 
those of our partners, 
 
At a strategic level the Authority will: 
 

• Take ownership and lead of the Road Safety Strategy at the highest level. 

• Seek wider consultation with partners/stake holders on our strategy. 

• Agree a Road Safety Partnership local agreement with Merseyside Police and other Partners that identifies road safety 
hotspots and co ordinates the appropriate accident reduction strategy. 

• Establish links with other partners including the Driving Standards Agency and Institute of Advanced Motorists in order to 
work together on mutually beneficial initiatives. 

 
At an organisational level we will: 

 

• Include RTC attendance reduction targets in the Service Plan and ensure performance is monitored via the quarterly 
performance report. 

• Where external funding can be secured, we will support the rollout across the service of initiatives e.g. the LIFE (Local 
Intervention Fire Education) scheme ensuring that the content of the course reflects the consequence of dangerous/illegal 
driving. 

• Establish a “toolkit” of RTC education, publicity and awareness initiatives, which can be utilised by the Community Safety 
teams according to local need. For example to target particular high risk groups or high risk roads etc. 

 

P
age 185



 Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014  

 Page 14 of 21      Version 13 

• Develop a strategy to effectively communicate both the issues involved and the developing role of Merseyside Fire & Rescue 
Service in helping to reduce RTC casualties, while supporting our partners in achieving the government targets. 

• Ensure that all emergency fire appliance and responses vehicle drivers are trained to nationally agreed standards and are 
reassessed over a three year cycle. 

• Actively seek to reduce and eliminate vehicle accidents. In accordance with service policies all vehicle accidents and near 
misses involving Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service vehicles (and other vehicles on Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service 
property), will be investigated in order to identify the cause and to reduce the potential for future occurrences. 

 
At a local level we will: 
 

• Ensure that MFRS representatives on Community and Road Safety Partnerships have sufficient training and guidance to 
enable them to support local initiatives. 

• Ensure that each local IRMP incorporates RTC reduction initiatives including appropriate resource allocation. 

• Encourage and support inter-agency training where it fits in with our aims and objectives and those of our partner agencies. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 186



 Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014  

 Page 15 of 21      Version 13 

Section 5  Implementing the Strategy 

Resourcing Our Strategy 
 
The benefits of working closely with our partners cannot be underestimated and it is clear that we will be able to offer mutual 
support to their Road Safety initiatives. The Service will seek to support a partnership approach to road safety and will actively 
contribute to joint initiatives. 
 
Within the organisational structure of Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service key personnel are accountable for driving down the 
incidents of RTC’s and accompanying casualty figures. 
 
Roles and Responsibilities 
 
Overall ownership of the strategy will rest with the Fire and Rescue Authority. The responsibility for delivering against the strategy 
will rest with the Deputy Chief Fire Officer. The Area manager for Prevention and Protection will be responsible for implementing 
the action plan by planning and co-ordinating delivery on behalf of the Fire and Rescue Authority. 
 
It is possible that a number of departments within the service will be able to support the Road Safety Strategy as our experience 
and understanding of reduction strategies increases. 
 
As part of station planning the Local IRMP’s, District Managers and Community Safety Managers will have responsibility for 
assessing the risk within their areas of responsibility, allocating sufficient resources and reflecting road safety strategies in their 
Local Integrated Risk Management Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 187



 Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014  

 Page 16 of 21      Version 13 

How We Will Be Measured 
 
This strategy will provide a clear and structured environment within which Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service can rationalise and 
communicate the approaches we adopt and monitor, measure and demonstrate progress being made to support our partners 
accident reduction campaigns. In order to monitor the contribution Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service is making towards our 
partners achieving the national targets, the official annual figures for the three target areas will also be reported against in the 
annual Service Plan. The Service’s Knowledge and Information Management team is currently working with Merseyside Police and 
the five Merseyside councils to ensure that the necessary exchange of data and information take place to help achieve  the 
outcomes within the strategy. 
 
The ongoing national review of Fire & Rescue Service incident data collection may lead to Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service 
collecting and measuring data in new ways. This is likely to improve our performance management and targeted approach to road 
safety. 
 
Each District produces an annual Local Integrated Risk Management Plan detailing how resources are going to be utilised for risk 
reduction initiatives within the area. It will be incumbent on each Community Safety Manager to consider the incidence of RTC’s 
within their area of responsibility and set appropriate targets for their reduction. They will have access to the latest data and the risk 
reduction “toolbox” in order for them to allocate time and resources as necessary. 
 
Several Community Safety Partnerships have extended their targets to include wider community safety issues such as road safety. 
Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service will, where appropriate, support any local initiatives aimed at reducing road casualties. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 188



 Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014  

 Page 17 of 21      Version 13 

Section 6       Emergency Response 
 

It is an unfortunate fact that there will always be a need for a reactive 
response to RTCs when they occur. The Authority has adopted standards 
through the Integrated Risk Management Plan (IRMP), to monitor 
response times to road traffic collisions, as they become a significant part 
of the workload for all Fire and Rescue Services. The standards are to 
ensure that 90% of RTCs will be attended in 8 minutes. 
 
Our performance against these standards is measured by way of local 
performance indicators incorporated in the annual IRMP and Service Plan. 
 
 

Intervention 
 

In accordance with national best practice, Merseyside Fire and Rescue 
Service trained Operational personnel to respond and deal effectively to 

road safety incidents. 
 
We have systems and processes in place to ensure that once Fire and Rescue Service personnel respond to an RTC, our staff are 
suitably equipped and trained to deal with whatever crash rescue scenario they are faced in order that a safe, time efficient, 
casualty centred rescue can be achieved. 
 
The Integrated Personnel Development system (IPDS) will support the training and development of Fire and Rescue Service 
personnel and will help to ensure that our personnel are competent in safety procedures, equipment use and extrication techniques 
relevant to their expected role at an RTC. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 189



 Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014  

 Page 18 of 21      Version 13 

The Fire and Rescue Authority will continue to support MFRS entry into the annual United Kingdom Rescue Organisation (UKRO) 
Extrication Challenge will provide best practice and a channel for the dissemination of information back into MFRS. 
 
In addition to developments in techniques and procedures, the UKRO event also serves to highlight developments in rescue 
equipment technology. We will ensure this information is fed into the research and development planning process. 

 

 

Information 
 

We ensure that operational crews are provided with relevant safety and technical information in which to 
base their operational plans when attending an RTC. 
 
Specific front line fire appliances are fitted with the crash recovery system this system is loaded with the 
latest safety information and technical data on a wide range of road vehicles. This information is readily 
available to Incident Commanders and can be used to inform their decision making process. 
 
In addition, we will seek to establish links with motor vehicle manufacturers in order to secure advice and 
information relevant to fire and rescue service operations. For example, we are in the process of obtaining 
specific guidance from a larger motor vehicle manufacture of their entire range of private and commercial 
vehicles. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

P
age 190



 Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014  

 Page 19 of 21      Version 13 

Section 7  Annual action plan  
 

Key 
actions   What we plan to do Who will be responsible Completion 
1 Fire Authority to approve and take ownership of the Road Safety Strategy. CFO& CE and Chairman of the Fire 

Authority 
October-11 

2 Seek wider consultation with Partners/Stakeholders on our strategy. 
 
 

Head of Knowledge & Information 
Management  

Apr-11 

3 Agree a Road Safety Partnership Local Agreement with Merseyside Road 
Safety Partners that identifies road safety hotspots and co-ordinates the 
appropriate accident reduction strategy. 

Area Manager Prevention & Protection Mar-11 

4 The Area Manager for prevention and protection sit on the Merseyside Road 
Safety Planning Group and give a strategic lead to MFRS. The Engagement 
and Intervention Manager to attend the MERSOG. 

Area Manager Prevention & Protection 
Engagement and Intervention Manager 

Ongoing 

5 Establish links with other Partners including ,Driving Standards Agency, 
RoSPA etc. 

Area Manager Prevention & Protection 
Head of Knowledge and Information 
Management 
Youth Engagement Manager  
Driver Training Manager 

Ongoing 

6 Include RTC casualty reduction targets in the Service Plan and ensure 
performance is monitored via the Quarterly Performance report. 

Director of Strategic Planning  
Area Manager Operational Response 

Ongoing 

7 Where funding can be secured, support the rollout across the Service of the 
LIFE (Local Intervention Fire Education) scheme ensuring that the content of 
the course reflects the consequences of dangerous/illegal driving. 

Youth Engagement Manager Ongoing 

8 Establish a "toolbox" of RTC education, publicity, awareness initiatives which 
can be utilised by the Community SafetyManager’s according to the local 
need. For example to target particular high-risk groups or high-risk roads etc. 

Engagement and Intervention Manager  Apr-11 

9 We will support the Local Authority in reducing RTC incidents by delivering 
community engagement activities to ‘at risk groups e.g. Drive to Arrive (D2A), 
and other toolbox resources. 

Community Safety Managers and station 
personnel 

 

 
 

P
age 191



 Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014  

 Page 20 of 21      Version 13 

10 Develop a communications strategy to effectively communicate both the issues 
involved and the developing role of MFRS in helping to reduce RTC casualties 
and to support our Partners in achieving the Government targets. 

Director of Corporate Communications Apr-11 

11 Ensure that all Emergency Fire Appliance and Response Vehicle drivers are 
trained to the nationally agreed standards and are refreshed over a three-year 
cycle. 

Training & Development 
Driver Training Manager 

Apr-11 

12 Ensure that MFRS representatives on CSP’s etc have sufficient training and 
guidance to allow them to access funding streams to support local initiatives 

Partnership Team 
 

Ongoing 

13 Ensure that each station plan and Local IRMP incorporates RTC reduction 
targets and that appropriate time and resources are allocated dependent upon 
risk. 

Community Safety Managers 
District Management Team 

Ongoing 

14 Encourage and support inter-agency training where it fits in with our aims and 
objectives and those of our partner agencies. 

Community Safety Managers Ongoing 

15 We will aim to ensure that 90% of RTCs will be attended in 8 minutes. 
 

Area Manager Operational Response Ongoing 

16 We will continue to evaluate the most appropriate speed and weight of 
response to RTCs. 

Integrated Risk Management Planning 
Team 

Ongoing 

17 We will ensure that all operational personnel receive comprehensive refresher 
training in the latest crash rescue techniques. 

Training Department  Ongoing 

18 We will continue to support the aims and objectives of the United Kingdom 
Rescue Organisation. 

Area Manager Operational Response Ongoing 

19 We will continually evaluate the latest crash rescue equipment and look to 
provide operational crews with the most advanced equipment available. 

Operational Equipment Manager  Ongoing 

20 We will provide our operational crews with the most up to date and relevant 
information available in order to ensure their health and safety at RTCs . 

Operational Equipment Manager Ongoing 

21 We will review data sources with partner agencies e.g. A& E, Highways 
agency, Stats 19 to improve our data and target setting. This will aid profiling 
and contribute to the localism agenda. 

Head of  Knowledge and Information 
Management 

Ongoing 

22 Ensure that resources are deployed effectively and value for money is 
achieved. Report produced to demonstrate the costs associated to staffing and 
the reduction in socio-economic costs – RTC incidents and interventions. 

Head of Knowledge and Information 
Management 

Ongoing 

23 Initial discussion required with Opinion Research Services (ORS) regarding 
customer satisfaction  

Head of Knowledge and Information 
Management 

Ongoing 

24 Review information captured by the mobilising systems used by Ambulance, 
Police and Fire, and produce a management report. 

Head of Knowledge and Information 
Management 

Ongoing 

 
 

P
age 192



 Road Safety Strategy 2011-2014  

 Page 21 of 21      Version 13 

 
Section 8  List of area designated reference holders and Abbreviations 

 
 
Designated reference holders 
 

Community Safety Manager– Sefton 
Community Safety Manager – Wirral  
Community Safety Manager – Knowsley 
Community Safety Manager – St Helens 
Community Safety Manager – Liverpool North 
Community Safety Manager – Liverpool South 

 
 
 
Abbreviations 
 
CSP Community Safety Partnerships 
IAM Institute of Advanced Motorists 
IPDS Integrated Personnel Development System 
IRMP Integrated Risk Management Plan 
MFRS Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service 
MERSOG Merseyside Road safety Operational Group 
MERSPG Merseyside Road Safety Planning Group 
RTC Road Traffic Collision 

 
 

P
age 193



P
age 194

T
his page is intentionally left blank



MFRS SUPPORTING CFOA ROAD SAFETY WEEK 2014 

 

St Helens 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Shopper in Church Square St Helens 

witnessed a RTC extrication display by 

operational crews from St Helens district   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MFRS Operational and Prevention staff 

worked alongside our Road Safety 

partners to promote CFOA Road Safety 

week 2014.  

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

CFO/083/14

Page 195



MFRS SUPPORTING CFOA ROAD SAFETY WEEK 2014 

 

 
 

Knowsley 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Knowsley District staged a multi-agency 

Road Safety event at Asda Huyton. 

Operational crews worked alongside 

NW Ambulance ‘HART’ team to stage 

an extrication demonstration. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Operational crews and MFRS Road 

Safety Team engaged with members of 

the public to highlight Road Safety 

issues 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 196



MFRS SUPPORTING CFOA ROAD SAFETY WEEK 2014 

 

Sefton 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Pupils at Sefton’s Holy Family school 

took part in a Road Safety Day to 

support CFOA Road Safety week 2014.  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pupils attended four different sessions on 

Road Safety delivered by MFRS Road 

Safety Team, Operational crews and our 

partners from the local authority Road 
Safety Team 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 197



MFRS SUPPORTING CFOA ROAD SAFETY WEEK 2014 

 

 

 

Liverpool  
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

MFRS were out in force in Liverpool 

City Centre offering Road Safety advice 

to members of the public 

Operational crews were joined by MFRS 

Road Safety team and the PRINCES 

Trust from Toxteth  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Councillor Peter Brennan showed his 

support for CFOA Road Safety week by 

attending the event in Paradise Street 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 198



MFRS SUPPORTING CFOA ROAD SAFETY WEEK 2014 

 

 

Wirral 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Operational crews from Wirral were 

joined by the Wirral Road Safety team to 

raise Road Safety awareness to the 

public of Wirral 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Members of the public observed 

Operational crews carry out a RTC 

extrication display. 

Members of MFRS Road Safety Team 

assisted the event with the ‘crash car 

display unit. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 199



MFRS SUPPORTING CFOA ROAD SAFETY WEEK 2014 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 200


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	3 Wirral Youth Zone
	Appendix A: Wirral Youth Zone Business Plan
	Appendix A1: Wirral Youth Zone Business Plan Appendices
	Appendix B: Wirral Youth Zone
	Appendix C: Site Valuation Report

	4 CFOA Road Safety Week
	Appendix A: MFRS Road Safety Strategy
	Appendix B: CFOA Road Safety Week Summary and Images


